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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE
OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk may be
attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of
investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk
profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated
investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible
to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there
will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in
reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of GET Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually accept full
responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM (the “GEM Listing Rules”)
for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the
best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not
misleading or deceptive; (2) there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement in this report misleading; and (3) all
opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and careful consideration and are founded on bases and assumptions that
are fair and reasonable.

BERBERSMARAT (B AIER(TRIXER]) WEES

AIERNEN - DRABEERMERIALTNQAATEESREARNAREMA—ELTNTS - FRREERTHRRENZZARNNWEER
B WESBEEAFNZBALFLHRERE - AXRNBRSEBREAEMISE  KRTRARRBRECEXEREMERRES -

HRAIERETARNENEERR  FARREENESTREBRBEXMEREENIFEAZIBANT S RB A - B8 EEREIERIRER
BEENESFEEORBENTS -

BB GREEBRAFIRBZ LA BEANTHTRE - HEERIE AT TEREMED  WHERT TR E AR S 2 S
BB B i AL B A REL S AR T 5| BB (A IR K ASEE (A (E

AL BV EH TR RIZEIRGE S LA ([BIFER ETARR) M T# - EEEREAESHERERAF([KARFDHER : ARAEEF([EF])
FER IR E R R RS ASER RSB - KB FEIEH — IR BB HREER - RESHRAMRIERE - (1) FREFBENEEER T B EERET
1 WmRGEFA S  QUBEREMER  EUSHIBRE B EFARELRE : R Q) ABEFRE B RGBT A FE BIE
TTIGIEH] » A2 FEFEMZE RBRRBKIR o



CONTENTS
Ef:

Corporate Information

Chairman’s Statement

Management Discussion and Analysis

Corporate Governance Report

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
Report of the Directors

Independent Auditor’s Report

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Five Years Financial Information

ATAH

TREHE

ERE TSmO

EEERME

BEELSREEEBE

ERaMBARRR

GARNEDE

FARRERER

e TR M

hEMBHE

24

39

43

68

70

71

72

74

76

79

204



CORPORATE INFORMATION

NEIEF

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Kuang Hao Kun Giovanni (Chairman)
Mr. Xue Qiushi (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Xiao Yiming

Professor Chui Tsan Kit

Professor Lee T. S., alias, Lee Tien-sheng

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Lau Siu Cheong, CPA (Aust.), CPA

COMPLIANCE OFFICER
Mr. Kuang Hao Kun Giovanni, CPA (Aust.)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Kuang Hao Kun Giovanni
Mr. Lau Siu Cheong

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Professor Chui Tsan Kit (Chairman)
Professor Lee T. S.

Ms. Xiao Yiming

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Professor Lee T. S. (Chairman)

Professor Chui Tsan Kit

Ms. Xiao Yiming

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Ms. Xiao Yiming (Chairman)
Professor Chui Tsan Kit

Professor Lee T. S.

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

=

HITES
HES S E D)
EEIKE S i (T AgEL)

BNFHITES
H—s&t
TR
FREHRK

AEWE
2|9k B 44 - CPA (Aust.), CPA

BRI {E
EBZEESL A - CPA (Aust)

mREAE
BERLE
BkE %L

BEREEE
BEBBIE (L)
FREHE
BBt

FMEES
FREHBEK (L&)
TR
H—s&t

REZES
BBt ()
BB
FREHE

MR EE
Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL BREEREBTTE XY

PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 1703, 17/F, Harcourt House BE

39 Gloucester Road B

Wanchai HITE395

Hong Kong BERAE17E1703 %

2 GET Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2015



PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Codan Services Limited

Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Tengis Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of Communications Co., Limited
Dah Sing Bank, Limited

AUDITOR
RSM Hong Kong

STOCK CODE
8100

WEBSITE

www.geth.com.hk

CORPORATE INFORMATION

NEER

RIBFBILRE

Codan Services Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

EERODBFETTE

SEEERBRAR
B

SRKER 1835
SRR 221E

FEAERRT
RBBITRAERAF
RIRITERAF

BB ED
PIEE(FB) R BB

v

8100

LD

www.geth.com.hk

BoERARAR/ F3] 2015



CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
TRRE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of GET
Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, referred to
as the “Group”), | would like to present the annual results of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2015 (the “Year”) together with the Group’s
strategies and prospects.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Group recorded a profit of approximately HK$93,423,000 for the Year
(2014: Profit of HK$88,979,000).

The Group’s consolidated profit attributable to the owners of the Company
for the Year amounted to approximately HK$60,510,000 (2014: Profit of
HK$52,737,000).

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the Year (2014:
Nil).

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

2015 was a year of accomplishments for the Group. With the concerted
efforts of our team, we made notable development in different segments over
the past year.

During the Year, we continued to actively develop the Software Business (as
defined below) as one of the pillar businesses of the Group. By expanding
the business in software market via increasing shareholding of Boom Max
International Limited (“Boom Max”, together with its subsidiaries, referred to as
the “Boom Max Group”), which can increase the Group’s share in the financial
results of the Boom Max Group, and timely upgrading its existing products
while developing new products to keep up with the ever-evolving information
technology (“I.T.”) trends, the Group enjoyed a steady growth of the number
of its users in the segment. The Software Business alone accounted for
approximately 42.2% of our total turnover for the Year.

In 2015, the Group’s money lending business (the “Money Lending Business”)
continued to make positive progress despite keen market competition in Hong
Kong. Completion of acquisition of 51% of the issued shares of GEO Finance
Limited (“GEO Finance”) in March 2015 allowed the Group to extend the
business to provision of subordinate property mortgage loan, which enables
the Group to offer a new type of products to its customers.
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For the provision of insurance and mandatory provident fund schemes (“MPF
Schemes”) brokerage services (the “Insurance and MPF Schemes Brokerage
Business”), the Group has been actively diversifying its products and services
to include investment-linked insurance and has successfully developed our
own new sales teams for the promotion of its services and products in 2015.
We believe the Group’s business development will be well-aided by the
promising market prospect.

Penetrating into different market segments (i.e. the provision of corporate
management solutions and |.T. contract services (the “Corporate Management
Solutions and I.T. Contract Services Business”) allowed the Group to expand
the existing software service line and become a comprehensive |.T. business

segment revenue will continue to generate return to the Group in the future.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had cash and cash equivalents and
pledged bank deposits of approximately HK$216,910,000 and net current
assets of approximately HK$540,894,000. Given such solid and strong
financial position, the Group will strategically look for other potential business
areas with positive prospects to enhance our revenue sources and profitability,
thereby creating greater returns for the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”).

PROSPECT

Looking forward, the Group will continue to expand the scope of its
businesses and bring in new dynamics for revenue growth. The Group will also
strive to focus on the Software Business, Money Lending Business, Insurance
and MPF Schemes Brokerage Business, Corporate Management Solutions
and I.T. Contract Services Business and Securities Investment Business. The
Group holds a positive view on the future market conditions with a prudent
attitude.

APPRECIATION

Last but not least, | would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere
thanks and gratitude to all our business partners and Shareholders for their
continuing trust and support in the Group. | would also like to thank all staff
and members of the Board for their dedicated efforts and contributions to the
Group over the past year.

Kuang Hao Kun Giovanni
Chairman

24 March 2016
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B R wm MT

BUSINESS REVIEW
Software Business

During the Year, the Group further expanded its business in software market
via holding 65.177% of the issued share capital of Boom Max, which holds
a number of subsidiaries principally engaged in the research, development
and distribution of personal computer performance software, anti-virus
software, mobile phone applications and toolbar advertisement (the “Software
Business”). On 13 August 2015 and 16 September 2015, the Company as
purchaser entered into a conditional sale and purchase agreement and a
supplemental agreement with Access Magic Limited, Ace Source International
Limited, Wealthy Hope Limited and Well Peace Global Limited as vendors
(collectively, the “Boom Max Vendors”), and Xue Qiushi, Dong Yuguo, Chen
Liang and Lian Ming as warrantors (collectively, the “Boom Max Warrantors”)
respectively for the acquisition of an aggregate of 14.677% of the equity
interest in Boom Max. Taking into account the stable financial performance of
the Boom Max Group in the past, the Directors believe that the acquisition will
increase the Group’s profit sharing of the Boom Max Group and strengthen
the financial performance of the Group. The acquisition was approved by the
independent Shareholders at the special general meeting of the Company held
on 15 December 2015 and its completion took place on 31 December 2015.
Details of such acquisition are set out in the Company’s announcements dated
13 August 2015, 16 September 2015, 16 October 2015, 6 November 2015,
15 December 2015 and 31 December 2015, and the Company’s circular
dated 23 November 2015 and the section headed “Connected Transactions
— Acquisition of 14.677% interest of this report.

Despite being benefited from the stable financial performance of the Boom
Max Group, the Software Business recorded a turnover of approximately
HK$137,136,000 for the Year, representing a decrease of approximately
4.9% as compared with that for the last year, and the segment profit for the
Software Business amounted to approximately HK$78,388,000 for the Year,
representing a decrease of approximately 3.2% over the last year.

In the face of ever-evolving security threats and counteracting new virus,
malware and spyware, the Boom Max Group continues to closely monitor the
I.T. trend, and focus on development and upgrade of its products, including
but not limited to Advanced System Care, Driver Booster, Smart Defrag,
Game Booster, Mac Booster and Random Password Generator. The version
9.0 of its flagship anti-virus product, Advanced System Care, which is a
system utility software helping users to protect their personal computers from
spyware and virus and detect and solve issues regarding computer security
and performance, was launched at the end of 2015. Based on the internal
sales database of the Boom Max Group, there are over 133,000,000 free
and paid active users (i.e. the users who have used the Boom Max Group’s
products) during the Year (2014: 124,000,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Money Lending Business

Citi Profit Finance Limited (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) and GEO Finance (an indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) are holders of money lenders licences under the Money Lenders
Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The Group has adopted
money lending policy and procedure manual which provides guidelines on the
handling and/or monitoring of money lending procedures according to the
Money Lenders Ordinance.

The Group’s Money Lending Business had a rapid growth during the Year
after its acquisition of 51% of the issued shares of GEO Finance in March
2015. The Group recorded a substantial growth in turnover and segment
profit under this business segment. The Money Lending Business recorded
an interest income of approximately HK$5,133,000 for the Year, representing
an increase of approximately 364.5% as compared with that for the last
year, and the segment profit for the Money Lending Business amounted
to approximately HK$3,941,000 for the Year, representing an increase of
approximately 286.4% over the last year. The outstanding principal amount of
loan receivables as at 31 December 2015 was approximately HK$49,356,000.
During the Year, the Group did not record any doubtful or bad debt in its
money lending activities, which reflected our credit policies were effective.

Insurance and MPF Schemes Brokerage Business

GET Mdream Wealth Management Limited (“GMD”) (an indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company) is a registered member of the Professional
Insurance Brokers Association (“PIBA”) and is principally engaged in carrying
on long term (including linked long term) insurance and general insurance
lines of business. GMD is also engaged in MPF Schemes brokerage business
in Hong Kong. During the Year, GMD actively diversified its products and
services to include investment-linked insurance and developed our own
new sales teams for the promotion of its services and products. For the
Year, the turnover and segment profit of this business were approximately
HK$71,368,000 and HK$2,081,000 respectively.

On 1 April 2015, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement in
relation to the acquisition of 100% interest of Trendmode Holdings Limited
(“Trendmode”) at a cash consideration of HK$52,000,000 (subject to
adjustment(s)) (the “Trendmode Acquisition”). Trendmode and its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in Insurance and MPF Schemes and consulting
business. The agreement was terminated on 22 December 2015 in
accordance with the terms of the agreement. The deposit of HK$10,000,000,
without interest, had been refunded to the Group. The Board considered that
the termination of the agreement would not have any material adverse impact
on the business, operation and financial position of the Group. Details of the
Trendmode Acquisition are set out in the Company’s announcements dated
2 February 2015, 1 April 2015, 8 May 2015, 22 May 2015, 8 June 2015,
19 June 2015, 13 July 2015, 30 September 2015 and 22 December 2015
and the Company’s circular dated 22 June 2015 and the section headed
“Connected Transactions — Trendmode Acquisition” of this report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

DT

ERET®

Corporate Management Solutions and I.T. Contract Services
Business

The Group completed the acquisition of e-Perfect IT Limited (“e-Perfect IT”)
and Wafer Systems (Hong Kong) Limited (“Wafer HK”) in 2014, which offer
new business opportunities to the Group. The Group started to provide
corporate management solutions, 1. T. contract services, network infrastructure
solutions and network professional services to corporate clients in Hong Kong
and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC” or “China”).

During the Year, the Group emerged as a comprehensive I.T. business
platform as it further stepped into the field of I.T. project implementation
business. The management believes that e-Perfect IT and Wafer HK will
provide strong support to the Group’s I.T. business development and play a
more prominent role in enhancing the financial performance of the Group.

The turnover derived from this business segment and the segment profit
for the Year were approximately HK$108,489,000 and HK$13,455,000
respectively.

Securities Investment Business

During the Year, the segment profit amounted to approximately HK$49.8 million
(2014: segment loss of approximately HK$21 million). Such profit mainly
comprised the fair value gain on financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL Financial Assets”) of approximately HK$101.9 million (the “Fair
Value Gain”) during the Year, the net loss on disposal of available-for-sale
financial assets (“AFS Financial Assets”) of approximately HK$11.9 million (the
“Net loss on disposal of AFS”) and the net loss on disposal of FVTPL Financial
Assets of approximately HK$39.3 million (the “Net loss on disposal of FVTPL
Financial Assets”).

The Fair Value Gain was mainly attributable to the gain on the fair value
change in the investment of Convoy Financial Holdings Limited (stock code:
1019) (“Convoy Financial”’) and Target Insurance (Holdings) Limited (stock
code: 6161) (“Target Insurance”) of approximately HK$57.3 million and
approximately HK$41.8 million respectively. The Net loss on disposal of
AFS was mainly attributable to the loss of the disposals of shares in DX.com
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8086) of approximately HK$19.8 million and
the Net loss on disposal of FVTPL Financial Assets was mainly attributable to
the disposals of shares in Target Insurance and Jun Yang Financial Holdings
Limited (stock code: 397) of approximately HK$15.9 million and HK$13.8
million respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at 31 December 2015, FVTPL Financial Assets and AFS Financial Assets
with fair value of approximately HK$323.1 million and HK$150.7 million
respectively consisted of 12 investment items (2014: 6 items), 9 of which are
shares of companies listed on the Stock Exchange while the remaining 3 are
unlisted securities (including funds). Two of the aforesaid investment items
held by the Group, i.e., the shares of (i) China Parenting Network Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8361) and Convoy Financial valued at approximately
HK$65 million and approximately HK$325 million respectively which
represented approximately 4.5% and approximately 22.7% of the Group’s
total asset value as at 31 December 2015 respectively and approximately
13.7% and approximately 68.7% of the total value of the Securities Investment
Business of approximately HK$473.8 million (comprising AFS Financial Assets
and FVTPL Financial Assets) as at 31 December 2015.

China Parenting Network Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in (i) provision of marketing and promotional services through their
platform, including PC Web, Mobile Web, Mobile applications and Internet
Protocol Television APPs; and (i) e-commerce business in the PRC. As at
31 December 2015, the Group held 27,298,000 shares (2014: Nil) of China
Parenting Network Holdings Limited, representing approximately 2.7% of its
total issued shares.

Convoy Financial and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in (i) independent
financial advisory business; (i) money lending business; (i) proprietary
investment business; (iv) asset management business; and (v) corporate
finance advisory services. As at 31 December 2015, the Group held
747,806,000 shares (2014: Nil), representing approximately 5% of the total
issued shares of Convoy Financial.

In view of the recent unstable global equity market and volatile financial market
in Hong Kong, this business segment carries material price risk in its nature.
The Board will monitor closely the performance of its investment portfolio.

E-learning Business

During the Year, E-learning business of the Group performance tumbled
due to keen competition within the industry. Keeping the Shareholders’ best
interest in mind, the Group will continue to closely monitor this business’s
performance. During the Year, this business recorded a minor loss of
approximately HK$33,000.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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ERET®

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Turnover

For the Year under review, the turnover of the Group was approximately
HK$324,729,000, representing an increase of approximately 38.6% compared
with that for 2014 of approximately HK$234,293,000. The turnover for the
Year was mainly contributed by the turnover of (i) the Software Business
of approximately HK$137,136,000, (i) the Insurance and MPF Schemes
Brokerage Business of approximately HK$71,368,000, and (i) the Corporate
Management Solutions and I.T. Contract Services Business of approximately
HK$108,489,000.

Gross profit

The gross profit of the Group for the Year increased by approximately 14.2%
to approximately HK$165,152,000 from approximately HK$144,664,000 for
2014.

Profit for the Year

The Group recorded a net profit after tax of approximately HK$93,423,000
for the Year (2014: HK$88,979,000). The net profit after tax for the Year was
mainly contributed by () the segment profit of approximately HK$78,388,000
contributed by the Software Business, (i) the segment profit of approximately
HK$13,455,000 contributed by the Corporate Management Solutions and
|.T. Contract Services Business and (i) the segment profit of approximately
HK$49,832,000 contributed by the Securities Investment Business.

The profit attributable to owners of the Company for the Year was
approximately HK$60,510,000 compared with the profit attributable to owners
of the Company of approximately HK$52,737,000 for 2014.

The increase in net profit after tax for the Year as compared with that for 2014
was mainly attributable to the combined effects of (1) the substantial decrease
in fair value gain on performance shares in connection with the acquisition of
50.5% of the issued share capital of Apperience Corporation (“Apperience”),
the completion of which took place in March 2013; (2) the segment profit
of approximately HK$49,832,000 contributed by the Securities Investment
Business; (3) the segment profit of approximately HK$13,455,000 contributed
by the Corporate Management Solutions and I.T. Contract Service Business;
and (4) the segment profit of approximately HK$78,388,000 contributed by
the Software Business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents and
pledged deposit amounted to approximately HK$216,910,000 (as at 31
December 2014: HK$151,337,000), which were principally denominated
in Renminbi, United States dollar and Hong Kong dollar (2014: Renminbi,
United States dollar and Hong Kong dollar). As at 31 December 2015, the
aggregate principal amounts (excluding loan interest payable) of the loan notes
and convertible notes repayable within a period of more than 1 year but not
exceeding 2 years were approximately HK$287,708,000.

The Group generally finances its operation by (1) internally generated
resources, (2) proceeds raised from the Rights Issue (as defined below), (3)
proceeds raised from the placing of new shares under general mandate, and (4)
proceeds raised from issues of the Feb 2015 Notes, the Jun 2015 Notes and
the Aug 2015 Notes (all as defined below) by the Company during the Year.

Rights Issue

On 24 February 2015, the Board proposed a rights issue on the basis of three
rights shares for every one share (the “Rights Issue”) held on the record date
at the subscription price of HK$0.35 per share (the “Rights Share”) which
represented a discount of approximately 59.8% to the theoretical closing
price of HK$0.87 per share of the Company, based on the closing price of
HK$0.087 per share of the Company immediately prior to the 2015 Capital
Reorganisation (as defined below) becoming effective as quoted on the Stock
Exchange on 24 February 2015, being the date of the underwriting agreement.
The Directors considered that it was prudent to finance the Group’s long
term growth by way of the Rights Issue which would not only strengthen the
Group’s capital base and enhance its financial position without increasing
finance costs, but also allow all qualifying Shareholders the opportunity to
participate in the growth of the Group through the Rights Issue at a price lower
than the then current market price of the shares of the Company. The Rights
Issue was approved by the independent Shareholders at the special general
meeting of the Company held on 11 May 2015.

Upon the completion of the Rights Issue in June 2015, 586,237,461 ordinary
shares of the Company were issued. The aggregate nominal value of the
Rights Shares was approximately HK$5,862,000. The net proceeds from
the Rights Issue were approximately HK$196.5 million, and on this basis,
the net price per Rights Share was approximately HK$0.336. Details of the
Rights Issue are set out in the Company’s announcements dated 24 February
2015, 20 March 2015, 10 April 2015, 11 May 2015, 12 May 2015 and 15
June 2015, the Company’s circular dated 22 April 2015, and the Company’s
prospectus dated 22 May 2015 and note 36(g) to the consolidated financial
statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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ERET®

The actual use of the net proceeds from the Rights Issue as at 31 December

2015 was as follows:

Intended or changed
use of the net proceeds

Net proceeds from the Rights
Issue of approximately
HK$196.5 million were
intended to be used in the
following manner:

() Approximately HK$20 million for
funding part of the consideration
for the acquisition of 100% of
the issued share capital of Million
Worldwide Investment Limited
(“Million Worldwide”) and a sum of
HK$26,899,220 owing from Million
Worldwide to the vendor (“Million
Worldwide Acquisition”) (note a);

(i) Approximately HK$50 million
for funding the Money Lending
Business;

(i) Approximately HK$41 million
for future potential investment in
listed and/or unlisted securities
(note ¢);

(iv) Approximately HK$1 million for
future potential acquisitions or
investments which related to the
Insurance and MPF Schemes
Brokerage Business (note c);

(v) Approximately HK$17.9 milion for
settling part of the consideration
of the Property Acquisition (as
defined below) (note d);

(vi) Approximately HK$20.1 million
for other future investment
opportunities of the Group (note
d);

(vii) Approximately HK$36 million
for future potential acquisition of
properties; and

Actual use of the net proceeds
as at 31 December 2015

Approximately HK$18,000 used
for the legal and professional
fees regarding the incorporation
of a company in Hong Kong
for the Intended Business (as
defined below)

(note b)

Approximately HK$40.3 million
used for the Money Lending
Business which is one of the
principal business activities of
the Group

Approximately HK$16.1 million
used for the investment in
securities

Approximately HK$1 million used
for professional fee in relation to
the Trendmode Acquisition

Approximately HK$17.9 million
used for paying part of the
consideration of the Property
Acquisition

Approximately HK$20.1 million
used for paying part of the
deposit of the acquisition of
14.677% of the issued share
capital of Boom Max

Approximately HK$36 million
used for paying part of the
consideration of the Property
Acquisition (as defined below)
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Intended or changed
use of the net proceeds

(viii) Approximately HK$10.5 million
for general working capital of
the Group

Note a:

Note b:

Note c:

Note d:

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Actual use of the net proceeds
as at 31 December 2015

— Approximately HK$10.5
million used for investment in
listed securities and unlisted
investment funds which is one of
the principal business activities
of the Group

— The remaining unutilised
proceeds will be utilised as
intended.

It was disclosed in the Company’s prospectus dated 22 May 2015, among
others, approximately HK$20 million of the net proceeds from the Rights Issue
would be used for funding the incorporation of a company in Hong Kong to be
wholly-owned by the Group to carry on Type 1 (dealing in securities) regulated
activity under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws
of Hong Kong) (the “Intended Business”). As at 11 March 2016, in view of the
uncertain and fluctuating securities market, the Board decided to delay the plan
for carrying on the Intended Business and intended to use the said HK$20 milion
for funding part of the consideration for the Million Worldwide Acquisition. The
Company will continue to observe the market condition and review the plan for
developing the Intended Business. Details of such change are disclosed in the
Company’s announcements dated 11 March 2016 and 21 March 2016.

The completion of the Million Worldwide Acquisition took place on 21 March
2016.

It was disclosed in the Company’s prospectus dated 22 May 2015 that, among
others, approximately HK$80 million of the net proceeds from the Rights Issue
would be used for future potential acquisitions or investments which related to
the Insurance and MPF Schemes Brokerage Business (including the Trendmode
Acquisition). As at 22 December 2015, since the Trendmode Acquisition was
terminated and approximately HK$1 million out of the proceeds was used for
professional fee in relation to the Trendmode Acquisition, the Group intended
to use the remaining HK$41 million out of the proceeds for future potential
investment in listed and/or unlisted securities. Details of such change are
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 22 December 2015.

It was disclosed in the Company’s prospectus dated 22 May 2015 that, among
others, approximately HK$80 million of the net proceeds from the Rights
Issue would be used for future potential acquisitions or investments which
related to the Insurance and MPF Schemes Brokerage Business (including the
Trendmode Acquisition). As at 10 August 2015, the Group had not identified any
potential investment opportunity which was related to the Insurance and MPF
Schemes Brokerage Business and the Group intended to use approximately
HK$17.9 million to fund the partial consideration of the Property Acquisition. The
Company also intended to use approximately HK$20.1 million for other future
potential investment opportunities of the Group. Details of change of use of
proceeds from the Rights Issues are disclosed in the Company’s announcement
dated 10 August 2015.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Placing of new shares under general mandate

On 22 June 2015, the Company and Win Fung Securities Limited as placing
agent (the “Placing Agent”) entered into a placing agreement, pursuant to
which the Placing Agent would procure not less than six placees who and
whose ultimate beneficial owners shall be third parties independent of the
Group and not connected nor acting in concert with any of the connected
persons of the Group or any of their respective associates, on a best effort
basis, to subscribe for up to 39,080,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of
the Company (the “Placing Shares”) at a price of HK$0.49 per Placing Share
(the “Placing”) which represented a discount of 12.5% to the closing price of
HK$0.56 per share of the Company as quoted on the Stock Exchange on
the date of the placing agreement. Completion of the Placing was conditional
upon the Stock Exchange granting the listing of, and permission to deal in the
Placing Shares pursuant to the placing agreement on or before 10 July 2015.

The Directors considered that the Placing could strengthen the financial
position of the Group and provide additional funding to the Group’s investment
in the Securities Investment Business. The Directors also considered that the
Placing represented good opportunities to broaden the Shareholders’ base
and capital base of the Company and raise additional funds at a reasonable
cost. Completion of the Placing took place on 8 July 2015. An aggregate
of 39,080,000 Placing Shares were allotted and issued pursuant to the
general mandate granted to the Directors at the annual general meeting
held on 4 June 2015. The aggregate nominal value of the Placing Shares
was HK$390,800. The net proceeds from the Placing were approximately
HK$17,999,000 (after deduction of commission to the Placing Agent and
other expenses of the Placing), and the net issue price was approximately
HK$0.47 per Placing Share. The Company intended to apply such net
proceeds towards investment in securities. As at 31 December 2015, the net
proceeds of approximately HK$17,999,000 were used for the investment in
securities. Details of the Placing are set out in the Company’s announcements
dated 22 June 2015 and 8 July 2015 and note 36(h) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Issue of the 6% per annum notes (the “Feb 2015 Notes”) in an aggregate
principal amount of up to HK$50,000,000

On 5 February 2015, the Company as issuer and GEO Securities Limited
as placing agent (the “Feb 2015 Placing Agent”), entered into a placing
agreement (the “Feb 2015 Placing Agreement”) pursuant to which the
Feb 2015 Placing Agent agreed to procure the placee(s) who and whose
respective ultimate beneficial owner(s) shall be third parties independent
of, and not connected with the Company, its connected persons and their
respective associates (each within the meaning of the GEM Listing Rules), on
a best endeavour basis, to subscribe for the Feb 2015 Notes to be issued
by the Company in an aggregate principal amount of up to HK$50,000,000
maturing on the second anniversary of the respective issue date(s) of the Feb
2015 Notes at the placing price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the
Feb 2015 Notes (the “Feb 2015 Placing”).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The placing period for the Feb 2015 Placing commenced on the day
immediately following the date of the Feb 2015 Placing Agreement and ended
on the date falling on the 15th day of the sixth month after the date of the Feb
2015 Placing Agreement. The placing period ended on 15 August 2015. No
security or pledge was offered by the Group for issuing the Feb 2015 Notes.

The Directors considered that the Feb 2015 Placing represented an
opportunity to obtain funding, which was intended to be used to finance any
potential investment opportunities of the Group that might arise from time to
time and for the general working capital of the Group.

The Feb 2015 Notes in an aggregate principal amount of HK$4,500,000
were issued to certain subscribers who subscribed for the Feb 2015 Notes
during the period from 6 February 2015 to 15 April 2015. As at 31 December
2015, the net proceeds of approximately HK$4,171,000 (after deduction of
commission to the Feb 2015 Placing Agent and other expenses of the Feb
2015 Placing) were used for the investment in securities. Details of the issue
of the Feb 2015 Notes are set out in the Company’s announcements dated 5
February 2015, 1 April 2015, 1 May 2015 and 17 August 2015 and note 35(a)
to the consolidated financial statements.

Issue of the 10% per annum notes (the “Jun 2015 Notes”) in an aggregate
principal amount of up to HK$30,000,000

On 26 June 2015, the Company as issuer and GEO Securities Limited as
placing agent (the “Jun 2015 Placing Agent”) entered into a placing agreement
(the “Jun 2015 Placing Agreement”), pursuant to which the Jun 2015 Placing
Agent agreed to procure the placee(s) who and whose respective ultimate
beneficial owner(s) shall be third parties independent of, and not connected
with the Company, its connected persons and their respective associates
(each within the meaning of the GEM Listing Rules), on a best endeavor basis,
to subscribe for the Jun 2015 Notes to be issued by the Company in an
aggregate principal amount of up to HK$30,000,000 maturing on the second
anniversary of the issue date of the Jun 2015 Notes at the placing price
equal to 100% of the principal amount of the Jun 2015 Notes (the “Jun 2015
Placing”).

On 3 August 2015, the Company and the Jun 2015 Placing Agent entered into
a supplemental placing agreement (the “Supplemental Placing Agreement”),
pursuant to which the Company and the Jun 2015 Placing Agent agreed to
amend the date of closing(s) for the subscription of the Jun 2015 Notes. Under
the Jun 2015 Placing Agreement (as supplemented by the Supplemental
Placing Agreement), subject to the fulfiiment of the conditions precedent to
the subscription and provided that the Jun 2015 Placing Agent has procured
the placee(s) for the Jun 2015 Notes, the Jun 2015 Placing Agent is entitled to
issue a 7-day prior notice to the Company specifying, among other matters,
the proposed date of closing(s) (which shall be the 1st business day or the
15th day (if this is not a business day, the next business day thereafter) of the
relevant calendar month).

kkf% ﬂLnHE& Tﬁ'

—hE-_AREFHENLEENEER _T-AF AL
ENEAREAREE - AF _ARE = BEEN
BEANEISGHEALL -REMR_FT-AF N \ATOLAE

c REBEWEMLEIT T —0F - ARBIEDEMERSK
e

EERR —E-AF_ALREFEADNBESNRE B
MERANAEETH AR ESHEMEERERE
REEE—REEED -

N #8E8 54,500,000 TR - T —
RZB—AFE_AANBE_Z—HEMA+H B HKRE
—E-hFAZEMNETREA -R-ZZ—AFT=A
=+—HB F3RIEFEL4171,0008 T (AR = —F
FAREABEASK T AF_ARSEHEAMBHEX
BIBARRERS BARBT_S—RHF= ﬁmﬁMEM
HRAQRIBHA-ZS—RF_ARA - —AFmMA—
A - ZZ—AFAA—HBRZZT— ﬁi/\ﬂﬂ—taﬂﬁ/‘i
4R & B R 2R M 5 35(a)

AFE-_RARBOETT

7T K2 4858 5 7% 30,000,000 B T 10 EEEZ8 ([ —F
—AFNAEE])

RZFB—RAFNAZ+TRB  AARI(EABRTA)HEES
FELFERAR (EARERE(ZZE—AFARER
BINITVRERFE(—E—REXARERE]) - Bt
—AFANARSRERBRIBEMEEERFEAEA
(BEREEEANERESZHBARABBINAQR - &
BEATRESSENHEAT(TERAERETRAD
BEREFMEAFHERENE=H)RBAQAEETEISH
H = #30,000,000 8 TR T —RAFNAZEHETAY
FRFERANSN T -RAFANAZE  BEEESERZ
T-RAFNAZRBEALENI1I00% ([ E—AFARES
E]) -

RZZE—RAFNB=ZH ARRE-ZT—AFNARERRE
ARk EhE((HriEmsl) Bt ARF k=T
—RFEAARERERZERE-_S—AF NAZENH
IFEH - RE-ZT—AFNARSHE (CHARSHER
7o) FREFENCRGHERER_Z— ﬁi/\ﬁﬁﬂﬁ
RECREARARE-_Z—AFXAZEMNANRT -
—RAFANAREREGRARQREL 7 AEEBA - “‘EP
PR (e @ZE B (EABMEAE —EE%8
HEISANEAWIEEER  BIHAT—EZZER)) -

BoERARAR/ F3] 2015

15



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

DT

ERET®

The placing period for the Jun 2015 Placing shall last for a period commencing
on the day immediately following the date of the Jun 2015 Placing Agreement
and up to (and including) the date falling on the 15th day of the sixth month
after the date of the Jun 2015 Placing Agreement. The placing period ended
on 15 December 2015.

The Directors considered the Jun 2015 Placing represented an opportunity to
obtain funding. The net proceeds from the Jun 2015 Placing were intended to
be used to finance any potential investment opportunity of the Group as might
arise from time to time.

The Jun 2015 Notes in an aggregate principal amount of HK$19,000,000
were issued to certain placees who subscribed for the Jun 2015 Notes during
the period from 27 June 2015 to 30 October 2015. As at 31 December 2015,
the net proceeds (after deduction of commission to Jun 2015 Placing Agent
and other expenses of the Jun 2015 Placing) of approximately HK$9,900,000
were used for paying part of the deposit of the acquisition of 14.677% of the
issue share capital of Boom Max, and of approximately HK$8,150,000 were
used for the investment in securities. Details of the issue of the Jun 2015
Notes are set out in the Company’s announcements dated 26 June 2015, 3
August 2015, 17 August 2015, 1 September 2015, 15 September 2015, 2
October 2015, 16 November 2015 and 15 December 2015 and note 35(b) to
the consolidated financial statements.

Issue of the 9% per annum notes (the “Aug 2015 Notes”) in an aggregate
principal amount of up to HK$300,000,000

On 20 August 2015, the Company as issuer and Jun Yang Securities
Company Limited as placing agent (the “Aug 2015 Placing Agent”) entered into
a placing agreement (the “Aug 2015 Placing Agreement”) pursuant to which
the Aug 2015 Placing Agent agreed to act as placing agent of the Company,
on a best endeavour basis, to procure the placee(s) to subscribe for the Aug
2015 Notes to be issued by the Company in an aggregate principal amount
of up to HK$300,000,000 maturing on the second anniversary after the issue
date of the notes at the placing price equal to 100% of the principal amount of
the Aug 2015 Notes (the “Aug 2015 Placing”). The Directors considered that
the Aug 2015 Placing represented an opportunity to obtain funding, which
was intended to be used for the investment in listed securities and unlisted
funds which is one of the principal activities of the Group.
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As at 31 December 2015, the Aug 2015 Notes in an aggregate principal
amount of HK$189,000,000 have been issued to certain subscribers who
subscribed for the Aug 2015 Notes during the period from 10 September
2015 to 14 December 2015. As at 31 December 2015, the net proceeds of
approximately HK$183,218,000 (after deduction of commission to Aug 2015
Placing Agent and other expenses of the Aug 2015 Placing) were used for
the investment in listed securities. Details of the issue of the Aug 2015 Notes
are set out in the Company’s announcements dated 20 August 2015, 30
September 2015, 2 November 2015, 30 November 2015, 31 December 2015
and 15 February 2016 and note 35(c) to the consolidated financial statements.

Capital reorganisation and change in board lot size in March 2015

In March 2015, the Company completed the capital reorganisation as
described in the circular of the Company dated 26 February 2015 (the “2015
Capital Reorganisation”).

The 2015 Capital Reorganisation was approved by the Shareholders by a
special resolution at a special general meeting of the Company held on 23
March 2015 and became effective on 24 March 2015.

Upon the 2015 Capital Reorganisation becoming effective, the board lot size
for trading of the shares of the Company has been changed from 20,000 to
5,000.

As at 31 December 2015 and as at the date of this report, the issued share
capital of the Company was HK$12,345,791.29 divided into 1,234,579,129
shares of HK$0.01 each. Details of the 2015 Capital Reorganisation and
change of board lot size are disclosed in the Company’s announcements
dated 2 February 2015, 17 February 2015 and 23 March 2015, and the
Company’s circular dated 26 February 2015 and notes 36(b)(i) and 36(b)(ii) to
the consolidated financial statements.

Issue of Tranche Il Performance Shares in June 2015

Reference is made to the circular of the Company dated 23 February 2013 (the
“Circular”) in relation to the acquisition of 50.5% of the issued share capital of
Apperience. Unless otherwise defined in this report, capitalised terms used
in this section shall have the same meaning as defined in the Circular. As
disclosed in the Circular, on 15 November 2012, the Company, the Vendors
and the Warrantors entered into the Acquisition Agreement (as supplemented
by a supplemental agreement dated 11 December 2012) pursuant to which
the Company had conditionally agreed to purchase, and the Vendors had
conditionally agreed to sell at the Selling Proportion, the Sale Shares, which
in aggregate represented 50.5% of the issued share capital of Apperience.
Completion of the Acquisition took place on 31 March 2013. The maximum
aggregate amount of the Consideration payable by the Company to the
Vendors shall be HK$548,985,500 (subject to adjustment) which would be
satisfied partly by the creation and issue of the Convertible Notes (and where
applicable) partly by the allotment and issue of the Performance Shares. The
Vendors include Access Magic, Ace Source, Well Peace, Wealthy Hope, IDG-
Accel, IDG-Accel Investors and THL which is a subsidiary of Tencent Holdings
Limited (Sotck code: 700).
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The Directors believed the Acquisition would allow the Group to diversify
into the I.T. business for personal computers and mobiles and increase the
product variety of the Group.

On 6 June 2014, an aggregate of 715,522,718 Tranche | Performance
Shares were allotted and issued, credited as fully paid, by the Company to
the Vendors. In accordance with the TP Audited Accounts Il and a statement
of adjustments in relation to the adjustments of the Target Profit Il by the
Adjusted Items, the Target Profit Il (as adjusted by disregarding the effect
of all the Adjusted Items of US$2,155) of Apperience is US$9,064,485. In
accordance with the Acquisition Agreement, an aggregate of 16,455,916
Tranche Il Performance Shares (having taken into account the effect of the
capital reorganisation of the Company which became effective on 18 July
2014 and 24 March 2015) shall be allotted and issued, credited as fully paid,
by the Company to the Vendors. On 5 June 2015, the Company issued a total
of 16,455,916 Tranche Il Performance Shares.

For the details of issue of Tranche Il Performance Shares (as defined in the
Company’s circular dated 23 February 2013), please refer to note 36(d) to the
consolidated financial statements, the Company’s circular dated 23 February
2013 and the Company’s announcement dated 28 May 2015.

Proposed capital reorganisation and change in board lot size in 2016

For the details of the proposed capital reorganisation and change in board
lot size in 2016, please refer to note 45(a) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2015, the total assets of the Group were approximately
HK$1,434,324,000 (as at 31 December 2014: HK$942,389,000), whereas its
total liabilities were approximately HK$380,503,000 (as at 31 December 2014:
HK$174,513,000). The gearing ratio of the Group, calculated as total liabilities
over total assets, was 26.5% (as at 31 December 2014: 18.5%).

Final dividend

The Directors do not recommend to pay any final dividend for the Year (2014:
Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Charges on the Group’s Assets

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s pledged bank deposits of
approximately US$80,000, HK$1,010,000 and HK$1,000,000 (in aggregate,
approximately HK$2,633,000) represented deposits pledged to banks to
secure banking facilities to the extent of HK$2,500,000 (as at 31 December
2014: HK$1,500,000) granted to the Group. The deposits are in United States
dollars, Hong Kong dollars and Hong Kong dollars with terms of 6 months, 1
month and 1 month and at fixed interest rates of 0.05% per annum, 0.5% per
annum and 0.35% per annum respectively.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had undrawn banking facilities of
approximately HK$2,359,000 (as at 31 December 2014: HK$855,000).

As at 31 December 2015, listed securities held by the Group with a total
carrying amount of approximately HK$429,793,000 (as at 31 December 2014:
HK$42,929,000) were charged in favour of a brokerage firm as collateral
for the Group’s liabilities in respect of its margin trading account. As at 31
December 2015, the Group did not use the credit limit.

Foreign exchange exposure

During the Year, the business activities of the Group were mainly denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars.

United States dollars is the main currency transacted by the Group. Since
Hong Kong dollars remains pegged to the United States dollars within a
defined range, the Group is not exposed to any significant foreign exchange
risk against the United States dollars and has not entered into any foreign
exchange contract as hedging measures. The Directors did not consider
the Group was significantly exposed to any foreign currency exchange risk.
Notwithstanding the above, the Group manages its foreign currency risk
against other currencies by closely monitoring the movement of the foreign
currency rates and may use hedging derivative, such as foreign currency
forward contract, to manage its foreign currency risk as appropriate.

MATERIAL RISK FACTORS
Financial risk

The Group’s AFS Financial Assets and FVTPL Financial Assets are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Therefore, the Group is
exposed to equity security price risk due to the fluctuation of fair value of AFS
Financial Assets and FVTPL financial assets. The Directors regularly review the
exposure to the equity security price risk on AFS Financial Assets and FVTPL
Financial Assets. Details of the Group’s financial risk and analysis are set out
in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Operation risk
GMD

GMD is a registered member of the PIBA to carry out long term (including
linked long term) insurance and general insurance lines of business. The
Insurance and MPF Schemes Brokerage Business may expose the Group
to additional risks, for example, penalty and potential liabilities. This business
relies on the Group’s consultants to carry out the sale function. Although the
Group has provided suitable training to the consultants and adopted suitable
guideline and policy, it cannot rule out the possibility that the consultants, who
are registered with PIBA as technical representatives and engaged by the
Group, may be involved in improper conduct during the process of negotiating
and selling of insurance products and, in some cases, MPF Schemes, which
may expose the Group to liabilities. The Group may also be exposed to
compliance risk as insurance brokerage is a highly regulated industry in Hong
Kong. The Group will need to incur additional costs to ensure compliance
with the relevant rules and regulations. Non-compliance with such rules and
regulations may result in significant penalty or other potential liabilities to the
Group.

Wafer HK

The operation of Wafer HK depends on a limited number of key suppliers
for supply of products. Any disruption to the business or operation of
those suppliers, or to their ability to supply and deliver the products with
merchantable quality and on time, could significantly affect the Group’s
ability to fulfill customers’ demand on a timely basis. As a result, the Group’s
relationships with the customers, sales and results of operations may be
adversely affected. As at the date of this report, the Directors were not aware
of any material adverse change in the relationship between key suppliers and
Wafer HK.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Acquisition of listed shares and issue of new shares under
specific mandate

On 31 July 2015, the Company (as purchaser) entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with China New Economy Fund Limited (“China New
Economy”) (stock code: 80) (as vendor), an independent third party, to
acquire 27,298,000 issued ordinary shares of China Parenting Network
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8361) (“China Parenting”) at the consideration
of HK$60,000,000 which had been satisfied by the Company by the allotment
and issue of 146,699,266 new ordinary shares at the issue price of HK$0.409
per new share (the “Consideration Shares for China Parenting”).
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The sale and purchase agreement and the obligations of the Company to
effect completion were conditional upon:

(a) the Stock Exchange having granted or having agreed to grant and not
having withdrawn or revoked the listing of, and permission to deal in,
the Consideration Shares for China Parenting;

(b)  the passing of the ordinary resolution(s) by the Shareholders (to the
extent they are not prohibited from voting on such resolution(s) under
the GEM Listing Rules) at the special general meeting of the Company
approving the grant of the specific mandate for the allotment and issue
of the Consideration Shares for China Parenting under the sale and
purchase agreement;

() all requisite consents, clearances, authorisations and approvals (or, as
the case may be, the relevant waiver) in connection with the entering
into and the performance of the sale and purchase agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder having been obtained by the
parties thereto;

(d) the consummation of the transactions contemplated pursuant to the
sale and purchase agreement shall not have been restrained, enjoined
or otherwise prohibited by any applicable laws and regulations,
including any order, injunction, decree or judgment of any court or other
governmental authority;

(e) the warranties given by China New Economy set out in the sale and
purchase agreement will remain true and accurate in all respects and
not misleading; and

) the warranties given by the Company set out in the sale and purchase
agreement will remain true and accurate in all respects and not
misleading.

The Company may waive condition (e) set out above at any time before the
long stop date (i.e. 31 October 2015 or such later date as the Company and
China New Economy may agree in writing) by notice in writing to China New
Economy. China New Economy may waive condition (f) set out above at any
time before the long stop date by notice in writing to the Company.

The Directors considered that with (i) the increase in CBM (children, babies,
and maternity) internet population in the PRC who grew up along with the
development of the internet and is accustomed to doing transactions and
obtaining information through online channels; and (i) the proliferation of smart
devices with internet access, China Parenting, which is an online platform
focusing on the CBM market in the PRC, was expected to benefit from such
trend and bring investment return to the Group.

Completion of the acquisition took place on 7 October 2015. Please refer to
note 36(i) to the consolidated financial statements for details.
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Property Acquisition and Disposal of Bonus First

On 8 August 2015, Bonus First Group Limited (“Bonus First”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company at that time, entered into a provisional sale
and purchase agreement in respect of the purchase of a commercial unit in
Central, Hong Kong at a consideration of approximately HK$53,900,000 (the
“Property Acquisition”). Completion of the Property Acquisition took place on
30 September 2015. Details of the Property Acquisition are disclosed in the
announcements of the Company dated 10 August 2015 and 30 September
2015.

On 6 October 2015, the Company (as vendor) entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with AMCO United Holding Limited (as purchaser), an
independent third party, in respect of the disposal of Bonus First. The disposal
represents an opportunity for the Group to realise its investment in Bonus
First, and thereby utilise such financial resources for financing other future
potential investment opportunities and/or working capital of the Group. The
completion of disposal of Bonus First took place on 29 December 2015.
Please refer to note 41(c)(i) to the consolidated financial statements and the
Company’s announcements dated 6 October 2015 and 29 December 2015
for further details.

Apart from those disclosed in the sections headed “Business Review”,
“Acquisition of listed shares and issue of new shares under specific mandate”
and “Property Acquisition and Disposal of Bonus First” of this report, the
Group had no material acquisition or disposal during the Year.

Employees and remuneration policies

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had approximately 88 employees (as
at 31 December 2014: 111 employees) in Hong Kong and the PRC. The
Group continues to maintain and upgrade the capabilities of its workforce by
providing them with adequate and regular training. The Group remunerates its
employees mainly based on industry practices and individual’s performance
and experience. On top of regular remuneration, discretionary bonus and
share options may be granted to eligible staff by reference to the Group’s
performance as well as individual’s performance.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2015, the Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities (as at 31 December 2014: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2015, the capital commitments contributed but not
provided for development costs of intangible assets were approximately
HK$26,586,000 (as at 31 December 2014: HK$21,715,000). Please refer to
note 42(a) to the consolidated financial statements for details.

OUTLOOK

Looking forward, the Software Business is expected to continually be one
of the principal sources of income to the Group. With the increase of stake
in Boom Max, the Directors believe revenue from the Software Business will
continue to contribute significantly to the Group’s income.

Thanks to the success of diversification strategy in products and services
portfolio and development of new sales teams for the promotion of its services
and products, the Insurance and MPF Schemes Brokerage Business yielded
positive results during the Year. The Board is optimistic in the market prospect
and the Group’s business development in the face of increasing investment
needs.

As to the Money Lending Business, acquisition of 51% of the issued share
capital of GEO Finance during the Year has enabled the Group to offer
subordinate property mortgage loan to its customers. Apart from unsecured
personal loans, the Group will continue to develop the market of subordinate
property mortgage loan. During the Year, the Group completed reviewing the
appropriateness and efficiency of internal control procedures of GEO Finance
and updating its internal control procedures as needed.

In the near future, the Group will continue to invest in the prosperous money
lending business in Hong Kong with a view to broadening its customer base
to both individual and corporate customers and to expanding its sources of
income through this business segment. The Group foresees a strong potential
of the mortgage refinancing driven by continuing demand for landed property,
and hence will allocate more resources to expand services portfolio to
subordinate property mortgage loan.

Riding on its intrinsic strength, the Group will continue to build on and reinforce
its advantages by identifying potential investment opportunities in the market
to grasp any potential business opportunities, in order to generating positive
impacts and profit to increase its Shareholders’ value.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEELRE

The Board would like to present this Corporate Governance Report for the
Year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition

The Board currently comprises five members, two executive Directors, namely
Mr. Kuang Hao Kun Giovanni (Chairman of the Board) and Mr. Xue Qiushi (Chief
Executive Officer) and three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Professor Lee T.S., Ms. Xiao Yiming and Professor Chui Tsan Kit. Independent
non-executive Directors are invited to serve on the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”), the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”)
and the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) of the Company.

The composition of the Board reflects the balance of skills and experience
appropriate for the requirements of the Company’s business and for the
exercise of independent decisions. The Company has three independent
non-executive Directors which is more than half of the Board. They are
professionals in different areas and provide independent opinions based on
their expertise.

There is no relationship among members of the Board and the biographies of
the Directors are set out in the section headed “Biographies of Directors and
Senior Management” of this report.

BOARD PRACTICES AND CONDUCT OF MEETINGS

Formal notice of at least 14 days will be given in respect of a regular
meeting. For special Board meeting, reasonable notice will be given.
Directors participated, either in person or through other electronic means of
communication, in the Board meetings.

The Directors meet regularly at least 4 times a year and participate in person
or through other means of communication. All notices of the Board meetings
were given to all Directors, who were given an opportunity to include matters
in the agenda for discussion. All Directors are kept informed on a timely basis
of major changes that may affect the Group’s businesses, including relevant
rules and regulations. The Directors can also seek independent professional
advice in performing their duties at the Company’s expense, if necessary.
Minutes of each Board meeting are kept by the company secretary of the
Company (the “Company Secretary”) and are open for inspection at any
reasonable time on request by any Director.
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Directors’ insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of the
legal action against the Directors.

Responsibilities, accountabilities and contributions of the Board
and management

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the
Company by directing and supervising its affairs. All Directors should make
decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters relating to policy,
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management, material
transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of the Directors and other significant operational
matters of the Company. Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of
the Board, directing and coordinating the daily operation and management of
the Company are delegated to the management.

Attendance of Directors at Meetings

During the Year, 36 Board meetings had been held for reviewing business
performance, considering and approving the overall strategies and policies
of the Company and other business matters. The attendance record of
each Director at the Board and Board Committee meetings and the general
meetings of the Company held during the Year is set out in the table below:
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Executive Directors HiTES
Mr. Kuang Hao Kun Giovanni BEELE 36/36 NATER  NATEA  NATEA 6/6
Mr. Xue Qiushi BNELE 33/36 N/A3E A N/A A3 A N/ATE A 1/6
Independent Non-executive Directors BV FHTES
Ms. Xiao Yiming BBt 36/36 2/2 5/5 2/2 5/6
Professor Chui Tsan Kit HRREHR 1 22/22 1 3/3 1/1 4/5
Professor Lee T.S. FREHR 2 8/8  N/ATEA 11 N/A“RiE A 2/2
Mr. Lam Kit Sun RS 4 3 12/14 1 2/2 1/1 0/1
Mr. Yip Chi Fai Stevens Ex@\rs 4 28/28 2/2 4/4 2/2 0/4
BoOERAR AR/ F3&% 2015 25



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEELRE

Notes:

1. Professor Chui Tsan Kit was appointed as an independent non-executive Director,
the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee with effect from 23 April 2015, and
was re-designated as the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee with effect from 1 September 2015.

2. Professor Lee T.S. was appointed as an independent non-executive Director, the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee
and the Nomination Committee with effect from 1 September 2015.

3. Mr. Lam Kit Sun resigned as an independent non-executive Director, the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee with effect from 23 April 2015.

4. Mr. Yip Chi Fai Stevens resigned as an independent non-executive Director, the
chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee with effect from 1 September 2015.

In addition, the Chairman of the Board has annually held the meeting with
the independent non-executive Director(s) without the presence of executive
Directors during the Year.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are separately held by
Mr. Kuang Hao Kun Giovanni and Mr. Xue Qiushi respectively. The Chairman
provides leadership and is responsible for the effective functioning and
leadership of the Board whereas the Chief Executive Officer focuses on the
Company’s business development and daily management and operations
generally.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the Year, the Board complied at all times with the requirement of the
GEM Listing Rules that at least three independent non-executive Directors sit
in the Board (more than half of the Board members) and at least one of them
has appropriate professional accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors in respect of his/her independence in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the GEM Listing
Rules. As at the date of this report, the Company in its best knowledge
considers all independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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Appointment and re-election of Directors

The Company has established formal, considered and transparent procedures
for the appointment of new Directors.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of
the Directors are laid down in the Company’s bye-laws. According to the
Company’s bye-laws, any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy should be subject to re-election by Shareholders at the first general
meeting after appointment, and any Director appointed by the Board as an
addition to the Board shall be subject to re-election by Shareholders at the
next following annual general meeting after appointment. Other relevant bye-
law states that one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their number
is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-
third, shall retire from office by rotation at every annual general meeting. A
retired Director shall be eligible for re-election. All Directors should retire by
rotation at least once every three years.

Under the Code Provision A.4.1, non-executive Directors should be appointed
for a specific term and subject to re-election. The independent non-executive
Directors are appointed for a specific term: Professor Chui Tsan Kit and Ms.
Xiao Yiming are both appointed for a term of 2 years commencing from 2
January 2015 and 1 September 2015 respectively whereas Professor Lee T.S.
is appointed for a term of 3 years commencing from 23 April 2015. All of them
are subject to retirement by rotation once every three years.

At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, Ms. Xiao Yiming
and Professor Chui Tsan Kit shall retire pursuant to the Company’s bye-
laws as stated in the foregoing paragraph. All the above retiring Directors,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company. The Board and the Nomination Committee
recommended their re-appointment. The Company’s circular, to be sent to the
Shareholders, contains detailed information of the above Directors as required
by the GEM Listing Rules.

Continuous professional development of Directors

The Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a Director and of the conduct,
business activities and development of the Company. Every newly appointed
Director will receive formal, comprehensive and tailored induction on the first
occasion of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of the
business and operations of the Company and full awareness of Director’s
responsibilities and obligations under the GEM Listing Rules and relevant
statutory requirements.
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Besides, the Directors should participate in appropriate continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
Internally facilitated briefings for the Directors will be arranged and reading
materials on relevant topics will be issued to the Directors where appropriate.
All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the
Company’s expenses.

According to the records maintained by the Company, the current and
former Directors received the following training with an emphasis on the roles,
functions and duties of a Director of a listed company in compliance with the
CG Code on continuous professional development during the Year.
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2. Mr. Lam Kit Sun and Mr. Yip Chi Fai Stevens resigned on 23 April 2015 and 1
September 2015 respectively.
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Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is Mr. Lau Siu Cheong. The Company Secretary
assists the Board by ensuring good information flow within the Board so that
Board policy and procedures are followed. He has taken no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional trainings to update his skills and knowledge during the
Year.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The following statements, which set out the responsibility of the Directors in
relation to the financial statements, should be read in conjunction with, but
distinguished from, the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 68 to 69
which acknowledges the reporting responsibility of the Group’s auditor.

Annual report and accounts

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of the annual
report and financial statements of the Company for the Year to ensure that
these financial statements give a true and fair presentation in accordance with
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the applicable accounting standards.
The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concemn.

Accounting policies

The Directors consider that in preparing the financial statements, the Group
applies appropriate accounting policies that are consistently adopted
and makes judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent in
accordance with the applicable accounting standards.

Accounting records

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group keeps accounting
records which disclose the financial position of the Group upon which financial
statements of the Group could be prepared in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policies.

Safeguarding assets
The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary steps to

safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other
irregularities within the Group.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the Year, auditor’s remuneration for audit services was HK$1,400,000
(2014: HK$1,300,000) and non-audit services for the Year was approximately
HK$1,393,000 including but not limited to professional advice on restructuring
and other services. (2014: HK$1,113,000).

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal control system
to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and the Group’s assets and,
with the support of the Audit Committee, for reviewing the effectiveness of
such system on an annual basis.

During the Year under review, the Board has conducted a review and
assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control systems
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management.
External consultant was engaged to assist the Board to perform high-
level review of the internal control systems for its business operations and
processes. Such review covered the financial, compliance and operational
controls as well as risk management mechanisms and assessment was made
by discussions with the management of the Company.

BOARD COMMITTEES/FUNCTIONS

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Remuneration
Committee, Audit Committee and Nomination Committee, for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the
Company are established with defined written terms of reference. The terms
of reference of the Board committees are posted on the Company’s website
and the Stock Exchange’s website. Copies of minutes of all meetings and
resolutions of the committees, which are kept by the Company Secretary, are
circulated to all Board members and the committees are required to report
back to the Board on their decision and recommendations where appropriate.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Professor Lee T.S. (Chairman), Ms. Xiao Yiming and
Professor Chui Tsan Kit.

The main duties of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations on the remuneration policy and structure of, and
determining the specific remuneration packages of, all Directors and senior
management; and establishing transparent procedures for developing such
remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his/her
associates will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration (i.e. the model
described in the Code Provision B.1.2(c)(i) of the CG Code is adopted).

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee has performed the following
major tasks:

o reviewed and made recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
policy and structure of the Company; and

. determined the remuneration packages of the Directors and senior
management.

Details of the Directors’ remuneration and five individuals with highest
emoluments are set out in notes 16 and 15 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

In addition, pursuant to the Code Provision B.1.5, the annual remuneration of
the member of the current senior management of the Group by band for the
Year is set out below:

Remuneration band (HK$)
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Professor Chui Tsan Kit (Chairman), Ms. Xiao Yiming and Professor
Lee T.S.. Professor Chui Tsan Kit possesses the appropriate accounting and
financial management expertise as required under the GEM Listing Rules.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the followings:

() To monitor the control procedures and the disclosures on the reporting
of the Company’s financial statements, and to review and discuss
with external auditor any significant financial reporting standards and
guidelines applied to the financial statements.

(b)  To consider any significant or unusual items that are, or may need
to be, reflected in financial reports and accounts, and give due
consideration to matters raised by the Company’s compliance officer or
external auditor.

(c) To review the relationship with the external auditor by reference to
the work performed by them, their fees and terms of engagement,
and make recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of auditor.

(d)  To review the Company’s financial controls, internal control and risk
management systems.

(e) To review Company’s arrangements to enable employees to raise, in
confidence, concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters of the Company.

During the Year, the Audit Committee has reviewed the financial results
and reports, financial reporting and compliance procedures, report on the
Company’s internal control and risk management review and processes and
the re-appointment of external auditor and arrangements for employees to
raise concerns about possible improprieties. The Audit Committee also met
the external auditor twice without the presence of the executive Directors.
Besides, there is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee regarding the re-appointment of external auditor.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Ms. Xiao Yiming (Chairman), Professor Chui Tsan Kit and
Professor Lee T.S..

The main duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the structure,
size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board on a regular basis and recommending any changes to the Board;
identifying qualified and suitable individuals to become Board members
and selecting and making recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships; assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors; and making recommendations to the
Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors and succession planning for Directors in particular, the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee would take
into account various aspects set out in the Board diversity policy adopted
by the Company on 30 August 2013 (the “Board Diversity Policy”). The
measurable objectives set for implementing the policy are that selection of
candidates for appointment as a Director will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skill, knowledge and length of
services. The ultimate decision will be based on merits and contribution that
the selected candidates will bring to the Board. The Nomination Committee
considers an appropriate balance of diversity perspective of the Board is
maintained.

In selecting candidates for directorship of the Company, the Nomination
Committee may make reference to certain criteria such as the Company’s
needs, the integrity, experience, skills and professional knowledge of the
candidate and the amount of time and effort that the candidate will devote
to discharge his/her duties and responsibilities, as well as the objective of
the Board Diversity Policy adopted by the Company. External recruitment
professionals might be engaged to carry out selection process when
necessary.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee has performed the following major
tasks:

o made recommendation to the Board on the appointment of Professor
Chui Tsan Kit and Professor Lee T.S. as the Director and changes in
the composition in the Board Committees;

o reviewed the Board’s composition under diversified perspectives and
the Board Diversity Policy to ensure the appropriateness in determining
the optimum composition of the Board; and

o assessed the independence of all the independent non-executive
Directors.
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An analysis of the Board’s current composition is set out in the following chart:

No. of Directors

BEEAH
6 —

0
General Designation Ethnicity Nationality
—% o &k BlFE

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the Code
Provision D.3.1. The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional development of
the Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the
GEM Listing Rules, and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND RELEVANT EMPLOYEES’
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has relied on Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as the
required standard of dealings (the “Required Standard of Dealing”) in respect
to any dealings in the Company’s securities by the Company’s Directors and
relevant employees. Specific enquiries have been made to all Directors and
they all confirmed they had complied with the Required Standard of Dealings
during the Year. No incident of non-compliance of the Required Standard of
Dealings by the relevant employees was noted by the Company during the
Year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution is
proposed for each substantially separate issue at Shareholders’ meetings,
including the election of individual Directors. According to the GEM Listing
Rules, all resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meetings will be voted on by
poll and poll results will be posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company after each shareholders’ meeting.

Set out below are the procedures for members to make proposals at general
meeting other than a proposal of a person for election as Directors.

Procedures for members to make proposals at general meeting
other than a proposal of a person for election as Director

The following procedures are subject to the Company’s bye-laws, the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and applicable legislation and regulation.

1. The Company holds an annual general meeting every year, and may
hold a general meeting known as a special general meeting whenever
necessary.

2. Member(s) of the Company holding (i) not less than one-twentieth of the
total voting rights of all members having the right to vote at the general
meeting; or (i) not less than 100 members, can submit a written request
stating the resolution intended to be moved at the annual general
meeting; or a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to
the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business to be
dealt with at a particular general meeting.

3. The written request/statements must be signed by the member(s)
concerned and deposited at the Company’s registered office at
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and its
principal office at Room 1703, 17/F, Harcourt House, 39 Gloucester
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for the attention of the Company Secretary
of the Company, not less than six weeks before the annual general
meeting in the case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution and
not less than one week before the general meeting in the case of any
other requisition.
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4. If the written request is in order, the Company Secretary will ask the
Board (i) to include the resolution in the agenda for the annual general
meeting; or (i) to circulate the statement for the general meeting,
provided that the member(s) concerned have deposited a sum of money
reasonably determined by the Board sufficient to meet the Company’s
expenses in serving the notice of the resolution and/or circulating the
statement submitted by the member(s) concerned in accordance
with the statutory requirements to all the registered members. On the
contrary, if the requisition is invalid or the member(s)concerned have
failed to deposit sufficient money to meet the Company’s expenses
for the said purposes, the member(s) concermned will be advised of this
outcome and accordingly, the proposed resolution will not be included
in the agenda for the annual general meeting; or the statement will not
be circulated for the general meeting.

The following are the procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director.

Procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election as
a Director

The following procedures are subject to the Company’s bye-laws, the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and applicable legislation and regulation.

If a member, who is duly qualified to attend and vote at the general meeting
convened to deal with appointment/election of Director(s), wishes to propose
a person (other than the member himself/herself) for election as a Director at
that meeting, he/she can deposit a written notice at the Company’s principal
office at Room 1703, 17/F, Harcourt House, 39 Gloucester Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong, for the attention of the Company Secretary.

In order for the Company to inform all members of that proposal, the written
notice must state the full name of the person proposed for election as a
Director, his/her biographical details as required by rule 17.50(2) of the GEM
Listing Rules, and be signed by the member concerned and that person
indicating his/her willingness to be elected.

The period for lodgment of such a written notice will commence on the day
after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting and end no later
than seven (7) days prior to the date of such general meeting. If the notice
is received less than fifteen (15) business days prior to that general meeting,
the Company will need to consider adjournment of the general meeting in
order to (i) assess the suitability of the proposed candidate; and (i) publish an
announcement or circulate a supplementary circular in relation to the proposal
to the members at least fourteen (14) clear days and not less than ten (10)
business days prior to the general meeting.

Detailed procedures for the Shareholders to propose a person for election as
a Director are available on the Company’s website.
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Procedures for Shareholders to convene a special general
meeting

The following procedures are subject to the Company’s bye-laws, the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and applicable legislation and regulation.

The Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition sent to the Company'’s registered office at Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and its principal office at Room
1703, 17/F, Harcourt House, 39 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for
the attention of the Company Secretary, to require a special general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after
the deposit of such requisition. If the Board does not within twenty-one (21)
days from the date of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a
meeting, the requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one half of
the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a meeting, but
any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three months
from the said date.

Procedures for sending enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, Shareholders may send written
enquiries to the Board of Directors/Company Secretary at the Company’s
principal office. For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholder(s) must deposit and
send the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry
(as the case may be) to the Company’s principal office and provide their full
name, contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto. The
Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.

The Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general
meetings of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The Board has adopted a Shareholders’ Communication Policy reflecting
mostly the current practices of the Company for communication with its
Shareholders. Such policy aims at providing the Shareholders and potential
investors with ready and timely access to balanced and understandable
information of the Company. Such policy will be reviewed by the Company
regularly to ensure its effectiveness and compliance with the prevailing
regulatory and other requirements.
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The Company has established a number of channels for maintaining on
ongoing dialogue with its Shareholders as follows:

(i) corporate communications such as annual reports, interim reports,
quarterly reports, notices of meetings, listing documents and circulars
are issued in printed form and are available on the Stock Exchange’s
website at www.hkex.com.hk and the Company’s website at www.
geth.com.hk in a timely and consistent manner as required by the GEM
Listing Rules;

(ii) corporate information and the memorandum of continuance and bye-
laws of the Company are made available on the Company’s website;

(i) periodic announcements are made through the Stock Exchange and
published on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company;

(iv)  annual general meeting and special general meetings provide a forum
for the Shareholders to make comments and exchange views with the
Directors and senior management; and

(v) the Company’s share registrar serves the Shareholders in respect of

share registration, dividend payment, change of the Shareholders’
particulars and related matters.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during the
Year.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. Kuang Hao Kun Giovanni (“Mr. Kuang”), aged 50, was appointed as
an executive Director, compliance officer and the chairman of the Company
since June 2014. He obtained a Bachelor Degree of Economics from LA Trob
University in Australia and is a member of the CPA Australia. He was appointed
as a director of corporate development of the Company since October 2012
and is also the director of some of the subsidiaries within the Group including
but not limited to Jade Fore Group Limited which holds 65.177% of the issued
share capital of Boom Max, Lucky Famous Limited and Citi Profit Holdings
Limited. Mr. Kuang has over 20 years of experience in investor relations and
equity capital markets. In accordance with the letter of appointment entered
into between the Company and Mr. Kuang, Mr. Kuang would serve as an
executive Director for an initial term of three years commencing on 9 June
2014 and is subject to retirement from office and re-election in accordance
with the bye-laws of the Company.

Mr. Xue Qiushi (“Mr. Xue”), aged 31, has been appointed as an executive
Director and the chief executive officer of the Company since July 2013. Mr.
Xue is a co-founder and a director of Apperience Corporation (“Apperience”) (a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company) and has served as its director
and president since March 2011. Prior to the founding of Apperience and its
subsidiaries in 2011, Mr. Xue served as the president of fk #f 2 £ {2 2 £l
AR A &) (Chengdu AOBI Information Technology Co., Ltd.) from November
2008 to March 2011, where he was responsible for its business operations
and research and development. Mr. Xue received his bachelor’s degree in
computer science and technology from the University of Electronic Science
and Technology of China (& F & X £) in July 2007. In accordance with
the letter of appointment made between Mr. Xue and the Company, Mr.
Xue has been appointed for a term of three years commencing from 5 July
2013 to 4 July 2016 and is subject to retirement from office and re-election in
accordance with the bye-laws of the Company. Mr. Xue is also a director of
Ace Source which has an interest in the share capital of the Company under
Part XV of the SFO.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Professor Chui Tsan Kit (“Professor Chui”), aged 47, joined the Company
since April 2015. Professor Chui obtained a Postgraduate Diploma in Finance
(with Distinction) from The Chinese University of Hong Kong, a Master of
Business Administration Degree from The Chinese University of Hong Kong,
a Master of Science Degree in Engineering (Electronic Commerce) from
The University of Hong Kong, a Master of Science Degree in Investment
Management from The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology
and a Master of Laws Degree in Chinese Business Law from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. He is also a Certified Financial Consultant of The
Institute of Financial Consultants and a Chartered Wealth Manager of the
International Academy of Financial Management. He was an honorary assistant
professor of the Department of Computer Science, Faculty of Engineering
at The University of Hong Kong and an adjunct associate professor of the
Department of Marketing, Faculty of Business Administration at The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. Professor Chui was the director of Investment
Services of ICBC International Holdings Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited (Stock Code: 1398) whose
shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange from January
2010 to December 2010. Professor Chui was the Head of Warrant Marketing
of Bank of China (HK) Ltd, a wholly-owned subsidiary of BOC Hong Kong
(Holdings) Limited (Stock Code: 2388) whose shares are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange from October 2007 to February 2009. He was
also the Head of Wealth Management of China Galaxy International Financial
Holdings Company Limited and the Chief Executive Officer of China Galaxy
International Wealth Management (Hong Kong) Co., Limited, both being
wholly-owned subsidiaries of China Galaxy Securities Co., Ltd. whose shares
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 6881) from
October 2012 to May 2014. From July 2005 to September 2007, Professor
Chui was also the Associate Director of Retail Operations and the director of
Investment Education of Sun Hung Kai Financial Limited, a subsidiary of Sun
Hung Kai & Co. Limited (Stock Code: 86) whose shares are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. Professor Chui is currently the Chief Strategic
Officer of Zhongtai Financial International Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Zhongtai Securities Co., Ltd. (State-owned securities firm in China), and
the Managing Director of Zhongtai International Wealth Management Ltd.
He is also an independent non-executive director of GR Properties Limited
(stock code: 108), shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. In accordance with the letter of appointment entered into
between the Company and Professor Chui, Professor Chui would serve as
an independent non-executive Director for a term of two years commencing
from 23 April 2015 and is subject to retirement from office and re-election in
accordance with the bye-laws of the Company.
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Professor Lee T.S. (“Professor. Lee”), aged 67, joined the Company since
September 2015. Professor Lee obtained a Bachelor of Science Degree
in Electronic Engineering and a Master of Science Degree in Management
Science from The Chiao-Tung University, Taiwan, a Master of Business
Administration Degree and a Doctor of Philosophy Degree in Operations
Management from The University of Missouri-Columbia, the United States
of America. He was the Chairman and Associate Professor of Management
at The University of Utah, the United States of America, a Senior Lecturer,
Professor and the Chairman of the Department of Decision Sciences &
Managerial Economics at The Chinese University of Hong Kong and a
Professor and the Dean of the Faculty of Business Administration at The
Chinese University of Hong Kong. He was the Vice-President (Academic
& Research), Professor and Programme Director and the Head of the
Department of Supply Chain and Information Management at The Hang Seng
Management College, Hong Kong. He is currently the Professor Emeritus of
the Department of Supply Chain and Information Management at The Hang
Seng Management College, Hong Kong. He is also certified in Production and
Inventory Management and a member of Beta Gamma Sigma. He is also the
Chair Professor at Feng China University, Taiwan. Professor Lee is currently an
independent non-executive director of Embry Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
1388) whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. In
accordance with the letter of appointment entered into between the Company
and Professor Lee, Professor Lee would serve as an independent non-
executive Director for a term of three years commencing from 1 September
2015 and is subject to retirement from office and re-election in accordance
with the bye-laws of the Company.

Ms. Xiao Yiming (“Ms. Xiao”), aged 35, joined the Company since January
2014. Ms. Xiao graduated from the Harbin Institute of Technology with a
bachelor’s degree in Business Administration in Management. Ms. Xiao
has over 10 years’ experience in the field of public relations. Ms. Xiao was
a senior manager of investor relations of a hotel chain in China. She was a
consultant of corporate communications and investor relations of a subsidiary
(“PR Company”) of a company whose shares are listed on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange and whose subsidiaries are principally engaged in, among
others, the provision of advertising and public relations services. Ms. Xiao is
currently the chief representative of the Beijing Representative Office of the
PR Company and is responsible for offering consulting services in corporate
communications and investor relations to companies listed in Hong Kong
as well as to clients in initial public offering projects. The PR Company has
been providing consulting services in corporate communications and investor
relations to the Group since 2012. Nevertheless, Ms. Xiao is not a director,
partner or principal of the PR Company and Ms. Xiao is not or has not been
involved in providing such consulting services to the Group. In accordance
with the letter of appointment entered into between the Company and Ms.
Xiao, Ms. Xiao would serve as an independent non-executive Director for a
term of two years commencing on 2 January 2016 and is subject to retirement
from office and re-election in accordance with the bye-laws of the Company.
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SR kENEEEGE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lau Siu Cheong (“Mr. Lau”), aged 42, was appointed as (i) the
Company Secretary; (i) the Authorised Representative and (iii) Financial
Controller of the Company since 1 August 2013. Mr. Lau obtained a Bachelor
of Commerce (Accounting) degree from the Curtin University of Technology
in 1999. He is a member of the CPA Australia and Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lau has been the finance manager of the
Company since January 2010 and is principally responsible for, among others,
the overall financial management, financial planning and budgetary control of
the Group and carrying out company secretarial functions of the Group. He
is also director and company secretary of some of the subsidiaries within the
Group. Mr. Lau has over 15 years of experience in finance and accounting.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors are pleased to present this report of the Directors together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 30 July 2001
and continued in Bermuda with limited liability on 9 January 2014 (Bermuda
time). Its shares have been listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange since 31
December 2001, and the head office and principal place of business in Hong
Kong is at Room 1703, 17/F, Harcourt House, 39 Gloucester Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company while the Group is
principally engaged in (1) research and development and distribution of
personal computer performance software, anti-virus software, mobile phone
applications and toolbar advertisement, (2) provision of website development
services, e-learning products and services, (3) investment in securities,
(4) money lending business, (5) provision of insurance and MPF Schemes
brokerage services and (6) provision of corporate management solutions
and I.T. contract services during the Year. Other particulars of its principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 70 to 203 of this report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any final dividend for the
Year (2014: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group during the Year, particulars of
important events affecting the Group during the Year, an analysis of the
Group’s performance using financial key performance indicators, and an
indication of likely future developments in the Group’s business are provided
in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of this report respectively and note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements. Description of the principal risks and uncertainties
faced by the Group can be found throughout this report, particularly in the
section headed “Material Risks Factors” of this report. Also, the financial risk
management of the Company can be found in the note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements. In addition, discussions on the Group’s relationships with
its key stakeholders are also provided in the section headed “Relationships
with employees, suppliers and customers” of this report. These discussions
form part of this report of the Directors.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance by business segment and its
geographical segment information for the Year is set out in note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to environment protection and sustainable
development through promoting and adopting green practices in its
business activities. Initiatives within the Group include, but not limited to,
waste reduction by double side printing and separating recyclable paper,
green procurement by avoiding single-use disposable items and using
office equipment with Energy Label issued by the Electrical and Mechanical
Services Department, and energy reduction by switching off idle electronic
appliances. The Group will continually review its green practices to integrate
environmental, health and safety management and compliance considerations
into operational processes. Promoting green awareness amongst and
maintaining dialogue with employees and business partners, the Group is
determined to improve environmental performance of the daily business
operations towards establishing a sustainable environment.

DONATIONS

Charitable donations and other donations made by the Group during the Year
amounted to approximately HK$65,000.

SHARES ISSUED DURING THE YEAR

Details of the shares issued by the Company during the Year are set out in
note 36 to the consolidated financial statements and the sections headed
“Acquisition of listed shares and issue of new shares under specific mandate”,
“Financial Review — Placing of new shares under general mandate”, “Financial
Review — Issue of Tranche Il Performance Shares in June 2015”, “Financial
Review — Rights Issue” and “Connected Transactions — Acquisition of
14.677% interest of Boom Max” of this report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
Placing of new shares under general mandate

Details of the placing of new shares under general mandate are set out in
note 36(h) to the consolidated financial statements and in the section headed
“Financial Review — Placing of new shares under general mandate” of this
report.

Acquisition of listed shares and issue of new shares under specific mandate

Details of the acquisition of listed shares and issue of new shares under
specific mandate are set out in note 36(i) to the consolidated financial
statements and the sections headed “Business Review — Securities
Investment Business” and “Acquisition of listed shares and issue of new
shares under specific mandate” of this report.
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Issue of consideration shares and convertible notes for the part of
consideration of the acquisition of 14.677% interest of Boom Max

Details of issue of consideration shares and convertible notes are set out in
notes 36(j) and 32(b) to the consolidated financial statements respectively
and in the sections headed “Business Review — Software Business” and
“Connected Transactions — Acquisition of 14.677% Interest of Boom Max” of
this report.

Performance Shares

Details of issue of performance shares are set out in notes 36(d) to the
consolidated financial statements and in the section headed “Financial Review
— Issue of Tranche Il Performance Shares in June 2015” of this report.

Share Options

Details of the share options granted during the Year is set out in note 39 to
the consolidated financial statements and in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” of this report. No options were exercised and accordingly no shares
were issued under the Share Option Scheme (as defined below) during the
Year.

Save as disclosed above, there has been no issue or exercise of any
convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights during the Year.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 74 of this report and in note 37(b) to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the acquisitions/disposals of subsidiaries during the Year are set out
in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements and the section headed
“Property Acquisition and Disposal of Bonus First” of this report.

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015 are
set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2015, the reserves available for distribution to owners of
the Company was approximately HK$553,280,000.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s bye-laws,
or the laws of the Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

AMOUNT DUE FROM/TO THE DIRECTORS

Except for the director’s fee payable, the amount due from Ace Source
International Limited (“Ace Source”), which is wholly owned by Mr. Xue, was
approximately HK$83,000 as at 31 December 2015.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

Details of the principal properties held for investment purposes during the Year
are set out in note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

DEBENTURES ISSUED FOR THE YEAR

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has issued loan notes to independent
third parties in an aggregate principal amount of approximately
HK$212,500,000 including the Feb 2015 Notes, Jun 2015 Notes and Aug
2015 Notes. Details of issue of notes are set out in note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements and in the section headed “Liquidity, financial resources
and capital structure” of this report.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has issued the Boom Max Convertible
Notes (as defined below) to the Boom Max Vendors. Details of such issue are
set out in the sections headed “Business Review — Software Business” and
“Connected Transactions — Acquisition of 14.677% interest of Boom Max” of
this report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of the Group’s total turnover for the Year attributable to the
Group’s major customers are as follows:

Turnover
— the largest customer: 6.8%

— five largest customers in aggregate: 26.6%
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The percentages of Group’s purchases for the Year attributable to the Group’s
major suppliers are as follows:

Purchases
— the largest supplier: 25.8%
— five largest suppliers in aggregate: 52.6%

As far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors, their close associates
or any Shareholder (which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owned more
than 5% of the Company’s issued shares) has any interest in any of the
Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS AND
CUSTOMERS

The Group understands that employees are valuable assets. The Group
provides competitive remuneration package to attract and motivate the
employees. The Group regularly reviews the remuneration package of
employees and makes necessary adjustments to conform to the market
standard.

The Group’s business is built on a customer-oriented culture. The Group also
understands that it is important to maintain good relationship with its suppliers
and customers to fulfil its immediate and long-term goals. To maintain its
market competitiveness within the industry, the Group aims at delivering
constantly high standards of quality in the service to its customers. During the
year under review, there was no material and significant dispute between the
Group and its suppliers and/or customers.

According to the credit rating of different customers, the Group allows a
credit period from O days to 90 days to customers. In extending credit terms
to customers, the Group will carefully assess creditworthiness and financial
standing of each individual customer. Management will also closely monitor all
outstanding debts and review their collectability periodically.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of bank and other borrowings of the Group are set out in notes 30 and
35 to the consolidated financial statements.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the particulars of the Group’s important events affecting the Group
after the reporting period are set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Material Risk Factors” of this report
and note 45 to the consolidated financial statements, the Board has not
identified any important events affecting the Group that have occurred since
the end of the Year.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the Year, the Company was not aware of any non-compliance with any
relevant laws and regulations that had a significant impact on it.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
audited financial statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set out on page
204 of this report. This summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Issue of the Jun 2015 Notes

On 26 June 2015, the Company as issuer and GEO Securities Limited (“GEQ”)
as placing agent entered into a placing agreement in relation to the placing
of the June 2015 Notes on a best endeavour basis. Pursuant to the placing
agreement, a placing commission of 5% of the aggregate placing price of the
June 2015 Notes subscribed for or purchased by the placees, shall be payable
by the Company to GEO. As the sole shareholder of GEO is also a director
and a substantial shareholder of GEO Finance, which is a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, the payment of the placing commission by the
Company to GEO constitutes a connected transaction for the Company and
is subject to the reporting and announcement requirements under Chapter
20 of the GEM Listing Rules, and is exempted from the circular, independent
financial advice and shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 20 of
the GEM Listing Rules. Please refer to the section headed “Financial Review
— Issue of the 10% per annum notes in an aggregate principal amount of up
to HK$30,000,000” of this report, note 35(b) to the condensed consolidated
financial statements, and the Company’s announcements dated 26 June
2015, 3 August 2015, 17 August 2015, 1 September 2015, 15 September
2015, 2 October 2015, 16 November 2015 and 15 December 2015 for further
details.
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Acquisition of 14.677% Interest of Boom Max

On 13 August 2015, the Company as purchaser, the Boom Max Vendors
and the Boom Max Warrantors entered into a conditional sale and purchase
agreement (as varied and supplemented by a supplemental agreement dated
16 September 2015, collectively the “Boom Max Acquisition Agreement”) in
relation to the acquisition of 14.677% of the equity interest in Boom Max at a
consideration of HK$180,416,400. Consideration of such acquisition payable
by the Company comprises (i) a cash payment of HK$30,000,000; (i) the issue
of the convertible notes in the principal amount of HK$75,208,200 conferring
rights to the holders thereof for shares of the Company at an initial conversion
price of HK$0.30 per such conversion share (the “Boom Max Convertible
Notes”); and (iii) the allotment and issue of, credited as fully paid, a total of
250,693,999 ordinary shares of the Company at an issue price of HK$0.30
each (the “Boom Max Consideration Shares”).

As Access Magic Limited (“Access Magic”), one of the Boom Max Vendors,
is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Dong Yuguo (“Mr. Dong”), who is
a director of some of the subsidiaries of the Company, Access Magic is
an associate of Mr. Dong. As Ace Source, one of the Boom Max Vendors,
is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Xue, who is an executive Director,
the chief executive officer of the Company and a director of some of the
subsidiaries of the Company, Ace Source is an associate of Mr. Xue. Each of
Access Magic, Ace Source, Mr. Xue and Mr. Dong is a connected person of
the Company, such acquisition therefore constitutes a connected transaction
for the Company which is subject to the circular, independent financial advice
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 20 of
the GEM Listing Rules.

The completion of the acquisition was subject to the fulfilment or (if applicable)
waiver of the following conditions:

(1) the passing of ordinary resolution(s) by the Shareholders (who are not
required to abstain from voting in such respect under the GEM Listing
Rules or otherwise) at the special general meeting of the Company
approving the terms of the Boom Max Acquisition Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder including () the acquisition by
the Company of the 14.677% of the issued shares of Boom Max; (i) the
terms of the instrument constituting the Boom Max Convertible Notes
and the creation and issue of the Boom Max Convertible Notes and the
allotment and issue of the conversion shares pursuant to the exercise of
the conversion rights attaching to the Boom Max Convertible Notes; (iii)
the allotment and issue of the Boom Max Consideration Shares and (iv)
all other transactions contemplated under the Boom Max Acquisition
Agreement;

(2)  the Stock Exchange granting the listing of, and permission to deal in,
the conversion shares and the Boom Max Consideration Shares;

(8)  the completion of the Restructuring (as defined in the Company’s
circular dated 23 November 2015) having taken place;

(4) all necessary consents, approvals, waivers and authorisations required
to be obtained by the parties thereto in respect of the Boom Max
Acquisition Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby
having been obtained;
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(6)  the consummation of the transactions contemplated pursuant to the
Boom Max Acquisition Agreement shall not have been restrained,
enjoined or otherwise prohibited by any applicable laws and regulations,
including any order, injunction, decree or judgment of any court or other
governmental authority;

(6) the Company being satisfied that, from the date of the Boom Max
Acquisition Agreement and at any time up to the completion date, that
the representations, warranties and undertakings given by the Boom
Max Vendors and the Boom Max Warrantors remain true, accurate and
not misleading and that no events have occurred that would result in
any breach of any of the representations, warranties and undertakings
given by the Boom Max Vendors and the Boom Max Warrantors or
other provisions of the Boom Max Acquisition Agreement by the Boom
Max Vendors and the Boom Max Warrantors; and

(7)  the Company having obtained the business valuation showing the fair
value of the Boom Max Group as at 30 June 2015 of not less than
HK$1,200,000,000.

None of the above conditions (other than the condition set out in (6)) is capable
of being waived by any party to the Boom Max Acquisition Agreement. The
Company may waive the condition set out in (6) in whole or in part by notice in
writing to the Boom Max Vendors and in waiving such condition, the Company
may, in its absolute discretion, impose such other conditions to such waiver.

Completion of the acquisition took place on 31 December 2015. Please
refer to the sections headed “Business Review — Software Business” and
“Directors’ Interests in Contracts or Arrangements” of this report, notes 36(j)
and 44(b) to the condensed consolidated financial statements, the Company’s
announcements dated 13 August 2015, 16 September 2015, 16 October
2015, 6 November 2015, 15 December 2015 and 31 December 2015, the
Company’s circular dated 23 November 2015 for further details.
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Upon full conversion of the Boom Max Convertible Notes, 250,693,999
ordinary shares of the Company will be allotted and issued. For illustration
purposes only, the effect on the shareholding of the Boom Max Vendors and
Shareholders as at 31 December 2015, assuming the Boom Max Convertible
Notes are converted in full at the initial conversion price of HK$0.30 per
conversion share is as follows:

As at 31 December 2015

EREWRE

Boom Max 7] #2 % 22 45 7 76 8 5 0 18 - #5 Bo 8 R B AT
250,693,999 R AN A LB - ERMHAARME - BE
Boom Max AT H2 AR ZE 32 4] 20 AR (B AR AR 15 0.30 B 7T
ERH AR - ¥ Boom Max B A KRR T —AF+=A
=+—BATRRENZENT

Upon full conversion of
the Boom Max Convertible
Notes at the initial
conversion price
Boom Max T2 R E &

R=E-AF+=A=+-H BOSHBRBERTHLRE
Number of  Percentage % Number of  Percentage %
shares (Note 1) shares  (Notes 1 and 2)
B 77k (%) B 77t (%)
B2 (HtiF1) R &8 (Biat1k2)
Access Magic Access Magic 89,673,322 7.26 176,099,398 11.86
Ace Source Ace Source 150,655,300 12.20 296,710,183 19.98
Well Peace Global Limited Well Peace Global
Limited 9,918,290 0.80 19,024,810 1.28
Wealthy Hope Limited Wealthy Hope Limited 9,918,290 0.80 19,024,810 1.28
Wise Action Limited BRERLH 40,960,788 3.32 40,960,788 2.76
Fastek Investments Limited Fastek Investments
Limited 118,600,000 9.61 118,600,000 7.99
Other public Shareholders LN E 814,853,139 66.00 814,853,139 54.86
1,234,579,129 100.00 1,485,273,128 100.00
Notes: I
1. The shareholding percentage is calculated based on the then number of issued 1. BEAS L IER - E—AF+ - A=+ BERBHNART
shares of the Company of 1,234,579,129 as at 31 December 2015. BT BB 1,234,579, 129 f% 7T & -
2. The shareholding percentage is calculated based on the number of issued shares 2. &4 B 5t 542 Boom Max A IR SRR IR ) 20 H IR B R A

of the Company upon full conversion of the Boom Max Convertible Notes at the
initial conversion price of HK$0.30 per conversion share.

3. The total percentage may not add up to 100% due to rounding.

As at the date of this report, no Boom Max Convertible Notes were converted
into shares of the Company.

As at 31 December 2015, the principal amount of the Boom Max Convertible
Notes was HK$75,208,200, representing approximately 13.9% and 35.1%
of the consolidated net current asset and cash and cash equivalents of the
Group as at 31 December 2015 respectively. Taking into account the financial
and liquidity position of the Group, the Directors believe that the Group has
the ability to meet its redemption obligations under the terms and conditions
of the Boom Max Convertible Notes.

030/ TLEBZULIREMA AR D BITIRNBEAE -
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The analysis of the Company’s share price at which it would be equally HERHE A TFTHEHNESLOHREHIEG ALK
financially advantageous for the noteholders to convert the Boom Max  Boom Max Al Z 518 E AR EH HEZ IS A
Convertible Notes based on its implied rate of return at a range of dates in the NATIPEEBONT -
future is set out below:

Implied rate of
Conversion dates for the analysis Share price return of noteholder

EEFEA

BT K B RE®RT BEERE
31-Dec-2016 —E-RF+=ZA=+—H 0.2866 4.69%*
31-Dec-2017 —T—+F+=-A=+—H 0.3000 4.69%*

* Assumption: Hong Kong 2-Year Government Bond Yield is 0.523%.
Trendmode Acquisition

On 1 April 2015, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement
in relation to the Trendmode Acquisition. As the vendor is the spouse of a
substantial shareholder and director of a subsidiary of the Company, namely
GEO Finance (51% of its issued share capital was acquired by the Group
in March 2015), the vendor is a connected person of the Company at the
subsidiary level and the Trendmode Acquisition is on normal commercial
terms, the Trendmode Acquisition also constitutes a connected transaction for
the Company under the GEM Listing Rules and is exempted from the circular,
independent financial advice and shareholders’ approval requirements.

Since the financial performance of Trendmode and its subsidiaries as revealed
by the due diligence review conducted by the Company against Trendmode
and its subsidiaries did not meet the expectation of the Company, the
Directors considered that one of the conditions was not capable of being
fulfilled. On 22 December 2015, the Trendmode Acquisition was terminated in
accordance with the terms of the agreement.

Details of the Trendmode Acquisition are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 2 February 2015, 1 April 2015, 8 May 2015, 22 May
2015, 8 June 2015, 19 June 2015, 13 July 2015, 30 September 2015 and
22 December 2015, the Company’s circular dated 22 June 2015 and the
section headed “Business Review — Insurance and MPF Schemes Brokerage
Business” of this report.

Other related party transactions disclosed in note 44 to the consolidated
financial statements also constitute connected transactions entered into or
continued by the Group during the Year and are regarded as an “exempted
transaction” and a “de minimis transaction”, respectively, pursuant to the GEM
Listing Rules. The Directors confirmed that the Company has complied with
the disclosure and requirements in accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules.
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COMPETING INTEREST

None of the Directors, nor their respective close associates had any interest in
a business, apart from the business of the Group, which competes or is likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the bu siness of the Group during
the Year.

DIRECTORS

The changes of the Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report
are:

EREWRE

BEER

REFER  HEEFARESBZETHEALMEME
REEEBERARZBRRATEBRBFER (REEX
TERRON) o BB (E (A A AR

=

RAEFERBERREAH  EEEHNT

Appointed on Resigned/Retired on

RUTBHEZEE R BEBHME B
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Kuang Hao Kun Giovanni (Chairman) BB A (/) 9 June 2014
—E-NFRANA
Mr. Xue Qiushi (Chief Executive Officer) EEIKE ok (TTBAEE) 5 July 2013
—E—=FtAAA
Independent Non-executive Directors BIUFHTES
Ms. Xiao Yiming H—ISzt 17 January 2014
—E—MF—HA+tH
Professor Chui Tsan Kit IR 23 April 2015
—E-hFMA=-+=H
Professor Lee T.S. EREHIR 1 September 2015
—E-RFNA—H
Mr. Lam Kit Sun BT S A& 2 October 2013 23 April 2015
—E—=F+A=H —Z-hFMAZ=+=H
Mr. Yip Chi Fai Stevens EEEAEE 2 January 2014 1 September 2015
—ZE-mE—-HZH —T-RFENA—A

Pursuant to Bye-Law 84 of the Company’s bye-laws, at each annual general
meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is
not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not less than one-third)
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject
to retirement at least once every three years. The retiring Directors shall be
eligible for re-election. Ms. Xiao Yiming and Professor Chui Tsan Kit will retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

RIBARBMRBMAFEAG  REERRBFAS L
BER=0MES(IMESABAIF=QMEH AR
BOREALR=n W ABFE) ARERE  HELES
ABRLB=FHERTI R REEFTAEREEBIE -
B IS RIFREHR BN EERRBFERGRE  EWR
ENAERLREERBIE -

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EEREREEELGE

BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the HEERAQATSHATEEHFEDLE SN ABREFE9E42
Company are set out on pages 39 to 42 of this report. B o
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EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group are set out in notes 16 and 15 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively. Remuneration packages of the Directors
are determined by the Board, upon recommendation of the Remuneration
Committee, with reference to their respective background, experience, duties
and responsibilities with the Group and the prevailing market conditions.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company confirmed that annual confirmations of independence were
received from each of the existing independent non-executive Directors
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of GEM Listing Rules and all existing independent non-
executive Directors are considered to be independent by the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

All of the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with the Company’s
bye-laws and the GEM Listing Rules.

The emoluments of the executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors are determined by the Board and to be authorised by the
Shareholders at the annual general meeting with reference to their respective
background, experience, duties and responsibilities with the Group and the
prevailing market conditions.

Apperience has entered into a service agreement with Mr. Xue for his
appointment as the deputy president of Apperience for a term of 3 years
commencing from 5 July 2013. The service contract may be terminated by not
less than 3 months notice in writing served by either party expiring at the end
of the initial term or at any time thereafter. Mr. Xue is one of the directors and
shareholders of Apperience and indirectly holds approximately 18.79% of the
issued shares of Apperience.

Save as disclosed above, no Director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Group were entered into or existed
during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OR
ARRANGEMENTS

A copyright licence agreement (the “New Copyright Licence Agreement”)
was entered into among Both Talent International Limited (“Both Talent”), a
subsidiary of Boom Max, as licensee, Chengdu AOBI Information Technology
Co., Ltd. (the “PRC Company”), as licensor, and Apperience on 1 July 2014
pursuant to which the PRC Company granted to Both Talent an exclusive
licence to use the copyright of “Advanced SystemCare” registered in the
name of the PRC Company in the PRC for a period from the date of the New
Copyright Licence Agreement to the later of (i) the completion of registration of
the assignment of the copyright to Both Talent in China; and (i) the completion
of registration of the copyright of “Advanced SystemCare” in the name of
Both Talent in the United States as part of the Group’s internal reorganisation.
Mr. Xue is interested through his shareholding in the PRC Company. Such
transaction does not constitute notifiable transaction under Chapter 19 of the
GEM Listing Rules and is fully exempted from the requirements under Chapter
20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The Boom Max Acquisition Agreement was entered into among the Company,
the Boom Max Vendors and the Boom Max Warrantors in relation to sale and
purchase of an aggregate of 14.677% of the equity interest in Boom Max,
conditional upon, among other conditions, the Restructuring (as defined in
the Company’s circular dated 23 November 2015). Mr. Xue, being one of
the Boom Max Warrantors, is interested in one of the Boom Max Vendors,
Ace Source, which is wholly and beneficially owned by him. Mr. Dong Yuguo,
being one of the Boom Max Warrantors, is interested as one of the Boom Max
Vendors, Access Magic, which is wholly and beneficially owned by him. Mr.
Dong is also a director of some subsidiaries of the Company. Such acquisition
constitutes a major and connected transaction for the Company under the
GEM Listing Rules and is subject to the notification, announcement and
shareholders’ approval requirements of Chapter 19 of the GEM Listing Rules
and the circular, independent financial advice and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules. Such
acquisition was completed on 31 December 2015. Details of the acquisition
are set out in the Company’s announcements dated 13 August 2015, 16
September 2015, 16 October 2015, 6 November 2015, 15 December 2015
and 31 December 2015, the Company’s circular dated 23 November 2015
and the sections headed “Connected Transactions — Acquisition of 14.677%
interest of Boom Max” and “Business Review — Software Business” of this
report.

Save for the New Copyright Licence Agreement, the Boom Max Acquisition
Agreement and the Restructuring, none of the Directors or an entity connected
with a Director is or was materially interested, whether directly or indirectly, in
any transaction, arrangement or contract of significance subsisting during or at
the end of the Year which is significant in relation to the business of the Group,
nor had any Director had direct or indirect interests in any assets which have
been acquired or disposed of by or leased to, or are proposed to be acquired
or disposed of by or leased to, any member of the Group at the end of the
Year or at any time during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS

OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES OR DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2015, the interests or short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)
(Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong) as recorded in the register required to
be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standard of dealings by
Directors as referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long positions in the ordinary shares and underlying shares of
the Company

EERTETRABRAR AREAABEE
WE - EERORESOREDAR

R-Z—A%+-A=+—0 EERAQFTTIBTHAE
RARARSEFEMEEER (EXEREBEOESN EES
KR E0] ([F5 R RS BXVER) M% - G
NfEHP  HAARIEESFRAERIIEI2EREFEY
B A ATR SR SRR IR AR AR T AR RIS 5.46 (R FTHLE
HITEEMRTREBSITNG AR R R AR ERSA
BT :

RARBDEBERRBERDHEFE

Approximate
percentage of

Number of shares/ the total issued
underlying shares share capital
Name of Director Capacity of the Company held of the Company
(Note 1)
AR DTRS, HAEQR 2B BT
EEnA 55 HEROEE RABHOE D
(F5E1)
Xue Qiushi Interest of a controlled corporation 524,677,156 42.50%
(“Mr. Xue”) (Note 2) (Hi%2)
BEIE ([EEEED Ry EE R
Kuang Hao Kun Giovanni Beneficial owner 6,155,000 0.50%
("Mr. Kuang”) (Note 3) (H1#%3)
B ssR ([BBkE ) EnliE A
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The total number of the 1,234,579,129 shares of the Company in issue as at 31
December 2015 has been used for the calculation of the approximate percentage.

EREWRE

B EE -

1. BOBIHER -—T—RE+ A=+ AWNEHETEAAA
BEAD 4880 1,234,579,129 f& st &

2. Ace Source (being one of the substantial shareholders of the Company whose 2. Ace Source (RARREERRz —  HFFEEHNTX
interest are set out in the section headed “Interests discloseable under the SFO [RIBEFEFMPEGROIATRENRR AR EZRR REMA
and substantial shareholders and other persons’ interests in securities” below) is TRESFOER ] —H)BETETEERER - Bt - RIE
wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Xue. As such, Mr. Xue was deemed to be FHLEIEGEDIEXVED - B AR A Ace Source FTHFEL
interested in all the shares/underlying shares of the Company held or interested by REFREESZONRR MG, FABERO R G EE -
Ace Source by virtue of Part XV of the SFO. Among these 524,677,156 shares/ 7 524,677,156 ik 1t R () = - E AR 250,693,999 i &
underlying shares, 250,693,999 of which were underlying shares to be allotted AR R FTHS R Boom Max AJ #4 R 5= 4% T MY 45 ki 7 (8
and issued by the Company upon exercise of the conversion rights attached to B TRERETOEBRD  ZEROHERVNLSLRES
the Boom Max Convertible Notes created and issued to the Boom Max Vendors f%0.30 7 7T (A] %) 817 F Boom Max & J7 + A& MBEA
in an aggregate principal amount of HK$75,208,200 with a conversion period 75,208,200/ 7 AIMBBA T —HAF+_A=+—HERE
from 31 December 2015 to 31 December 2017 at an initial conversion price of ZZ—+tHF+=ZH=+—HIt - Boom Max A] & EHE R =
HK$0.30 per share (subject to adjustment(s)). The Boom Max Convertible Notes T—RF+-A=+—BRTHABEREANFZBRE - £
are due to mature on a date falling 2 years after the issue date of 31 December AU Boom Max B B 1T 14.677% AR E - BIHER
2015. As part of the consideration for the acquisition of 14.677% of the issued 3f () Ace Source #1778 & ¥8 /% 43,816,465 /& 7T #) Boom Max
share capital of Boom Max, Boom Max Convertible Notes in a principal amount of AR -

HK$43,816,465 was created and issued to Ace Source.

3. On 2 July 2015, the Company granted a share option to subscribe for 6,155,000 3. RZT—AFEAZH - NARAMED AR LA AR
shares of the Company to Mr. Kuang. Such share option has an exercise period 6,155,000 RA R AR - ZRERENITEH AT —HF+
from 15 July 2015 to 14 July 2018 and an exercise price of HK$0.551 per share. A+TRAZE-ZZ—N\F+EA+WEA ' 17EBERBRAR?D0.551

PETT ©

Long positions in shares of associated corporation of the Company ~ RZA2 BIMEEEE R A TS
Approximate
percentage of
the associated
corporation’s
Name of the Capacity in which Number of issued share
Name of Director  associated corporation the shares are held shares capital
LR EEE R1T

EEHE MHEEE SR BERGHNS D REE BABLNE DL

Xue Qiushi Apperience Corporation Interest of a controlled 3,882,391 18.79%

corporation (Note)

EENE Apperience Corporation Sy LB (M)

Note: Ace Source is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Xue. As such, Mr. Xue is M5t : Ace Source REFSEEZEEREAR - Hit - RIFEFEHF RHE

deemed to be interested in all the shares held by Ace Source in Apperience (being
an associated corporation of the Company) pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none of the Directors nor
chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to have any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debenture of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV

of the
of the

SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352
SFO, or otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange

pursuant to the required standard of dealings by the Directors as referred to in

Rule 5

.46 of the GEM Listing Rules.

1&BIZEXVED - &% £ 1748 B 7 Ace Source AT Apperience (5
AN RIAEEEE ) 2 ARG R A R o

BEXWEEIN R_ZE-—AF+-_A=+—H BFHA
RAEBTHABMER AR R SREE(AIHEEER (EER
B RABEGEPIEXVED) D - BERDRESS  EF
AR VEHE B ARSI IRE 5 MR GRD5 352 IR MR ETF
B ERMASRIEAIER EMRAF 46 5MllEFHE
TEENRERERSITAG AR R AP sk

PN
B oo
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBT SECURITIES

Save for the Boom Max Convertible Notes issued by the Company in
accordance with the Boom Max Acquisition Agreement in relation to the
acquisition of 14.677% of the issued share capital of Boom Max and the
Boom Max Consideration Shares which were issued by the Company in
accordance with the terms and conditions of such agreements to Ace Source,
being one of the Boom Max Vendors and a company wholly owned by Mr.
Xue, the share options granted to Mr. Kuang during the Year under Share
Option Scheme (which are disclosed in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” of this report), and the Tranche Il Performance Shares issued to
Ace Source (a company wholly owned by Mr. Xue) (which are disclosed in the
section headed “Financial Review — Issue of Tranche Il Performance Shares
in June 2015” of this report), at no time during the Year was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors and
the chief executive, their respective spouses or children under the age of 18
to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 24 December 2007, the share option scheme of the Company (“Share
Option Scheme”) was approved by Shareholders in an extraordinary general
meeting of the Company. The Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant options to either Directors or employees of the Group in
order to recognise and motivate their contribution, to provide incentives and
to help the Group in retaining its existing employees and recruiting additional
quality employees so as to provide them with a direct economic interest in
attaining the long term business objectives of the Group.

The Share Option Scheme shall continue in force for the period commencing
from its adoption date and expiring at the close of business on the tenth
anniversary thereof, after such period no further options will be granted but
the provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect
in respect of any options granted before its expiry or termination but not yet
exercised. The Share Option Scheme will remain in force until 24 December
2017.

EERFETRABWEROIELE T F00E
A

BRARARBEESHA-T—AFN\A+=HEBYHEBoom
Max B BT AN 14.677% BB (KB B A-ZT —RF
NATRNBOMRBEET R RAQ BIREZ S H#
B T8 30 R AG 1 T LA B 1T 79 Boom Max (X & B 19 a1 E o —
% Boom Max & 77 & & %t tE 2 & ¥ B A 5] Ace Source ¥ 77
Boom Max AT R E IR « RANFERBIERERT S MBSt 4
B E AR (R ARE THRE S — &P EE) kA
B A2 &M A FAce Source 1T Z L R IBA D (R
AAETHMBEEE — RZE—AFENABTE_HRBR
B —EFPEE) I RAFEREMER - AARISES
MR R IR - B ESREBITHAS
BESAMEBRI8HRIA T FL A FEEE AR Ak [
HfthSE @RI AR D Sk B H R o

BT

REZZBZLFTZA-+TEA - BRRAABBRREIAS
EARD R B (TR AR 81 ]) - BEAERT 85 a8
AARAAEESAAREEESRLBERENMERASERER
REEFEERA IR - UBAKERIEEIRAE B MG
BFEEES  BRFERDZAEEERREEE B EHRY
BB ©

BRET B B ERA A MESEE N YNZANTEFE
BEXRRARKER - RZHREK - BT PRUE
IRBASHE - RO IR AR M Rt BB R s 4% LEATIR B i R T T 2
EVE SRR T & - B R AT BB STD A+ R R
Ao BRiEt AR E—_Z—tF+t=-A=-+tmB -
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Upon acceptance of an option to subscribe for shares granted pursuant to
the Share Option Scheme, the eligible participant shall pay HK$1.00 to the
Company by way of consideration for the grant. Such option will be offered
for acceptance for a period of 7 days from the date on which the offer is
made. The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted to each participant or grantee (including exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall not
exceed 1% of the shares in use at the date of grant. The exercise price for
shares under the Share Option Scheme may be determined by the Board at
its absolute discretion but in any event will not be less than the highest of: ()
the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet of the
Stock Exchange on the date of grant, which must be a trading day; (i) the
average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets
of the Stock Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of grant; (iii) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for the ten trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iv) the nominal value of the share on the date
of grant.

On 2 July 2015, the Company granted 12,310,000 share options (“Options”).
Among the Options granted, (i) Option entitling the holder thereof to subscribe
for an aggregate of 6,155,000 shares was granted to Mr. Kuang, the chairman
of the Board and an executive Director and (i) Options entitling the holders
thereof to subscribe for an aggregate of 6,155,000 shares were granted
to two directors of subsidiaries of the Company (one of whom is also the
company secretary and financial controller of the Company).

The grant of the Option to Mr. Kuang has been reviewed and approved by the
independent non-executive Directors in accordance with Rule 23.04(1) of the
GEM Listing Rules.

The details of the Options granted by the Company have been disclosed in
the Company’s announcement dated 2 July 2015.

EREWRE

REMIREB IR SR M AT REB IR (D WIBRUER - RER
SEFERMARALMN1.00BT  ERRHERE - Z5H
PR BN RIR 2 E RAERT 7 HEAR - BEREB R HLLE
EF12EA8E - BRFE2EEHRRANRBRE (1
EATEE N R AT R A i) T 1T 2 31T R BT RO D
REC THBENEE B BTRNN1% - BERERS
ETIROOTEENHESS2RIBETE - ERNEABER
THTEERATEENSEDE - (BORFEERH A
ARRSH)EBIMERRERPOKRTE : [(RONE
ERE AR AR S HEBRZME R RERPHTIEHRT
B (i) RONERFRLAHATHERXS A ERZ SRR
ERPHTFHRTIE : &) ROV A HANEE -

RZTE—RFtA=H ARFBEH12,310,00017 8 &
RE([EERRAE D) - RPTIR LB AR - ()8 T 158 AR
546,155,000kt 2 Bl ECE TEFE T RRNITE
EESEA R () TI5E ARFIREA 6,155,000 AR (7
ZEBRECETAARMEBMBARES  EP—2NAR
RAIZARIMERVISBE -

BT R T A M R EARIR AR AR T AR RIUSE 23.04(1) 16 E
B IEITE R A -

ARBFEEOBREFBERARTASHA-T—RF LA
ZHRRNERIRE -
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Details of the movements in the Options granted under the Share Option  1RIBMEETEIR LB ER A ERE NS B FIFNT
Scheme during the Year are as follow:

Outstanding Cancelled/ Outstanding
asat Granted exercised Lapsed asat
Exercise price 1 January during during during 31 December
per share 2015 the Year the Year the Year 2015
R=Z-1f R-B-1f
-A-A REE +=A=t-H
BRITHE HATE  AFERH HE/TE REEAN W RATR
Date of grant  Grantees Exercise period HK$ '000 '000 '000 '000 '000
RUAH ERA T8 BT 4 4 4 4 Sz
2 July 2015 Mr. Kuang 15 July 2015 to 0.551 - 6,155 - - 6,155
14 July 2018
—T-T1f BE4E “Z-nEtATRAZE 0551787
+A=H ZE-N\FtA+mA
2 July 2015 Two directors of subsidiaries 15 July 2015 to 0.551 - 6,155 - - 6,155
of the Company 14 July 2018
T-RF FREMENBARES “Z-nEtATRAZE 0551787
+A=H ZE-N\FtA+mA
Total - 12,310 - - 12,310
&t
Notes: FffE
1. The vesting period of the Options is from the date of grant until the 1. BRENEEHAERL M ERITFSHMBAL -

commencement of the exercise period.

2. The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately before the date of grant 2. RRAFRORBEEREBHIR T -—AF LA —BOKT
on 1 July 2015 was HK$0.52. B/R0.5287T ©

Particulars of the Share Option Scheme are also set out in note 39 to the  BEMERTEIFFIBINEALR A I S HRERMIFE39 ©
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2015 and the date of this report, the total number of RZZE—AF+_A=+T—HRKRRERH  BEREG10%
shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme under the existing /R + MBERH BI8 T ATE 31T IR 4 R 4,052 18
10% limit is 4,052, representing approximately 0.0003% of the issued share ERARREHTIRALI0.0003% ©

capital of the Company.
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INTERESTS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO
AND SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
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PERSONS’ INTEREST IN SECURITIES

Substantial shareholders

As at 31 December 2015, the following persons (other than Directors or
the chief executive of the Company) had, or were deemed or taken to have
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, which were

&

GRS

REZHRMERIATRENESUAREER

BRI B Al A £ & SRS
FERR
R-ZF-—RAF+-A=+—8  BREFRALALBTHEA

recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section

336 of the SFO:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company

g4

R LR A EBRAVIFE

AT ALTRARR A ARBR o - FEA R EE
HARBEABIREE S L EEPIEXVEE 2 K35 Ef A A
XA Bt 32 P BE S B A AN A BIR 3R 55 e I B 16911 55 336
BAFENECMANERIOAR

Number of Approximate
shares/ percentage of
underlying the total issued
shares of the share capital of
Company held the Company
Shareholders Capacity (Note 1) (Note 2) Notes
RAT L ER N RS
ig=d: 7 BRITRAE
HERDEE BHES
R® 55 (BfFEE1) (B £ 2) Wit
DX.com Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 74,418,600 (L) 6.03%
DX.com{Z& B R A EmEBE A
Fastek Investments Limited (“Fastek”) Beneficial owner 118,600,000 (L) 9.61% 3)
Fastek Investments Limited EmEBE A
([Fastek])
Rosy Lane Investments Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 159,560,788 (L) 12.92% 3)
(“Rosy Lane”)
Rosy Lane Investments Limited R EEER
([Rosy Lane)
Hong Kong Education (Int’l) Interest of a controlled corporation 159,560,788 (L) 12.92% 3)
Investments Limited (‘HK EDU INTL”)
BEHE (ER)REEERR AR REEEER
(TBEAHEER])
Access Magic Limited (“Access Magic”) Beneficial owner and interest deemed 524,677,156 (L) 42.50% 4)

Access Magic Limited ([ Access Magic )

under sections 317(1)(a) and 318

of the SFO

EmiB ARBEES RAEG
S8317(1)(a) R 318 IEHR RIER VS
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Number of Approximate
shares/ percentage of
underlying the total issued
shares of the share capital of
Company held the Company
Shareholders Capacity (Note 1) (Note 2) Notes
/N HAELTE
Frisitn, BERITRAE
HERDHE BB
BR=R 55 (PFF=E1) (MizE2) Wizt
Dong Yuguo (“Mr. Dong”) Interest of a controlled corporation 524,677,156 (L) 42.50% ), (5)
EWRR([EXED R EEER
Ace Source International Limited Beneficial owner and interest deemed 524,677,156 (L) 42.50% 6)
(“Ace Source”) under sections 317(1)(a) and 318
of the SFO
Ace Source International Limited EaA ARIBIREF LSO
(T'Ace Source]) £317(1)(a) &2 318 51 AR A A e 28
Wealthy Hope Limited (“Wealthy Hope”) Beneficial owner and interest deemed 524,677,156 (L) 42.50% (7)
under sections 317(1)(a) and 318
of the SFO
Wealthy Hope Limited ([ Wealthy Hope) | BB A RIBEZE S5 & H S 1§
£317(1)(a) &2 318 161 AR B A e 28
Chen Liang (“Mr. Chen”) Interest of a controlled corporation 524,677,156 (L) 42.50% (7), (8)
Broe ([FR%&EAE D) R EEER
Well Peace Global Limited (“Well Peace”)  Beneficial owner and interest deemed 524,677,156 (L) 42.50% 9)
under sections 317(1)(a) and 318
of the SFO
Well Peace Global Limited ([Well Peace]) Ez5#iE A RIREZES RS K0
£317(1)(a) &2 318 51 AR B A BB 28
Lian Ming (“Mr. Lian”) Interest of a controlled corporation 524,677,156 (L) 42.50% 9), (10)
R (MEs D) R EEER
IDG-Accel China Growth Fund Il L.P. Beneficial owner and interest deemed 524,677,156 (L) 42.50% (117)
(“IDG-Accel”) under sections 317(1)(a) and 318
of the SFO
IDG-Accel China Growth Fund Il L.P. B EA ARBIEEAS RS
([1DG-Accel]) £317(1)(a) &2 318 51 AR S A B e 28
IDG-Accel China Investors Il L.P. Beneficial owner and interest deemed 524,677,156 (L) 42.50% (12)

(“IDG-Accel Investors”)

IDG-Accel China Investors Il L.P.
([DG-Accel Investors )

under sections 317(1)(a) and 318
of the SFO
EaA ARBIRE SRS GO

E317(1)(a) X 318 &R A B =
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Number of Approximate
shares/ percentage of
underlying the total issued
shares of the share capital of
Company held the Company
Shareholders Capacity (Note 1) (Note 2) Notes
/N HAELTE
Frisitn, BERITRAE
HERDHE BB
BR=R 55 (PFF=E1) (MizE2) Wizt
IDG-Accel China Growth Fund Il Interest of a controlled corporation 524,677,156 (L) 42.50% (11), (12), (13)
Associates L.P.
(“IDG-Accel Il Associates”)
IDG-Accel China Growth Fund Il STy RAEREZ
Associates L.P.
([DG-Accel Il Associates )
IDG-Accel China Growth Fund GP I Interest of a controlled corporation 524,677,156 (L) 42.50% (11), (12), (13)
Associates Ltd. (“IDG-Accel GP II”)
IDG-Accel China Growth Fund GP Il STy RAEREZ
Associates Ltd. ([IDG-Accel GP II])
Ho Chi Sing (“Mr. Ho”) Interest of a controlled corporation 524,677,156 (L) 42.50% (11), (12), (13)
Ho Chi Sing ([Ho %4 1) R EE RS
Zhou Quan (“Mr. Zhou”) Interest of a controlled corporation 524,677,156 (L) 42.50% (11), (12), (13)
Az (TA%E]D R EE R
Tencent Holdings Limited (“Tencent”) Interest of a controlled corporation and 524,677,156 (L) 42.50% (14)
interest deemed under sections
317(1)(@) and 318 of the SFO
fEFIEAR A PR A A ([ R EE R MREEF R
HI SR MIZE 317(1)(a) 2 318 15
WS RHA R
MIH TC Holdings Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 524,677,156 (L) 42.50% (14), (15)
(“MIH TC Holdings”)
MIH TC Holdings Limited ZEEEER
(I'MIH TC Holdings )
Naspers Limited (“Naspers”) Interest of a controlled corporation 524,677,156 (L) 42.50% (14), (15), (16)

Naspers Limited ([Naspers )

S EE S
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Notes: B

The letter “L” denotes a long position in the shares/underlying shares of the
Company.

The total number of the 1,234,579,129 shares of the Company in issue as at 31
December 2015 has been used for the calculation of the approximate percentage.

Wise Action Limited (“Wise Action”) and Fastek are wholly and beneficially owned
by Rosy Lane. Rosy Lane is wholly-owned by HK EDU INTL. Each of HK EDU
INTL and Rosy Lane was deemed to be interested in the 40,960,788 shares and
118,600,000 shares of the Company held by Wise Action and Fastek respectively
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

Access Magic was interested in 176,099,398 shares/underlying shares of the
Company in the capacity of the beneficial owner and was deemed to be interested
in 348,577,758 shares/underlying shares of the Company in accordance with
sections 317(1)(a) and 318 of the SFO. Among these 524,677,156 shares/
underlying shares of the Company, 250,693,999 of which were underlying shares
of the Company.

Access Magic is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Dong, a director of a
subsidiary of the Company. As such, Mr. Dong was deemed to be interested in all
the shares/underlying shares of the Company held or interested by Access Magic
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

Ace Source was interested in 296,710,183 shares/underlying shares of the
Company in the capacity of the beneficial owner and was deemed to be interested
in 227,966,973 shares/underlying shares of the Company in accordance with
sections 317(1)(a) and 318 of the SFO. Among these 524,677,156 shares/
underlying shares of the Company, 250,693,999 of which were underlying
shares of the Company. Ace Source is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr.
Xue. As such, Mr. Xue was deemed to be interested in all the shares/underlying
shares of the Company held or interested by Ace Source. Mr. Xue’s interests in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company are disclosed in the section
headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests or Short Positions in the
Shares, Underlying Shares or Debentures of the Company or any Associated
Corporations” above.

Wealthy Hope was interested in 19,024,810 shares/underlying shares of the
Company in the capacity of the beneficial owner and was deemed to be interested
in 505,652,346 shares/underlying shares of the Company in accordance with
sections 317(1)(a) and 318 of the SFO. Among these 524,677,156 shares/
underlying shares of the Company, 250,693,999 of which were underlying shares
of the Company.

Wealthy Hope is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Chen. As such, Mr. Chen
was deemed to be interested in all the shares/underlying shares of the Company
held or interested by Wealthy Hope pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

FE (L ERERRRG,FEERGONITE -

BOESHER-_Z—AF+-A=+—BHNEHTARA
BE1D 4881 1,234,579,129 &+t &

BEBARAT(E1E]) K Fastek A Rosy Lane 2 B x5 A ©
Rosy Lane BB HEBR 2 EHE - RIZEF KKK
EXVES - BEEHE BB KRosy Lane & BB ENE B R
Fastek 53 51| FfT #5 40,960,788 % }2 118,600,000 A% 78 A &) A% 15
hEA R o

Access Magic LA B @ ¥ B A & 5 7 176,099,398 ik & 2 & ik
9/ RERM R EEER - WIRIEEFREEEHES17(1)
(a) R 318 {64 48 1E 7 /8 348,577,758 R A A Al B 17,/ #B B8 A%
DHER © N2 524,677,156 BARA TR, HERR D+ - He
250,693,999 ik A A RIS ©

Access Magic H A AR B AR ESELEEEERES ©
Ft - RIEES RIS EGIEXVE - B R AEWRIER Access
Magic 5 st A & o A i 25 1) 2 20 AR R B ik 10, A8 R AR 15
hEA R o

Ace Source LA B & B A & 5 1296,710,183 i 4 2 &) i
9/ RERM R EEER - WIRIEEFREEEHE317(1)
(a) R 318 {645 48 1E /A 227,966,973 B A~ 2 ) B 17,/ 18 B A%
DHER © N2 524,677,156 BARA R, 48R D+ - Hep
250,693,999 % & 2N A B HE A AR 1 © Ace Source FREE 5L A &
BEGHES o Bt - B ERIEIER Ace Source TSN &
REBEENEHAA KRG, AABERG R A g - Bt
ERAQE RS REAROOEEN EX [EERFETH
A BRAR B ST AR EE A D - A8RER D sk EH ro e
KR | — B .

Wealthy Hope LA B #= # 5 A & % 719,024,810 J& AN A 7] f%
B/ AR P EEER  WRIEBEES RAEEHIE317(1)
(a) &2 318 {64 45 1 1 /5 505,652,346 % AN A &) I 15, A8 B3 iR
DR © N2 524,677,156 AR A TR, 4RI (D » He
250,693,999 I A7 A I HEREIR 1

Wealthy Hope FRSC A2 B EHA - Bt - RIBEHFRH
EEBIZEXVER - BR 5t £ AR VER Wealthy Hope FTH5 s & &
HAEENDIHARARRD,FERND R EEES -
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Well Peace was interested in 19,024,810 shares/underlying shares of the
Company in the capacity of the beneficial owner and was deemed to be interested
in 505,652,346 shares/underlying shares of the Company in accordance with
sections 317(1)(a) and 318 of the SFO. Among these 524,677,156 shares/
underlying shares of the Company, 250,693,999 of which were underlying shares
of the Company.

Well Peace is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Lian. As such, Mr. Lian was
deemed to be interested in all the shares/underlying shares of the Company held
or interested by Well Peace pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

IDG-Accel was interested in 12,127,549 shares/underlying shares of the Company
in the capacity of the beneficial owner and was deemed to be interested in
512,549,607 shares/underlying shares of the Company in accordance with
sections 317(1)(a) and 318 of the SFO.

IDG-Accel Investors was interested in 991,853 shares/underlying shares of the
Company in the capacity of the beneficial owner and was deemed to be interested
in 523,685,303 shares/underlying shares of the Company in accordance with
sections 317(1)(a) and 318 of the SFO.

IDG-Accel GP Il owns the entire equity interest in each of IDG-Accel Il Associates
and IDG-Accel Investors. IDG-Accel GP Il is 50% owned by Mr. Ho and 50%
owned by Mr. Zhou. As such, each of Mr. Ho, Mr. Zhou and IDG-Accel GP Il was
deemed to be interested in all the shares/underlying shares of the Company held
by IDG-Accel Il Associates and IDG-Accel Investors.

IDG-Accel is wholly owned by IDG-Accel Il Associates. As such, IDG-Accel Il
Associates was deemed to be interested in all the shares/underlying shares of the
Company held by IDG-Accel pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

Based on the corporate substantial shareholder notice filed by Tencent on 6
January 2016, THL A1 Limited (“THL”) is wholly owned by Tencent and as such,
Tencent was deemed to be interested in all 524,677,156 shares/underlying
shares of the Company held by its controlled corporation THL pursuant to Part XV
of the SFO. THL had a direct interest of 698,553 shares/underlying shares of the
Company and an indirect interest of 523,978,603 shares/underlying shares of the
Company.

Based on the corporate substantial shareholder notice filed by MIH TC Holdings
on 11 January 2016, THL is wholly owned by Tencent and Tencent is 33.51%
owned by MIH TC Holdings. As such, MIH TC Holdings was deemed to be
interested in all the 524,677,156 shares/underlying shares of the Company held
by its controlled corporations THL and Tencent pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

Based on the corporate substantial shareholder notice filed by Naspers on 11
January 2016, THL is wholly owned by Tencent, Tencent is 33.51% owned by
MIH TC Holdings, which is in turn 90% owned by MIH (Mauritius) Limited (“MIH
Mauritius”). MIH Mauritius is wholly owned by MIH Ming He Holdings Limited (“MIH
Ming He”), which is in turn 99.99% owned by MIH Holdings Proprietary Limited
(“MIH Proprietary”). MIH Proprietary is 99.99% owned by Naspers. Based on the
above relationship, each of MIH Mauritius, MIH Ming He, MIH Proprietary and
Naspers was deemed to be interested in all the 524,677,156 shares/underlying
shares of the Company held by their controlled corporations pursuant to Part XV
of the SFO.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EREWE

Save as disclosed above, the Directors were not aware of any other person
(other than Directors or chief executive of the Company) who, as at 31
December 2015, had or was deemed to have interests or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company, which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the code
provisions as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules throughout the
Year.

APPOINTMENT AND RESIGNATION OF DIRECTORS

Professor Chui Tsan Kit was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director with effect from 23 April 2015.

Professor Lee T.S. was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
with effect from 1 September 2015.

Mr. Lam Kit Sun resigned as an independent non-executive Director with
effect from 23 April 2015 due to his other business commitments which
require more of his time.

Mr. Yip Chi Fai Stevens resigned as an independent non-executive Director
with effect from 1 September 2015 due to his other business commitments
which require more of his time.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors of the Company
is currently in force and was in force throughout this Year. The Company has
maintained appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for
the Directors and officers of the Group.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Details of the Group’s retirement benefits schemes in operation for the Year
are set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee with written terms of reference.
The Audit Committee’s principal duties are to review and supervise the
financial reporting process, risk management and internal control procedures
of the Group. The Audit Committee currently comprises the three independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Professor Chui Tsan Kit (the chairman of
the Audit Committee), Ms. Xiao Yiming and Professor Lee T.S.. The Audit
Committee met on a quarterly basis during the Year. The Company’s financial
statements for the Year have been reviewed and discussed by the Audit
Committee before any disclosure and release of information.

CHANGE OF AUDITOR

On 31 October 2013, Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited, who acted as auditor
of the Company, resigned and RSM Hong Kong (formerly known as “RSM
Nelson Wheeler”) was appointed as the new auditor of the Company. The
details of the change of auditor are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 31 October 2013.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, there is sufficient public float of not less than 25%
of the Company’s issued shares as required under the GEM Listing Rule as at
the date of this report.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

At the Company’s last Annual General Meeting, RSM Nelson Wheeler
was re-appointed as auditor of the Company. On 26 October 2015 our
auditor changed the name under which it practices to RSM Hong Kong and
accordingly has signed its report under its new name.

RSM Hong Kong retires, and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of RSM Hong Kong will be
put at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Kuang Hao Kun Giovanni
Chairman

24 March 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BEN RS

RSM

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

GET HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in Bermuda
with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of GET Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries set out on pages 70 to 203,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2015, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries as at 31 December
2015, and their financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

RSM Hong Kong

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

24 March 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

. =N
A EmR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BHE-T—RAF+-A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTER)
2015 2014
—B-EfF —F-mEF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
P EE THET FHET
Turnover =E 1 8 324,729 234,293
Cost of sales THEK A (159,577) (89,629)
Gross profit ER 165,152 144,664
Other revenue EHblg A 9 3,581 2,700
Other gains and losses, net Hblhzs K EiE o F5 10 49,660 23,951
Selling and administrative expenses HERITHRAX (95,344) (62,160)
Profit from operations mEER 123,049 109,155
Finance costs [ELE= VDN 12 (5,635) (1,209)
Share of (loss)/profit of an associate FE(h— B A E (B518), 5 H) 25 (51) 33
Profit before taxation BB AIEF 13 117,363 107,979
Income tax expense FBRAX 14 (23,940) (19,000)
Profit for the year REERA 93,423 88,979
Attributable to: AR AL HELL :
Owners of the Company KAREEA 60,510 52,737
Non-controlling interests e 32,913 36,242
93,423 88,979
(Restated)
(E=3)
Earnings per share BRER 18
Basic HAK HK8.51 cents HK21.56 cents
8.51 81l 21.56 &1
Diluted e HK8.37 cents HK19.50 cents
8.37 &l 19.50 A1l
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
reBmMEMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BHE-T—RAF+-A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTER)
2015 2014
—E-HF —T—F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
P EE THET FHET
Profit for the year AEERR 93,423 88,979
Other comprehensive income: Hib 2wz 19
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss: A E# S EE 8B E -
Exchange differences on translation of WEEINGB R R IEREREER
financial statements of overseas subsidiaries PEN Z% 30 (31)
Fair value gain on available-for-sale AftHESREEATEEKS
financial assets 26 7,782 5,511
Fair value loss on available-for-sale At ESEEATEEEE
financial assets 26 (1,309) (20,732)
Reclassification adjustment to profit or At ESREEREREE
loss on impairment loss on available-for-sale RIEBREFTHEAR
financial assets 26 1,309 20,732
7,812 5,480
Other comprehensive income AEEHMEERRE  HRBE
for the year, net of tax 7,812 5,480
Total comprehensive income for the year #&EE2EINGFEEE 101,235 94,459
Attributable to: R ARG :
Owners of the Company KARER A 68,330 58,225
Non-controlling interests FEE RS 32,905 36,234
101,235 94,459
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

sre MR

At 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

WZZE-—RAF+-A=+—H
(AETTIIR)

2015 2014
—E-HF —E—E
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
P EE THET FHET
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE MRE 20 2,252 3,008
Investment property BEME 21 - -
Goodwiill Sk 22 525,878 525,878
Intangible assets B AE 23 74,416 74,853
Investment in an associate R—EEERARNRE 25 20,900 21,196
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESRIEE 26 150,716 73,150
Trade and other receivables 5 REMEKRIEA 28 24,960 =
799,122 698,085
Current assets REBEE
Inventories =g 27 2,009 14,772
Trade and other receivables B 5 REMEWFRIA 28 71,637 78,195
Financial assets at fair value through BRBEUATEBIENEREE
profit or loss 29 323,082 -
Derivative financial instruments THEeBIA 32(b) 21,564 -
Pledged bank deposits EHEMIRITER 30 2,633 2,431
Cash and cash equivalents HENRIREEED 30 214,277 148,906
635,202 244,304
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables B 5 RHEMPERFKRIE 31 53,366 99,065
Performance shares B33 33 - 14,331
Current tax liabilities EHFEAE 40,942 54,525
94,308 167,921
Net current assets REEEFE 540,894 76,383
Total assets less current liabilities EEHAERADER 1,340,016 774,468
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFIEEE 34(a) 5,170 6,592
Loan notes BERERE 35 212,500 =
Convertible notes ATRAR IR 32(b) 68,525 =
286,195 6,592
NET ASSETS AEFE 1,053,821 767,876
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MR R

At 31 December 2015 RZE—RF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTER)
2015 2014
—B-EfF —F-mEF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B aE FHET FHET
Capital and reserves EAXRFE
Share capital A&7 36 12,346 19,541
Reserves Ek 38 1,003,607 706,811
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AR ARI#HA AE(HiEZE 1,015,953 726,352
Non-controlling interests eI M 37,868 41,524
TOTAL EQUITY g 1,053,821 767,876

Approved by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2016 and are signed onits REEZEFEERN T NF=ZA - THEHETHATES

behalf by: REERZ
Kuang Hao Kun Giovanni Xue Qiushi
=L BNE
Director Director
EF =3
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GARKEDE

For the year ended 31 December 2015

BE-_T—AF+-A=+—RILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AETTIIR)

Attributable to owners of the Company

KRAREAES
Convertible
Share note Investment Non-
Share Share  Contributed option equity  Exchange revaluation Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
TEREE RE
Bx  RHEE EHEY BRERE EERE ENRE  ERRE  RHEB & FEREs BRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAL TAL THL FEL FAL FAL AL FAL TAT
At 1 January 2014 W-F-mE-F-A 492,562 46,682 414,679 310 13,809 (60) - (414,226) 553,756 35,498 589,254
Profit for the year REEER - - - - - - - 52,787 52,787 36,242 88,979
Other comprehensive income Ef2EkE - - - - - (29 5511 - 5,488 ® 5,480
Total comprehensive income REEL AT
for the year - - - - - (23 5511 52,131 58,225 36,234 94,459
Avrising from acquisition of a hE-HHBLAMEL
subsidiary (note 41(b) (GEZI) - - - - - - - - - 1,729 1729
Deemed disposal of partial interest ~ #8{EH &~ BAT
in a subsidlary (note 41(g)) Priez st - - - - - - - 1,026 1,026 976 2,002
Performance sharesissuedon 6~ R=Z—MEXARREST
June 2014 (note 36(d)) FRRIT (F5E36(0) 71,652 (38,638) - - - - - - 32914 - 32914
Share option lapsed (note 39) BB E (k) S S = (310) = = = 310 = = =
Share consolidation and capital RZE-BELAT/\BH
reduction on 18 July 2014 A& B BB L
(note 36(a) (HizE360) (550011) - 500N - - - - - - - -
Shares issuied for acquisition of BB ARRTRRG
subsiferies (nofes 36(¢) and 41(o) (His2360e) B41(0)) 1,860 21,53 = = = = = = 29,395 = 20,395
Plecing of shares (note 36(f) RERD (HE6() 3193 34,276 = = = = = = 37,469 = 37,469
Shares issued on conversion of HRTARZRRETRG
convertidle notes (Hi£32(a) BL36(0))
(notes 32(e) and 36(c) 38 26,991 = - (13809 5 5 - 135 - 135
Dividends paid o non-controling ~ BiEFEERiERAIRE
interests (note 24) (Mtit24) o - - - = = E o o (32913 (32,919
Changes in equity for the year TEEREES
(473,021) 50,164 550,011 (310) (13,809) = = 1,336 114,371 (30,208) 84,163
At 31 December 2014 and
at 1 January 2015 19,541 96,846 964,690 = = (83 5511 (360,153) 726,352 41,524 767,876
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
AREZSEENE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BHE-T—RAF+-A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTER)

/\\/ \

Attributable to owners of the Company

KRAREAES
Convertible
Share note Investment Non-
Share Share  Contributed option equity  Exchange revaluation Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
TEREE RE
Bx  RHEE EHEY BRERE EERE  ENRE  ERRE  RHEB & FEREs SRR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAL THL TAL FAL FAL FAL AL FAL TAL
Profit for the year KEFHR - - - - - - - 60,510 60,510 2913 93,423
Other comprehensive income B2 EkE - - - - - 38 7,782 - 7820 ® 7812
Total comprehensive income AEERENRLE
for the year - - - - - 38 7,78 60,510 68,330 32,905 101,235
Avrising from acquisition of a hE-BHELRMEL
subsidiary (note 41(a)) (GEIE) - - - - - - - - - 279 279
Deemed disposal of partial interest B {EHE—EHBEAF
in a subsidiary (note 41(cl) PES (W41 ) - - - - - - - - - 310 310
Recognition of share based EANRG AERIAR
payments (note 39) (Fit5E39) - - - 2,839 - - - - 2,839 - 2,839
Share consolidation and capital RZE-RE=f-1MmA
reduction on 24 March 2015 HRHA S REREE
(note 36(3)i) (B3 36(0)) (17,587) = 17,587 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
Performance shares issued on RZZ-RE ARA%RN
5 June 2015 (note 36(d) KRR (M 36(0) 165 13,000 = S 5 5 5 5 13,165 5 13,165
Rights issue of shares on 16 RZZ-RE/A+RAER
June 2015 (note 36(g)) kD (F36(0) 5862 190,685 = = = = = - 196547 - 196547
Placing of shares (note 36(1) RERD (F5E36M) 301 17,608 - - - - - - 17,999 S 17,999
Equity component of convertible AT ZEEERHH
notes (note 32(0) (W3 320) = = = 5 25,55 5 5 - 255% - 255%
Issuance of consideration BITRERD (i 36()
shares (note 361)) 1467 51305 = = = = = - Hgte - Hgt2
Dividends pald to non-controling ~~ BiERFEERERRE.
interests (note 24) (Kizto4) - - - - - - - - - (22,669) (22,669)
Shares issued for purchase of SRR SR
non-controling interests (note 36()) ~ (%3%36()) 2,507 50,640 = S L = - S 53,147 S 53,147
Capital injection from non-controling  JEERRER A — M B AR
interests to a subsidiary iohedey - - - - - - - 383 383
Purchase of non-controling interests  YBE FF 282 - - - - - - - (140,793) (140,793 (148700 (155,668)
Changes in equity for the year TEEREED (7195 3232718 17,587 2839 25,555 - - (40793 22127 (36561) 184710
At31 December 2015 KT-RETSAST-H 1036 @014 9B 289 %555 (@5 1329 (M0d%) 101508 37868 1053821
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FeRTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE-_T—AF+-A=+—RILFE

(AETTIIR)

2015 2014
—E-AE —E—EF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
(i THET FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING CEIHELHE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation KA AT T 117,363 107,979
Adjustments for: ok o
Bank interest income $RITH B U A (18) )
Amortisation B 16,913 13,221
Depreciation bR 1,299 661
Dividend income sV ON (435) -
Fair value gain on investment property BEYENTEBERZE - (1,300)
Finance costs &R AR 5,635 1,209
Fair value gain on performance shares FHBRMH AL BEYKE (1,166) (657,323)
Fair value gain on financial assets at fair value FERBEUALEBEVENS R
through profit or loss BENATE[IKS (101,901) =
Loss on disposal of financial assets at fair value HEE BB AN EBETYIEY
through profit or loss SRIBEREE 39,346 =
Share of loss/(profit) of an associate R — L ARER (&) 51 (33)
(Gain)/loss on disposals of subsidiaries HEMBA TSN (M) BB (5,302) 326
Commission clawback provision BB mEE - 4,500
Reversal of commission clawback provision BeamEEED (1,282) -
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale HeERHHESEENER
financial assets 11,931 -
Loss on disposal of property, HEWME BENRRENER
plant and equipment 92 S
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AEHESREERMERERE
financial assets 1,309 20,732
Impairment loss on goodwill AERERE - 8,211
Impairment loss on intangible assets BN EEREBRE 5,946 4,875
Impairment loss on property, ME - BENRBREBR
plant and equipment = 176
Impairment loss on trade receivables B 5 el BE SR EE e 206 S
Equity-settled share based payments R EE RN BERNNZ 2,839 S
Gain on bargain purchase in respect of MEBRAHEBRE Nk
business combination (35) -
Operating profit before working capital changes LER S B HFHLLETF 92,791 103,227
Decrease/(increase) in inventories &R,/ (32m) 12,623 (15)
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 R EHEREZ BN (16,677) (20,335)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and B 5 REMBENZIECRD),/HEm
other payables (42,593) 24,662
Increase in financial assets at fair value FERBEUAEEBEYED
through profit or loss SEEER (260,527) -
Cash (used in)/generated from operations s () /FESXES (214,383) 107,539
Income tax (paid)/refunded (Bf),/REFTER (38,936) 873
Net cash (used in)/generated from RESES) (FrA) /FTELRE 258
operation activities (253,319) 108,412
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

N
,\\/ N fﬁi/m

BE_Z-AFT-_A=+t—BLFE

(LA TTER)

X

2015 2014
—E-RE —mE
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
(i THET FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING BEEZHELT
ACTIVITIES
Net cash inflow from acquisition of subsidiaries WEHBARNBES RS 41(a)&(b) 279 1,670
Bank interest received BUHRERITHS 18 7
Dividend received B E 435 -
Expenditure on development projects BRIBENTH (22,398) (22,063)
Increase in pledged bank deposits B IBER T L N (1,009) (1,006)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from HERBARNBRERA
disposal of subsidiaries (EY) T
— Lujolujo Asia Limited — Lujolujo Asia Limited 41(d) (253) =
— Bonus First Limited — Bonus First Limited 41(c)() 62,000 -
— Dragon Oriental Investment Limited — Dragon Oriental Investment Limited 41(c)(ii) - 21,547
Proceeds from deemed disposal of WiE A E B AT ERD
partial interest in a subsidiary Friasg 41(e) = 2,002
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale HETEEESEENFTERE
financial assets 96,172 -
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets EEAHLESREE (125,075) (34,593)
Purchase of investment property BEREYE (59,081) S
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEYYE . BERSRE (1,152) (1,604)
Net cash used in investing activities REEH AR S (50,064) (34,040)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING REZIHESH
ACTIVITIES
Interest paid B8 (5,635) (386)
Proceeds from rights issue WIRE IS RIE 196,547 -
Proceeds from placing of shares B ENRMD BB EIE 17,999 37,469
Other loan raised HiraEn 20,000 11,000
Repayment of other loans BEEMER (20,000) (11,000)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests ER IEIE RS B AR B (22,663) (32,913)
Proceeds from issuance of loan notes BT EREENESRIE 212,500 =
Purchase of non-controlling interests BB IR 41(f) (30,000) S
Net cash generated from financing activities B R EAESEE 368,748 4,170
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FeRTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BHE-T—RAF+-A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTER)
2015 2014
—E-IfF —Z-mE
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
BisE TERT TAT
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND BERBELEEYEMTHR
CASH EQUIVALENTS 65,365 78,542
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HNEEFE R B 2 6 (45)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—B—-HHNREREELEEY
AT 1 JANUARY 148,906 70,409
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RT-ZA=+—-HAMBELRBELZEY
AT 31 DECEMBER 214,277 148,906
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND BERBELEEBYIH
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents e kRS 30 214,277 148,906
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

GENERAL INFORMATION

GET Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated as an
exempted company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 30
July 2001 and continued in Bermuda on 9 January 2014. The registered
office of the Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The principal place of business in Hong
Kong is located at Room 1703, 17/F, Harcourt House, 39 Gloucester
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market
(*GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries (together with the Company
collectively referred to as the “Group”) are set out in note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of
units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$’000) unless otherwise stated. Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”) is the Company’s functional and the Group’s
presentation currency.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS”); and Interpretations. These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622).

e BRI

BE-Z-hF+-A=1t—RLFE
(LA TTER)

NAEH

BHERERAR(ARATDRZZZ—F+A=T
AERSESTMR I AERREGR AR - AT
—NFE-ANBEBREFE - AARGEMHEEC
2 Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda - EEF EE XM AT B EHFE LT
BRIHEBRAREI17TEITOE o

ARRBEMREEHAEZHMERAB (B )
BIER(TRIER]D LT - ARABNIBREBRARE
2 B AR GERAARSE [ AEE )T
BEBHNGA P BERME24 -

BIEREHY  BRGAMBREATEL(TE
TT M ERFIER - BT (BT RAARMMREE
BRAEENSREE -

mREE

ZERAVBRECBEESGHMAS(HEE
ARAGDBMERAIBEAESHBRSEL(TE
B BmEEA D RE - EEVIBREENBREDH
MRS LR ([ BEMHHRSER ) : BEGTER
(TEAGFER  REE - ZFLAMIBRERINF
BHMRMES ETRAKEREE G RES AR
Bl (56622 %) KR TERIE ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

wIN[E 7

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND
REQUIREMENTS

(a)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and
revised HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA that are relevant to its
operations and effective for its accounting year beginning on 1
January 2015.

Amendment to HKAS 40 (Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2011-2013 Cycle)

The amendment clarifies the application of HKFRS 3 and HKAS
40 in respect of acquisitions of investment property. HKAS 40
assists preparers to distinguish between investment property and
owner-occupied property, then HKFRS 3 helps them to
determine whether the acquisition of an investment property is a
business combination. The amendment had no effect on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendment to HKFRS 8 (Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 Cycle)

The amendment requires disclosure of the judgements made by
management in applying the aggregation criteria to operating
segments, and clarifies that reconciliations of the total of the
reportable segments’ assets to the entity’s assets are required
only if the segment assets are reported regularly. These
clarifications had no effect on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

BE-_T—AF+-A=+—RILFE

(AETTIIR)

3. RAFTREEBITERMBHREENRSR

&

@

BRI RAET B R B RELER

RAFE ARECRBAERT B
BRMEVETR] REIET BB B HMERER - %
SENEAKEEBEAR AR T —AF—
A—BRRNETFEER -

BB EEERE 40 mEA] (BB I8 &
Al —F—— &z — T =FHPNFEUHE)

ZETEREEY B REENEIRREES
FHERIE AR BBIREMENER - TE
B EAEOFARBRIRENERERY
¥ MEBEBBMBIMEERE I BB HEE UK
BHRENERTBEBEH A - ZEFTH
FEEGAVBBRRUBEATE -

BB & ERE 8IS AT (BB
FRA —F—FEFE —F— —FHPAFEN
)

ZERETEERACLEDREARARE
B BARBEEEEHELOHE - ARESR
EOMEERERERERNAENHKRES
EEROHEAESTHERNBER T AR
H o ZEEFHAEEGRE MBHRR AL EER

o
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i
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND
REQUIREMENTS (continued)

(b)

()

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied new and revised HKFRSs that
have been issued but are not yet effective for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2015. The directors anticipate that the
new and revised HKFRSs will be adopted in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements when they become effective.
The Group is in the process of assessing, where applicable, the
potential effect of all new and revised HKFRSs that will be
effective in future periods but is not yet in a position to state
whether these new and revised HKFRSs would have a material
impact on its results of operations and financial position.

List of new and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments'
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers’
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative®
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements?
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an

and HKAS 28 Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture®
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2012-2014 Cycle?

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018,
with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016,
with earlier application permitted.
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

determined. Early adoption is permitted.
New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)

The requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and Audit” of the new
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) came into
operation during the financial year. As a result, there are changes
to presentation and disclosures of certain information in the
consolidated financial statements.

BE_ZT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE_Z-—RF+_A=1T—HILFE
(AETTIIR)

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG BT REEITEBVBEREENRR
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND E (%)
REQUIREMENTS (continued)
(d) Amendments to the Rules Governing the Listing of (d) BEF s EmRAIMNBET
Securities on the Stock Exchange
The Stock Exchange in April 2015 released revised Appendix 16 RN T —RFMARMEETES L™
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities in relation to RAPIEE 75 - BB SRERREBE=Z
disclosure of financial information in annual reports that are —HF+ZA=+—AHItRzEEeHHENE
applicable for accounting periods ending on or after 31 MAPMBEERNHEE  WARTEER - AR F
December 2015, with earlier application permitted. The Company BEERMA RIS - AmESie MgREnE
has adopted the amendments resulting in changes to the FERZHRAANRBEELAMEE -
presentation and disclosures of certain information in the
consolidated financial statements.
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES FESTEHE
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the BRIETHMEIRRBBIRA(WIREMERE TSR
historical cost convention, unless mentioned otherwise in the TERAFEEFE)  TRLSEREMERERTIE
accounting policies below (e.g. investment properties and certain BREL R AELERR o
financial instruments that are measured at fair value).
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS MR EREBMEREEAER  ERAEKX
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires FRETEESH G - HNEREBEERERALSE
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the B BRBRETELHE - S REERN A B SEM
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of MRS MHREM s BEABRRIGFTHOEHE -
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates TIR M5 KR -
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
note 5.
The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these REZERATERASEANEESTEEREY W
consolidated financial statements are set out below. 50
(@) Consolidation (@ #HEERE
The consolidated financial statements include the financial BEVBRRBERARAREMNBAREHE
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31 FTZA=T—HIEMNPBRE - MBRARES
December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has AEBIEFINERE - WASEESEEBER
control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has MEHEHREMTRNERKEEZEER -
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and WERNEBERNTEBERBNZEDR - 7
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the AEBAEFZER EAEEREGEMNSH
entity. The Group has power over an entity when the Group has BATE e X EMEEE S (BIE BB RERK
existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant BEARZENTY)  MAKEHZEBEARE
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s returns. e
When assessing control, the Group considers its potential voting EHE R DA EN  AEEeEEBE
rights as well as potential voting rights held by other parties. A FORKEA R H M5 75 TR BIER R HE - BIER
potential voting right is considered only if the holder has the RIEERFTE ABEBEE R AIT{EZIERET)
practical ability to exercise that right. B FERE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Consolidation (continued)

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date
the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in a
loss of control represents the difference between (i) the fair value
of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any
investment retained in that subsidiary and (i) the Company’s
share of the net assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining
goodwill and any accumulated exchange reserve relating to that
subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries not
attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-
controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position and consolidated statement of changes in
equity within equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
an allocation of profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the year between the non-controlling shareholders and owners of
the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling shareholders even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions (i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity as
owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AN
NN

VSRR BT AT

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the acquisition of
a subsidiary in a business combination. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured at the
acquisition-date fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued, liabilities incurred and any contingent consideration.
Acquisition-related costs are recognised as expenses in the
periods in which the costs are incurred and the services are
received. ldentifiable assets and liabilities of the subsidiary in the
acquisition are measured at their acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the sum of the consideration transferred is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase which is attributed to the Group.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest in the subsidiary is remeasured at its acquisition-
date fair value and the resulting gain or loss is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss. The fair value is added to the sum of
the consideration transferred in a business combination to
calculate the goodwill.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are initially
measured at the non-controlling shareholders’ proportionate
share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets
and liabilities at the acquisition date.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs”) or groups of CGUs
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill
is monitored for internal management purposes. Goodwill is
monitored at the operating segment level. Goodwill impairment
reviews are undertaken annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill is compared to
the recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use and
the fair value less costs of disposal. Any impairment is recognised
immediately as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of an entity but is not
control or joint control over those policies. The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible, including potential voting rights held by other entities,
are considered when assessing whether the Group has
significant influence. In assessing whether a potential voting right
contributes to significant influence, the holder’s intention and
financial ability to exercise or convert that right is not considered.

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements by the equity method and is initially
recognised at cost. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the
associate in an acquisition are measured at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the associate’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The
goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the investment and
is tested for impairment together with the investment at the end
of each reporting period when there is objective evidence that
the investment is impaired. Any excess of the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or loss.

The Group’s share of an associate’s post-acquisition profits or
losses and other comprehensive income is recognised in
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in the associate (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate), the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate. If the associate
subsequently reports profits, the Group resumes recognising its
share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals the
share of losses not recognised.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ire WK R

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE-Z-hF+-A=1t—RLFE
(LA TTER)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 4. FEGTEER(E)

(c) Associates (continued) (c) HE&EATE (&)
The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that results in a HEBE N RMERKEBTALENKEIE
loss of significant influence represents the difference between (i) BhEONLERBERAFERERRZEE QA
the fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of ARMREBIRE RN FEEE () A EBRZEE R
any investment retained in that associate and (ii) the Group’s A2 HREE(BEEE) AREMHEHER
entire carrying amount of that associate (including goodwill) and FHONBIMEFEREMERE MRE S
any related accumulated foreign currency translation reserve. If RANBERA—BEELEFTNRE - A&
an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint BEEERAED LM TENTE2REER
venture, the Group continues to apply the equity method and
does not remeasure the retained interest.
Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and its A B BAR éiﬁ”‘* FR 28R ER & F
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interests in AR EEREE R TNER AR  MAER
the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the Eﬁﬁﬂﬂ@@ﬁéx%ﬁE’é%ﬁ@rﬁﬁiﬁ%E’Jﬁ?ﬁ
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset BRER TAHE - BEARNSTBERE
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been REFZERELEE LAEE1%E51$‘§IWT%£W
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies R ER—2 -
adopted by the Group.

(d) Foreign currency translation (d) ssmE

(i) Functional and presentation currency

() IRE RS EH

Items included in the financial statements of each of the REEZEEOVKREMIER - 19
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the N2 EEEEFELERENEE ([T
primary economic environment in which the entity operates BB ) ETE  SREMBIRERDARR
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial RN RFBEBATET -
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is
the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

(i) Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial (i) FRUBRENR BRAEL

Statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency on initial recognition using the
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
translated at the exchange rates at the end of each
reporting period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

SNEZ SIS R RARZ 5 A
ERANERBE R ER - AIMNEZ
FIMEREERBBERSBREHRER
MERIAE o FILIE X BUREENRE
BB TR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(@

Foreign currency translation (continued)

(i)

(i)

Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial
Statements (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in
foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rates
at the dates when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in other comprehensive income, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in profit or loss, any exchange component of
that gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
that have a functional currency different from the
Company’s presentation currency are translated into the
Company’s presentation currency as follows:

= Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that statement of financial position;

— Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates for the period (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are
translated at the exchange rates on the transaction
dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in
the foreign currency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of monetary items that form part of the net
investment in foreign entities are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the foreign
currency translation reserve. When a foreign operation is
sold, such exchange differences are reclassified to
consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on
disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE—Z
(LA TTER)

—HE+-A=+—HLEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) FESTEE(E)
(d) Foreign currency translation (continued) (d) HMEEIRE ()
(i) Translation on consolidation (continued) (i)  AEFREREE (E)
Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the WEEINERELANEERATEESA
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and BEREZSINEBNEERARRE
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing B WRRmERRE -
rate.
() Property, plant and equipment (e) W% BMEKRE
Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated ME - BB RRERERE TSR RIRK AR
statement of financial position at cost, less subsequent HEZHMEREZ R RESE(INE)T
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated R o
impairment losses, if any.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or B 7EB1E B AE R A R R B R 2 A AT sE AR
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is SEWEEMASTEEEKRANBERLT - £&
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item KRAFGHANEERAEXRRARBLEE
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured (RBRBERME) o FTA EAM KIS RAEEK
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit REEERETERERR
or loss during the period in which they are incurred.
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at W RRIE B A DA B AR A TR 6 L A AR
rates sufficient to write off their cost less their residual values over TR EEN R E - &R B F B E9r
the estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal E-XEFEMT:
annual rates are as follows:
Leasehold improvements 5 years or over the lease term, if shorter MENEEE S5 FREH(MER)
Office equipment 3-5 years NG 3ZE5F
Furniture and fixtures 3-5 years BRREE 3E5F
Computer hardware and software 3-5 years BB RS 3E5%F
The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are FIHEE TEFHETE T EZNSRERK
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each TR A (EA) -
reporting period.
The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is HEWE  BERSBENREIREEMSHRIE
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying FHEEEHEERMEMERMNZE  WHKIE
amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss. HAER ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U]

(9)

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation. An investment property is
measured initially at its cost including all direct costs attributable
to the property.

After initial recognition, the investment property is stated at its fair
value based on valuation by an external independent professional
valuer. Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of the
investment property are recognised in profit or loss for the period
in which they arise.

The gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the property, and is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in
the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure on development
activities is capitalised as intangible assets if the product or
process is technically and commercially feasible and the Group
has sufficient resources and the intention to complete
development. The expenditure capitalised includes the costs of
materials, direct labour, and an appropriate proportion of
overheads and borrowing costs (see note 4(t)), where applicable.
Capitalised development costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. Other
development expenditure is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

Customer relationship and computer software are that intangible
assets with finite useful lives and are acquired through business
combination. The intangible assets acquired in a business
combination are stated at cost, being the fair value at the date of
completion of the business combination, less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ire WK R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BHE-T—RAF+-A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTER)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 4. FEGTEER(E)

(9) Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued) (9 BEREEEGEUMN (8)

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is charged
to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated
useful lives. The following intangible assets with finite useful lives
are amortised from the date they are available for use and their
estimated useful lives are as follows:

— Development costs on personal computer 2-9 years
performance software, anti-virus software
and mobile applications (“Computer and
Mobile Phone Software”)
— Customer relationship 10 years
— Computer software 6 years

The residual values, useful lives and amortisation method are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

Operating Leases
The Group as lessee

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group all the risks
and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as
operating leases. Lease payments (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessor

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the lessees all the
risks and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as
operating leases. Rental income from operating leases is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

V)

0

Inventories

Inventories represent finished goods which are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the first-in, first-out basis. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

Contracts for services

Contract revenue on the rendering of services comprises the
agreed contract amount and appropriate amounts from variation
orders, claims and incentive payments arising from professional
[T contract services. Contract costs incurred comprise equipment
and material costs, subcontracting costs, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overheads.

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised on the
percentage of completion method, measured by reference to the
proportion of work completed to date to the estimated total work
of the relevant contract. Where the outcome of a contract cannot
be measured reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent
that the expenses incurred are eligible to be recovered.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are
anticipated by management.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits
less recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is
treated as an amount due from contract customers. Where
progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to date plus
recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus is treated
as an amount due to contract customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NN

SRR BT AT

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire; the Group transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets;
or the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset’s but has not retained
control on the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid is recognised in profit
or loss.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency
or bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

V)

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis where the purchase or sale of an financial asset is
under a contract whose terms require delivery of the financial
assets within the timeframe established by the market
concemned, and are initially measured at fair value, plus directly
attributable transaction costs except in the case of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss.

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, and available-for-sale. The classification depends on
the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its financial assets
at initial recognition.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
either financial assets classified as held for trading or
designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon initial
recognition. These financial assets are subsequently
measured at fair value. Gains or losses arising from
changes in fair value of these financial assets are
recognised in profit or loss.

(ii) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. These assets are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method (except for short-
term receivables where interest is immaterial) minus any
reduction for impairment or uncollectibility. Typically trade
and other receivables, amount due from non-controlling
interests, bank balances and cash are classified in this
category.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ire WK R

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE_Z-—RF+_A=1T—HILFE
(AETTIIR)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 4. FEEFTECR ()
()  Financial assets (continued) n =mEEGE
(i) Available-for-sale financial assets (i)  AIRHESHEE
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative AHEEeREERIIIBRERR
financial assets that are not classified as loans and Hib EWHIE - HEZEDIHANKREN
receivables, held-to-maturity investments or financial BRBRUATEEENSHEEDN
assets at fair value through profit or loss. Available-for-sale ETHESRMEE - AR ESREER
financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value. BRATEENE BARSREANAF
Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of these BEZEHMEENRENBER L2
investments are recognised in other comprehensive HAREERATRIEEEGHHBRET B
income and accumulated in the investment revaluation EHEXSRENATEERBRRE
reserve, until the investments are disposed of or there is HIRRME AL - ERERTEEMEERK
objective evidence that the investments are impaired, at mERR MR BEEERREN D
which time the cumulative gains or losses previously HEER o IS UEBBRFIEEFERT
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified HEEREIRENFSNIERER -
from equity to profit or loss. Interest calculated using the
effective interest method and dividends on available-for-
sale equity investments are recognised in profit or loss.
(m) Trade and other receivables (m) EZREAMEKRRIE
Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for money B REMERFBAEREESAEFRRE
lending, merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary B EfmmRmiReREmERE SR
course of business. If collection of trade and other receivables is 18 o '8 5 Rk E A FE W IETE ST S E — S 50A
expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of AU E (N E RAIEZEKESEEBEERN) -
the business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If AN EARBEE - TR - AIRIERBEEF
not, they are presented as non-current assets. 2% -
Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value B REMBUFREVZZAFEEER &
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective & A BB A SO R 8 AR AN RO (E B A
interest method, less allowance for impairment. g
(n) Cash and cash equivalents n) RERBRSEEY

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand, demand
deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and short-
term highly liquid investments which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of
change in value. Bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are
also included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.

HRAESREXRME - RE MRS FEYERT
RFERS  FHRRRITREMGITBEEENE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(0) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according
to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument
under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for
specific financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out
below.

(i) Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

(ii) Convertible notes

Convertible notes which entitle the holder to convert the
notes into a fixed number of equity instruments at a fixed
conversion price are regarded as compound instruments
that consist of a liability and an equity component. At the
date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is
estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for
similar non-convertible debt. The difference between the
proceeds of issue of the convertible notes and the fair
value assigned to the liability component, representing the
embedded option for the holder to convert the notes into
equity of the Group, is included in equity as convertible
note equity reserve. The liability component is carried as a
liability at amortised cost using the effective interest
method until extinguished on conversion or redemption.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability
and equity components of the convertible notes based on
their relative carrying amounts at the date of issue. The
portion relating to the equity component is charged
directly to equity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE_ZT
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(LA TTER)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 4. FEEFTECR ()
(o) Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued) (o) =®MEBERRAIAE)
(i) Convertible notes (continued) (i) CIE S ESAC )
If the note is converted, the convertible note equity MEEER% - BT RR IR ER R
reserve, together with the carrying amount of the liability ERREEESSNRAEERE
component at the time of conversion, is transferred to ARG HE - ERBEITIRHK
share capital and share premium as consideration for the 1B - WMRBEER - R RRERER
shares issued. If the note is redeemed, the convertible HESEERZEREEN
note equity reserve is released directly to retained profits.
(i) Trade and other payables (i)  BBREMETTE
Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair %&,JME#J‘*”IE?E*FE’AJ?FEEJ
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using C H 1B DVE R R ROE R 8 A ARG
the effective interest method unless the effect of % CBRIFREER R EEN - RLERT
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are AR AR A BR
stated at cost.
(iv)  Performance shares iv)  RERLG
Performance shares are classified as a financial liability as FEBRMAEASRERE  REALD
it is resulted from a contract under contingent RESAREBLZHETELN - Bl
consideration arrangement. The amount will be initially MR AT EEFE - HERATEEY
measured at fair value. The subsequent fair value change BEHEERAFEEFE  WRNIBRHE
will then be measured at fair value recognised in profit or R e
loss.
(v)  Equity instruments )y RAEXILA
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded RARBEITHRATAZEWATSKIE
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. R EBEBITRANALR o
(p) Derivative financial instruments p) PTEEMIA
Derivatives are initially recognised and subsequently measured at PMETANPRATFEERER HERATE
fair value. Changes in the fair value of derivatives are recognised BitE - TET AR T EENEHNEERT
in profit or loss as they arise. BEAHER -
Derivatives embedded in other financial instruments or non- iR EMem T AN EFeRMFEENNITET
financial host contracts are treated as separate derivatives when ENRBRESHEETANEZTHE - A%
their risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of FEHRBEARRE AT EEES - AIZEE
the host contract with changes in fair value recognised in profit or AEBUHITETRERRE -
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(q)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in
profit or loss as follows:

()

(i)

Service income

Revenue from website development is recognised
when the services are rendered.

Revenue from software application, e-learning
platform and maintenance services is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the term of the service
contract.

Revenue from corporate management solution
service contracts and professional IT service
contracts is recognised on the percentage of
completion method, measured by reference to the
proportion of work completed to date to the
estimated total work of the relevant contract, where
the outcome of a contract cannot be measured
reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent
that the expenses incurred are eligible to be
recovered.

Revenue from IT maintenance service is recognised
when the service are rendered.

Sale income

Revenue from the sale of application software, sale of
goods, hardware and software is recognised when
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods
have been transferred to the buyer, provided that the
Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership, nor effective
control over the goods sold.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AN
NN

SRR BT AT

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(i)

(iv)

Loan interest income

Interest income on loans are recognised on an accrual
basis using the effective interest method by applying the
rate that discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset. When a loan
has been written down as a result of an impairment loss,
interest income is recognised using the rate of interest
used to discount the future cash receipts for the purpose
of measuring the impairment loss.

Toolbar and advertisement

Toolbar revenue is derived principally from online toolbar
private label arrangements with toolbar service providers.
The Group allows the toolbar service providers to launch
their toolbar installation application associated with the
installation of the Group’s software. One part of the toolbar
revenue is received from the service providers based on
number of qualified installation. Another part of toolbar
revenue is from search-based income. When the users
use the search engine incorporated in the toolbar to
search for goods and services, and they purchase the
goods and services from the advertisements listed in the
search result, the toolbar service provider will share part of
the revenue it receives with the Group.

Income from advertisement is derived principally from
online advertising arrangements. The Group enters into
advertising arrangements with advertisers to allow them to
put advertisements on particular areas of the Group’s
electronic platforms, or embedded hyperlinks to
advertisements in the Group’s electronic platform. For the
hyperlinks embedded in the Group’s websites, the
advertisers pay the Group based on number of clicks on
the hyperlinks.

The Group recognises revenue when the revenue can be
measured reliably and the collectability is reasonably
assured.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(@) Revenue recognition (continued)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viif)

Commission income

Commission income from provision of an online shopping
platform is recognised when the services are rendered.

Commission income from insurance and mandatory
provident fund schemes brokerage services is recognised
on an accrual basis based on the commissioning of the
respective insurance policies and mandatory provident
fund schemes.

Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Bank interest income

Bank interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
rights to receive payment are established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AN
NN

SRR BT AT

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U]

(s)

Employee benefits

()

(i)

(i)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement
schemes which are available to all employees.
Contributions to the schemes by the Group and
employees are calculated as a percentage of employees’
basic salaries. The retirement benefit scheme cost
charged to profit or loss represents contributions payable
by the Group to the funds.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of the
dates when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs and involves the payment of
termination benefits.

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to
certain directors, employees and consultants.

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors and employees

are measured at the fair value (excluding the effect of non-market

based vesting conditions) of the equity instruments at the date of

grant. The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-
settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line

basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of

shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of non-

market based vesting conditions.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

(t)

Share-based payments (continued)

Equity-settled share-based payments to consultants are
measured at the fair value of the services rendered or if the fair
value of the services rendered cannot be reliably measured, at
the fair value of the equity instruments granted. The fair value is
measured at the date the Group receives the services and is
recognised as an expense.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation is determined by applying a
capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset. The
capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs
applicable to the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR BTSRRI AT
For the year ended 31 December 2015 BHE-T—RAF+-A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTER)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 4. FEGTEER(E)

(u) Taxation (v HimE

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred
tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or loss
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused tax credits
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is
realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(u) Taxation (continued)

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its
current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

(v) Related parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.

(A) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Company or of a parent of the Company.

(B)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Company are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AN
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ypE esdiiE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE—Z
(LA TTER)

—HE+-A=+—HLEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) FESHBEE)
(v) Related parties (continued) (v) EdEERH (&)
(B)  (continued) ®

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the W) —Fﬁ;‘s:ﬁ?i;% ME=FREBNS

other entity is an associate of the third entity. = SNt VEEE
FEMEE QT

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the ) BERRUARESAEMEAREE
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity B RAE RO BNz R OB
related to the Group. If the Group s itself such a BB S - WAKREAHER
plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to BarEl RUBBWEERER
the Group. SEAREH -

(i)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a V) EERmEBEMEATEHRN
person identified in (A). Rz -

(vi) A person identified in (A)i) has significant influence Vi) (A)EFTIRATHERBERY
over the entity or is a member of the key ENARERAERIAAEER
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent EEARZ—-
of the entity).

(w) Impairment of non-financial assets W) HFEeREERE

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed at FERMEENRAERSREH AR ZE
each reporting date for indications of impairment and where an BEDR - HEEDRE  AEBERERER
asset is impaired, it is written down as an expense through the AR MR ER G A RE S - ARESE
consolidated statement of profit or loss to its estimated TR R AR - R EY MEE RIS
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is determined for BURAMEEXAEBAORSRA - AIF
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash KESBHAENMBORSELBITERE - 7
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or WESERENAEERREELETHOERE
groups of assets. If this is the case, recoverable amount is ERADFERERNERAME R IRSE °
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. Recoverable amount is the higher of value in use and
the fair value less costs of disposal of the individual asset or the
cash-generating unit.
Value in use is the present value of the estimated future cash EREEAREE ReEHE LA RKRS
flows of the asset/cash-generating unit. Present values are REMNREBE - RERRMEESHEAEARE
computed using pre-tax discount rates that reflect the time value E/BeELET(BEERE)OEERBLY
of money and the risks specific to the asset/cash-generating unit TRATRRIR &5 E o
whose impairment is being measured.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w)

()

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

Impairment losses for cash-generating units are allocated first
against the goodwill of the unit and then pro rata amongst the
other assets of the cash-generating unit. Subsequent increases
in the recoverable amount caused by changes in estimates are
credited to profit or loss to the extent that they reverse the
impairment.

Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses whether
its financial assets (other than those at fair value through profit or
loss) are impaired, based on objective evidence that, as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For available-for-sale equity instruments, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below its
cost is considered also to be objective evidence of impairment.

In addition, for trade receivables that are assessed not to be
impaired individually, the Group assesses them collectively for
impairment, based on the Group’s past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the delayed payments in the portfolio,
observable changes in economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables, etc.

Only for trade receivables, the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against
the allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

v)

@

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if the amount of
the impairment loss decreases in a subsequent period and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed (either directly or by adjusting the
allowance account for trade receivables) through profit or loss.
However, the reversal must not result in a carrying amount that
exceeds what the amortised cost of the financial asset would
have been had the impairment not been recognised at the date
the impairment is reversed.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the reporting
period or those that indicate the going concern assumption is not
appropriate are adjusting events and are reflected in the
consolidated financial statements. Events after the reporting
period that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to
the consolidated financial statements when material.

HE_Z-—RF+_A=1T—HILFE
(AETTIIR)

FTEEFHE (&)
x =Z=HEEREGE)

v)

@

FIZBHKAT ENEBREENS  MIRERS
BERENERARRD  MZR D AT ATE
HERRERBEEN—IREHERE - REAE
ERNRESREBERRE (B RFEEH
BEEHRUEROBER) - AW BETE
BIREESKREYEEDNEZASHE
EREEIREE B OBHRA -

BERIRERE

HAERESBEEMHAAEREEARIMER
£ BETZEFETRRSBIEEN AL
WaerI St % MERELRHRESET
EENBEERERE WEKHEBEX A
REMBETREENRXIRERELRE

T NARAIBER BRHE N - e BEEA
SER - AFHEEERBEAIAREE Bk
M H) AT BE ARG R VE R - B BB AR
BEE RN STERREFEEEFERSH
AREEE  MEBEALARAE  BRIERBHA
BB R RI(E R -

REHERSBR

REAAASENREFHRARRBINER L
BRRBEERRE TNEENRENRERS
ATRBEER  UNGAPBHRRS R -
BEMREEBEAMA B AT HESE
AlgRERE PSR M P E -

106

GET Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2015



For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions conceming the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the
related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed

below.

(a)

(b)

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the value in use (“VIU”) of the CGU to which goodwill has been
allocated. The value in use calculation requires the directors to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the CGU
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present value.
The carrying amount of goodwill at the end of the reporting
period was approximately HK$525,878,000 (2014:
HK$525,878,000). Details of the impairment test for CGU
containing goodwill are set out in note 22.

Recoverability of intangible assets

During the year, the management has evaluated the impairment
of intangible assets by way of higher of VIU calculation by
reference to the discounted cash flows derived from financial
budgets approved by the management of the Group or fair value
less cost to disposal with reference to the latest market
transactions (“FVLCTS”). If the higher of the VIU or FVLCTS is
less than the corresponding carrying amounts, an impairment
loss may be required.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

5.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(continued)

Recoverability of intangible assets (continued)

()

(i)

Development costs on Computer and Mobile Phone
Software

During the year, the Group reconsidered the recoverability
of its internally-generated intangible asset arising from the
Group’s Computer and Mobile Phone Software
development, which is included in its consolidated
statement of financial position at 31 December 2015 at
approximately HK$62,759,000. The projects continue to
progress in a very satisfactory manner, and customer
reaction has reconfirmed the Group’s previous estimates
of anticipated revenues from the projects. However,
increased competitor activity has caused the Group to
reconsider its assumptions regarding future market shares
and anticipated margins on these products. Detailed
sensitivity analysis has been carried out and the Group is
confident that the carrying amount of the asset will be
recovered in full, even if returns are reduced. This situation
will be closely monitored, and adjustments made in future
periods, if future market activity indicates that such
adjustments are appropriate.

Customer relationship and computer software

The management determines whether customer
relationship and computer software are impaired requires
an estimation of the VIU of the CGU to which the assets
are allocated. The VIU calculation requires the directors to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the
CGU and a suitable discount rate to calculate the present
value. No impairment loss was recognised for the years
ended 31 December 2015 and 2014. Detailed of the
impairment review are provided in note 22.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(continued)

(c)

(@

Estimated useful lives of intangible assets

The estimated useful lives of intangible assets reflect
management’s estimation on the Group’s intention to derive
future economic benefits from the intangible assets. The
management performs annual reviews of whether the
assumptions made of useful lives continue to be valid. When
useful lives of intangible assets are different from those previously
estimated, the amortisation charges for future periods will be
adjusted accordingly.

The carrying amount of intangible assets as at 31 December
2015 was approximately HK$74,416,000 (2014:
HK$74,853,000).

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group estimates the useful lives and residual values of
property, plant and equipment in order to determine the amount
of depreciation expenses to be recorded. The useful lives and
residual values are estimated at the time the asset is acquired
based on historical experience, the expected usage, wear and
tear of the assets, as well as technical obsolescence arising from
changes in market demand or service output of the assets. The
Group also performs annual reviews on whether the assumptions
made on useful lives and residual values continue to be valid. The
Group will revise the depreciation charge where useful lives and
residual values are different to those previously estimated, or it
will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AN
NN

SRR BT AT

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

5.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(continued)

(e)

U]

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

The Group had available-for-sale investments which were stated
at their fair values on the basis of their quoted market prices at
the end of the reporting period, on an individual basis. Any gains
or losses are recognised as a separate component of equity until
the investment is derecognised or until the investment is
determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or
loss previously reported in equity is included in profit or loss.
Management has to assess whether objective evidence of
significant impairment exists and consider whether it is
appropriate to charge the cumulative loss to profit or loss. In
making its judgement, the Group considers (i) the future prospect
of the underlying investments; and (ii) the underlying financial
position of the investments.

During the year, approximately HK$1,309,000 (2014:
HK$20,732,000) of impairment loss on available-for-sale financial
assets was charged to profit or loss.

Fair value of available-for-sale financial assets

The fair value of available-for-sale financial assets that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques and considering information from a variety of sources,
including the latest financial information from the fund manager
or administrator. The Group uses its judgement to select a variety
of methods and make assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in these estimates and assumptions could have a
material effect on the fair value of the available-for-sale financial
assets.

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 to determine when
an available-for-sale equity investment is impaired. This
determination requires significant judgement. In making this
judgement, the Group evaluates, among other factors, the
duration and extent to which the fair value of an investment is
less than its cost; and the financial health of and short-term
business outlook for the investee, including factors such as
industry and sector performance, changes in technology as well
as operational and financing cash flow.

If declines in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets below
cost were considered significant or prolonged, additional
impairment may be required.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

5.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(continued)

U]

(9)

(h)

Fair value of available-for-sale financial assets
(continued)

The carrying amount of available-for-sale financial assets at the
end of the reporting period was approximately HK$150,716,000
(2014: HK$73,150,000) after an impairment loss of approximately
HK$1,309,000 (2014: HK$20,732,000) being transfer, the
accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equity to the
profit or loss.

Trade and other receivables

The aged debt profile of trade and other receivables is reviewed
on a regular basis to ensure that the debtor balances are
collectible and follow up actions are promptly carried out if the
agreed credit periods have been exceeded. However, from time
to time, the Group may experience delays in collection. Where
recoverability of debtor balances is called into doubt, specific
provisions for impairment losses are made based on credit status
of the customers, the aged analysis of the trade and other
receivable balances and their write-off history. Certain receivables
may be initially identified as collectible, yet subsequently become
uncollectible and result in a subsequent write-off of the related
receivable to the statement of profit or loss. Changes in the
collectability of trade and other receivables for which provision
are not made could affect the results of operations.

As at 31 December 2015, accumulated impairment loss for bad
and doubtful debts were approximately HK$206,000 (2014:
HKSN).

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions.
Significant estimates are required in determining the worldwide
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognised
liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

During the year, approximately HK$23,940,000 (2014:
HK$19,000,000) of income tax was charged to profit or loss
based on the estimated profit from operations.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

5.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(continued)

V)

0

Revenue and profit recognition

The Group estimates the percentage of completion of the
contracts for services by reference to the proportion that the
stage of work performed to date to the estimated total costs for
the contracts. When the final cost incurred by the Group is
different from the amounts that were initially budgeted, such
differences will impact the revenue and profit or loss recognised
in the period in which such determination is made.

During the year, approximately HK$5,143,000 (2014:
HK$8,422,000) of revenue from the contracts for services was
recognised.

Fair value of derivative component

As disclosed in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements,
the fair value of the derivative component of the convertible notes
at the date of issue and the end of the reporting period were
determined using binomial model. Application of binomial model
requires the Group to estimate the prominent factors affecting
the fair value, including but not limited to, the expected volatility
of the share prices of the Company and the expected dividend
yield of the Company. Where the estimation of these factors is
different from those previously estimated, such differences will
impact the fair value gain or loss on the derivative component in
the period in which such determination is made.

The carrying amount of the derivative financial assets as at 31
December 2015 were HK$21,564,000 (2014: HK$NIl).
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign

currency risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk.

The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the

unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(a)

(b)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk as most
of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in the functional currencies of the Group entities
and United States dollars (“US$”). The Group currently does not
have a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of foreign
currency transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group monitors
its foreign currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

The effects of the strengthened or weakened of Hong Kong
dollars against US$ on the profit after tax is not significant.

Price risk

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value. Therefore, the Group is exposed to equity
security price risk due to the fluctuation of shares prices of
available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss. The directors review the exposure to the
equity security price risk on the available-for-sale financial assets
and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss regularly.

As at 31 December 2015, the share prices of the available-for-
sale financial assets and the financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss increase/decrease by 10%, the other
comprehensive income and profit after tax for the year would
have been approximately HK$12,010,000 higher/lower and
approximately HK$27,000,000 higher/lower respectively, arising
as a result of the fair value gain/loss of the available-for-sale
financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

Price risk (continued)

At 31 December 2015, the Group had concentration of equity
security price risk on two of its listed securities investments in
Hong Kong accounted for 69% of its available-for-sale financial
assets and one of its listed investments in Hong Kong accounted
for 99% of its financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
as at 31 December 2015.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s available-for-sale financial
assets and performance shares were measured at fair value.
Therefore, the Group is exposed to equity security price due to
the fluctuation of share price of available-for-sale financial assets
and the changes in the Company’s own shares prices to the
extent that the Company’s own shares underline the fair value of
performance shares.

As at 31 December 2014, the share prices of the available-for-
sale financial assets and the Company’s own shares increase/
decrease by 10%, the other comprehensive income and profit
after tax for that year would had been approximately
HK$6,214,000 higher/lower and approximately HK$1,197,000
lower/higher respectively, arising as a result of the fair value gain/
loss of the available-for-sale financial assets and fair value loss/
gain of the performance shares.

At 31 December 2014, the Group had concentration of equity
security price risk on one of its listed securities investments in
Hong Kong and one unlisted investment fund which accounted
for 64% of its available-for-sale financial assets as at 31
December 2014 and of equity security price risk on their shares
of the Group.

BE-_T—AF+-A=+—RILFE

(AETTIIR)

6.

M EREE (5
(b) EEREGE

R-Z—FRE+-A=+—8 KEEHBRE
BHERRREFREFREES LMHEHE
g HAMELESREEI% - MEF I8
EALTHRE HEER-_ZT—RAFT=-A
—t+—BEBBFEUATEEIENEREE
99% °

WoT—mE+=A=+—8  ARE0TH
HESRAERRRRGHEATEENE -
Rt - AEEFERABLERER  FEA
T A ERE AR TR R RE
FHEBRRBRA AT FEAD -

RZZ-—NF+-A=+—8  HafHEs
MEERARAAREORMHKRE LA T
10% + BIZR G /5 o 2 T e ik B R 5044 0 1 8
AR ESHEENA T EE RS EE KX
REROHRATFEBEERWasm o Blg
/A 496,214,000 7T KR 1 H0 4
1,197,000 7T ©

MNZZ-—NFE+-A=+—H AEEHERK
EFEREREPRER—REE LTEFK
ER—AFLHREES (HER-T—MNF
ToA=+t—BNAHHESREE64% M
REEBROAZBAFSBEBREAR -

114

GET Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2015



For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other
receivables, pledged bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents. Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing
basis.

The credit risk on bank deposits is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers and service providers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the customers’ and service providers’ past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer and service provider
as well as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer and service provider operate. The directors are of the
opinion that no provision for uncollectible receivables is required
in the consolidated financial statements. Normally, the Group
does not obtain collateral or guarantee from customers and
service providers except the loan receivables under money
lending business.

At 31 December 2015, the Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk.

At 31 December 2014, the Group has concentration of credit risk
as three largest trade receivables represent approximately 56%
of total trade receivables as at 31 December 2014 which are the
largest trade receivables each of the Group’s Money Lending
Business, Software Business and Insurance and MPF Schemes
Brokerage Business.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other receivables
are set out in note 28.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Re MR R

BE-_T—AF+-A=+—RULFE

(AETTIIR)

6. MBEREE(H)

()

FERR

AEENEERBREIRRBE S REMEKR
B BEMRTEIUARRSRRSEEY -
EREIAGERE  SRAREMAZNE
B o

RITEFNEERBREBR - HARE AEE
=1 AR MERTT

HRESHREMEKFEANS ARESRHME
BRBBAETEESRENETP R HERE
TERIEEE - ZEF G ETP RRBHE
FEF BRI A REER & B ATAO {1 5RAE

Y EZEIBARFERTF RRGHEEEARESE
BREXBRAEKERENEN - EERA £
B BT R A B R A AT UK 2 R TR IR R AR
e —RME  ARELEAEPS KRB HE
AR R ER  EEREBRTRLE
RO

R-ZE—HE+-_A=+—0 A&EEVES
AeBERBEFHIER

RZZ-—NF+-A=+—0 AEEFHEE
BERBETOER  REAR-_T—NF+=
A=+—H=XRESRUEXEE ZRUER
BRI 56% » IAKBEEERTY - BHEEBN
ERBERESFEELEBRENEAES
FEMRR

BRASRERE S REMERRANAZNE
BRBEE— P BRBE AR N8 -

BoEIRARAR / F3] 2015

115



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ire WK R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BHE-T—RAF+-A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTER)
6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. HXEKRERE(E)
(d) Liquidity risk (d FRBESRR
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected REEBK T ERERRE RERTSDHREH
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient Z . URREREHRSHERTEHRRE
reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short RBESHFE -

and longer term.

The maturity analysis based on contractual undiscounted cash BEAEESRABBENEGORURBERAE
flows of the Group’s financial liabilities is as follows: WEEBE ST -
2015
—E-FF
More than
More than 2 years
Within 1 year but but less
1 year or less than than After
on demand 2 years 5years 5years Total
1ER BB1E BB2F
REREE  BOR2F  BIRSE 5%#% @
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TR TR Tz TR
Trade payables BAERER 19,201 - - - 19,201
Deposits received BlkEe 72 - - - 72
Amounts due to non-controlling interests P —RIM B A RFEER
of a subsidiary ERSHTIE 1,332 - - - 1,332
Loan notes interest payables EREFZERE 4,990 = = = 4,990
Accrued expenses and other payables BB R RE MR FE 26,524 = = = 26,524
Total trade and other payables EHREMEMNTARE 52,119 = = = 52,119
Loan notes EXER - 245,870 - - 245,870
Convertible notes HRERE - 75,208 - - 75,208
52,119 321,078 - - 373,197
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. HXEKRERE(E)
(d) Liquidity risk (continued) (d) REBESRERE(E)
2014
—ZT— N
More than More than
1 year 2 years
Within but less but less
1 year or than than After
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
15/ BiB1F BB2F
REXEE BoRE BOREE 55 it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL FAT FAT FAT FAT
Trade payables B ARNIRR 37,502 - - - 37,502
Deposits received BlkEe 38,121 - - - 38,121
Accrued expenses and other payables [ER B A REMERNTE 21,393 - - - 21,393
Total trade and other payables B 5 REMERFIBASE 97,016 - - - 97,016
(e) Interest rate risk () REER

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s significant interest-bearing
assets and liabilities are bank deposits, loan receivables and loan
notes. As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s significant interest-
bearing assets were bank deposits and loan receivables.

The Group’s interest income from bank deposits is dependent
on changes in market interest rates and will not have significant
adverse impact on the Group’s financial position.

The Group’s pledged bank deposits, loan receivables and loan
notes are at fixed interest rates and therefore are subject to fair
values interest rate risk.

RZZ-—AF+-A=+—H0 XEEHEKX
AREERBERRTER  BREFRRER
RE-R-_ZT-OF+-_A=t—H A&H
BB R BEERRITFRRERER -

RE B R IRTTIF 3R B AZERR F T 5 ) R
PWE - WHAEEOM BN ESAF

240
= e

AEEHBEFRITESR  BRERRERER
BRBEENEGE  BARAFEENEXE
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE_Z-—RF+_A=1T—HILFE
(AETTIIR)

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) KRR EE ()
()  Categories of financial instruments at 31 December H HT-A=t+—HMEsIAER
2015 2014
—E-RF —T—mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHTT
Financial assets: SREE

Financial assets at fair value through FBBTZUAFEEYES

profit or loss: TREE -

Held for trading BHEEE 323,082 -
Derivatives financial instruments TEEmMITA 21,564 -
Available-for-sale financial assets B ESREE 150,716 73,150
Loans and receivables (including cash and B3k & W EIE (B1F

cash equivalents) HNERRESEEY) 305,741 224,065
Financial liabilities: THEeE:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit ~ R¥)FHEREIETFE AFEBIED

or loss designated upon initial recognition NAFEEIIENeRERE - 14,331
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REHENAGENERAE 333,144 97,016

() Fair value (99 2AFEHE

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and REBGEUBRARAREREERSRE
financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement of ERRAEREEENATEEBERS -
financial position approximate their respective fair values.

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS AEEEFE

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to ANEEEETS2EECHARFTERBREERR ST

transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants HEEEBUMAEREBERZIAHER - TXHE

at the measurement date. The following disclosures of fair value FRATEESRFENATEE  BIETEATE
measurements use a fair value hierarchy that categorises into three BERHETERABBRR LY B=[ERK7 :

levels the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for FE—REAEE : AEEARGEABRGSHERE
identical assets or liabilities that the Group can EXEENETRTMERE(RE
access at the measurement date. AEE) -

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included within level FoAMARE : EREAMAENEAESEBETEE
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either ARG MEE—RFABEN
directly or indirectly. RME -

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. FEoRM AR BEXBBENTAIBRGASE -

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of AEBHWRRAERHEE S B L BHEREEDN

any of the three levels as of the date of the event or change in E{ = (A4 BEE A K8 SR o

circumstances that caused the transfer.
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Re MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BHE-T—RAF+-A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTER)
7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) 7. ATEEEE)
(@) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 (@ RBT-A=+—HWATEEZEREE
December:
Fair value measurement using: Total
ATEEFERABR Foby
DESCRIPTION Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2015
#15 E—R& et E=HK =FT-IF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FTHET FHERT FTHET

Recurring fair value measurements: KEMAFEEIE

Financial assets EtWMEE
Financial assets at fair value through BBBEREUAFEE
profit or loss PR S REE
Listed securities FHRAES 323,082 - - 323,082
Derivatives financial instruments PTESMITA - - 21,564 21,564
Available-for-sale financial assets A ESRmEE
Listed securities EHES 120,103 - - 120,103
Unlisted investment funds FETREES - - 30,613 30,613
Total st 443,185 - 52,177 495,362
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(a)

BE-T-HE+-AS+—HILER
(LAETTHIR)

7. AFEEEGER)

Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 (@ WTZA=+—HMAFEESHIKE
December: (continued) (#8)
Fair value measurement using: Total
NEEEFEMABY FEh
DESCRIPTION Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2014
Ed £ EH E=fH —ZT—HF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FiET FHT FiET
Recurring fair value measurements: REMHAFEEE
Financial assets tWMEE
Available-for-sale financial assets AIHHESREE
Listed securities EWEH 62,144 - - 62,144
Unlisted investment funds FLEMEEES - - 11,006 11,006
Total et 62,144 - 11,006 73,150
Recurring fair value measurements: &M AL EETE
Financial liabilities cREE
Performance shares =ERML S = 14,331 14,331
Total Foy - - 14,331 14,331

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the

year.

RAFEN F— ZR=BRZELEEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

HE—Z
(LA TTER)

—HE+-A=+—BHLEE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) 7. AV EEFEE)
(b) Reconciliation of assets/(liabilities) measured at fair (b) REF=HRAFEENENEE (A
value based on level 3: &) $ ik
2015
—E-hHF
Derivative Unlisted
financial investment Performance
instruments funds shares
fTESMIE FLHREES RARD
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT TET FET
At 1 January 2015 R-Z—HFE—F—H = 11,006 (14,331)
Purchases/additions BB/ ~E 21,564 21,000 -
Distributions N = (2,639) =
Settlements “EAt - - 13,165
Total gains recognised RTHIIE B #ER R e A
— in profit or loss — Bz® = = 1,166
— in other comprehensive income — HEfb2ERE - 1,246 -
At 31 December 2015 —EFE+-_A=+—8” 21,564 30,613 -
2014
—E-mF
Derivative Unlisted
financial investment Performance
instruments funds shares
PTESMIA FLTREES ~EAR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FHT FHT
At 1 January 2014 R-ZZE—ME—A—A = = (104,568)
Purchases BE = 11,000 -
Settlements #EAT - - 32,914
Total gains recognised RTFITE B R a8
— in profit or loss — B (*) - - 57,323
— in other comprehensive income — b2 ERE - 6
At 31 December 2014 R=-FT—ME+=-A=+—A 3 11,006 (14,331)
(#) Included in other gains or losses. #) AEARf s B A -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

7.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(b)

(c)

Reconciliation of assets/(liabilities) measured at fair
value based on level 3: (continued)

The total gains recognised in other comprehensive income are
presented in fair value gain on available-for-sale financial assets
in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

The total gains recognised in profit or loss including those for
assets/(liabilities) held at end of reporting period are presented in
other gains and losses in the statement of profit or loss.

Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value
measurements at 31 December 2015:

The Group’s management is responsible for the fair value
measurements of assets and liabilities required for financial
reporting purposes, including level 3 fair value measurements.
The management reviews the fair value measurements at least
once a year.

For level 3 fair value measurements, the Group will normally
engage external valuation experts with the recognised
professional qualifications and recent experience to perform the

valuations.

Key unobservable inputs used in level 3 fair value measurements
are mainly:

— risk free rate (estimated based on zero coupon rate)

= yield spread (estimated based on certain comparable
bonds)

— expected volatility (estimated based on historical volatility)

= dividend yield (estimated based on no dividends will be
paid in the near future)

— present value of expected future share price (estimated
based on dividend yield is zero)

BE-_T—AF+-A=+—RILFE

(AETTIIR)

7.

DNV EEEE)

(b)

()

REF=RRLOFEEFENEE (&
B8R : (&)

RE M2 E W SRR s RN R R HA
EEBRERPAIREESREEATFEERSE

E

RESERNKSEREERBENRAEE
E/(afF)  tREskhEmkakBEs
51

BEASER=-F-HF+=-A=1—
AfAGERF  EERMRAFEE
BEGELPN ¢

AEEEREE ARV BBRSETAREER
BENXFEEAE2(BEE=AATEE
8) BRESFEL RRIQTEEME -

HRE=ZRATEEAEMNS  AKE—REE
ABRUEXER BB OMGERRHIMNEE
[EEE

E=MATEEMAIETTEEGABEE
BEE:

ERBANE(RETERERME)

- hEEREREE TUELBRESGRD)

—  TAEURIE (REBELIREGED)

- BEXRMRBIAGRIGIRNES MG
&)

-  FEHREBRENRE(REZREERMG
)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Re MR R

BE-_T—AF+-A=+—RULFE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AETTIIR)

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) 7. ATEEEE)

() Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group () BWEAFER-_Z—HF+-A=+-
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value HFFRMERR  HEERTRERATFEER
measurements at 31 December 2015: (continued) STEFTAWARE - (8)

Level 3 fair value measurements E=RAFEEFNE
Effect on fair
Valuation value for increase
Description technique Inputs Range of inputs Carrying amount Fair value 2015
BABESE M AYEE
#5 ERA BARE gE HATEENYE BREE “B-EfF
HK$°000 HK$’000
THET TR
Derivative financial ~ Binomial model Share price HK$0.21 Increase 21,564 21,564
Instruments —mERE Risk free rate 0.52% Increase
FTESRTA Yield spread 4.17% Decrease
Expected volatility 107.49% Increase
Dividend yield 0% Decrease
TR(E 02187 i
ERRAE 0.52% 0
Wiz 208 417% R
R IE 107.49% #5210
RExE 0% R
Unlisted investment  Net asset value Net asset value per share HK$9,566 Increase 30,613 30,613
funds EEFE FRAEHE 9,566 7T hn
ELTREES
Effect on fair
Valuation value for increase
Description technique Inputs Range of inputs Carrying Amount Fair value 2014
/ ] BAEEM AYEE
& fh{ERM BABIE #E HLATEENTE BEA —Z-mE
HK$'000 HK$'000
T TR
Performance Present value Present value of the HK$0.089 Increase 14,331 14,331
shares method future share price 0.08977T #h0
=ERI BE* ARBRENRE
Profit forecast 2015: From  Increase but limited
aFIEA US$8,600,000 by the maximum
to US$9,300,000  number of
ZZ—RF:  performance shares
8,600,000 TE EMERKRRR
9,300000%7T E&E=HAAR
Unlisted investment ~ Net asset value Net asset value HK$10,006 Increase 11,006 11,006
funds EEFE per share 10,006 7T &0
FETREES BREERE
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE-T-HFT
(LAETTHIR)

Z“RA=+—HIEFE

8. TURNOVER 8. XX
Turnover represents the sales value of goods and services supplied to CEBEMNRPHERERMBRENHEEEE - ~EEH
customers. An analysis of the Group’s turnover for the year is as REEREEBHITNOT -
follows:
2015 2014
—E-HF —E—pE
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FAT
Sales of computer and mobile phone HEESKERBEFSR AR
software and toolbar advertisement TABES 137,136 144,191
Loan interest income BERFEMA 5,133 1,105
Provision of insurance and mandatory provident R KRB A E ST S
fund schemes brokerage services 40 AR TS 71,368 76,507
Provision of corporate management solution and 12t ¥EIRER S R R E AR
I.T. contract services B HIRS 108,489 8,422
Commission income from provision of an online RIEEEBYFamBHEEKBA
shopping platform 1,933 2,947
Revenue from online shopping business B ERIA 670 621
Provision of website development for e-commerce 5t @ F 52 22 7512 (49 5 5 B¢
business - 500
324,729 234,293
9. OTHER REVENUE 9. HalA
2015 2014
—E—hF —T—mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THExT FAT
Bank interest income RITHFBUA 18 7
IT maintenance services income B ARH MR WA 2,328 1,939
Rental income HEWA 250 675
Dividend income A% B A 435 -
Others HAth 550 79
3,581 2,700
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BHE-T—RAF+-A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTER)
10. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET 10. HihsEREE  F5E
2015 2014
—E-HF —ZT—uEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Foreign exchange losses, net ME 5185 R (204) (114)
Fair value gain on financial assets at fair value FRERNAATEARIIRNERMEE
through profit or loss NEEERE 101,901 -
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale HEAHLESHEE
financial assets (11,931) -
Loss on disposal of financial assets at fair value HEBBBRUATEBTIERENSH
through profit or loss BENE ?E' (39,346) -
Gain/(loss) on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARMKEE(EiE)
(notes 41(c) and (d)) (Mt5E41(c) . (d) 5,302 (326)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment H&E ¥ « HE K EESEE (92) -
Impairment loss on property, Y% - BE REEREEE (H:E20)
plant and equipment (note 20) - (176)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale financial AT E &R E EREEE (15 26)
assets (note 26) (1,309) (20,732)
Impairment loss on goodwill (note 22) BB EEE (M 22) - (8,211)
Impairment loss on intangible assets (note 23) B EEREEE (F23) (5,946) (4,875)
Fair value gain on performance shares (note 33) RERM AFEEWES (H7E33) 1,166 57,323
Fair value gain on investment property (note 21) REMERNFEBEKS (F3E21) - 1,300
Gain on bargain purchase (note 41(a)) EEBEAWE (FfE41@) 35 =
Net sundry income/(expense) HEBA(FX)FE 84 (238)
49,660 23,951
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE_ZT

—HE+-A=+—HLEE

(LA TTER)

11. SEGMENT REPORTING 11. FHHE

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are organised REERBFIBTEEEL - BEBKER RERE ,iﬂ

by a mixture of both business lines and geographical locations. In a iﬁtﬁ/ﬁi AEBMEREHRSESH I - NHRANEAD

manner consistent with the way in which information is reported BRREHERER B MR AL E & RITH EIE/\E
internally to the Group’s most senior executive management for the ABREERN T EM— -

purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment, the

Group has five reportable segments.

— Research, development and distribution of personal computer = e R HEABIE RS IS8 - R
performance software, anti-virus software, mobile phone Eﬂ%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁki&lﬂﬁ%%%(Fﬁﬂ#%ﬁﬂ)
applications and toolbar advertisement (“Software Business”)

—  Securities investment (“Securities Investment Business”) —  BEREBE(EHKREEBKD

—  Money lending (“Money Lending Business”) - BE(BEE®D

—  Provision of insurance and mandatory provident fund schemes — REREEREHIEAES T ELLRE (R
brokerage services (“Insurance and MPF Schemes Brokerage e IS E S A
Business”)

— Provision of corporate management solutions and I.T. contract - REG¥EEMASRERENBEE RS
services (“Corporate Management Solutions and I.T. Contract (TEEEBRAFTRREMKEOREE
Services Business”) %1

The Group’s other operating segments include (i) website development, AEBEMEESHRE(NBLFAE ETEEER

e-learning products and services (“E-learning Business”) and (ii) &H&%(FE@%&E%?‘D&(M)}%%%J:E%#@%i%(%

provision of online shopping business (“Online Shopping Business”) FEMER]  REX %%iﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁ%fxiﬁiﬂ
which do not meet any of the quantitative thresholds for determining as EMEAREER - WEHMEESTHERETA
reportable segments. The information of these other operating [EM] —H -

segments is included in the “Others” column.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

11. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(a)

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purpose of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

Segment profit/(loss) represented profit earned by/(loss
from) each segment without allocation of central
administration costs, finance costs and income tax
expense.

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets and
current assets with the exception of other corporate
assets.

Segment liabilities include all current and non-current
liabilities with the exception of accrued central
administration costs, performance shares, loan notes and
convertible notes.

Inter-segment revenue is priced with reference to prices charged
to external customers for similar orders.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

BE-Z-hF+-A=1t—RLFE
(LA TTER)

11. FHHE(E)
() PHFx*E -EEREE

REEDBRARDED BZHNER

- FR25 238 F,(BiE) BEL ES R
RRITHEAR « MEKARATERAY
TE2SED BWABBET,(HES
18) -

- NHAEREMBANEE BVAE
ERBEE  ETBEEMPEREE -

- SHEEREMERBRIERDERE
ETBEEARRITHEAAR - RER
7 ERERRBERASRRER -

7 B A TI 2 Z AR LRT E S R P YR
EEBIREE
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e MR mARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE—

—HE+-A=+—HLEE

(L‘A;%Tuﬁl ™)

. =
11. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 11. /S (&
P . AR IESE | aE
(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) () XL -BEREGE)
. H i/\j = i/ N\ ST LE O (=
An analysis of the Group’s reportable segment results, assets f\ 5 ) B A SR R PRI AENAR
and liabilities by reportable segment is as follows: DATET :
Corporate
Management
Insurance and  Solutions and
Securities Money  MPF Schemes L.T. Contract
Software Investment Lending Brokerage Services
i i i i Business Others  Consolidated
ERERR)
) JRBERER ARREANH
W‘Fiiﬁ ERREXE f’éﬁ#ﬁ ﬁ#mﬂﬁ¥i§ SRRBES oy 58
2015 2015 2015
= ﬁ‘? —2-T1F -2 ﬁiF = i‘? —2-1F —fE —2-FHE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT THET FHET FET THET BT FiET
Turnover X
Revenue from external customers MREERA 137,136 - 5,133 71,368 108,489 2,603 324,729
Inter-segment revenue HEBEKA - - - - 1,271 - 1,271
Reportable segment revenue REHBERA 137,136 - 5,133 71,368 109,760 2,603 326,000
Reconciliations: Uik .
Elimination of inter-segment revenue HEHPEBA (1,271)
Revenue WA 324,729
—
Results E3 |
Segment results DEEE 78,388 49,832 3,941 2,081 13,455 (3,826) 143,871
Reconciliation:
Interest income 18
Unallocated income
— Rental income 250
— Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 5,302
— Fair value gain on performance shares 1,166
— Gain on bargain purchase 35
— Other income H 173
Unallocated expenses SRk ﬁ
— Corporate expenses ﬁ%ﬁﬁ % (27,674)
— Loss on disposal of property, - HEDE  BERRENER
plant and equipment (92)
Profit from operations 182 et
Finance costs BEMRA (5,635)
Share of loss of an associate EiE—EEE R AEE (51)
Profit before taxation BRBATET 117,363
Income tax expense FiEtimx (23,940)
Profit for the year AEERT 93,423
—
Assets E
Segment assets DA E 633,793 481,844 68,760 14,384 70,502 125 1,269,408
Reconciliation: &
Unallocated assets
— Property, plant and equipment 671
— Derivative financial instruments 21,564
— Investment in an associate 20,900
— Trade and other receivables 818
— Cash and cash equivalents 120,963
Total assets 1,434,324
—
Liabilities af
Segment liabilities DEERE 32,383 9,922 1,797 19,890 26,071 - 90,063
Reconciliation Bk :
Unallocated liabilties AORAME
— Trade and other payables - ‘é R E AR A 9,415
— Loan notes }J‘; 212,500
— Convertible notes £3:4 68,525
Total liabilties afERE 380,503
—
Other segment information:
Additions to property, plant and equipment 7 - - (5) (225) (265) (657) (1,152)
Amortisation of intangible assets ESE (15,335) - - - (1,578) - (16,913)
Depreciation - (60) (12) (328) (497) (402) (1,299)
Development cost capitalised (22,398) - - - - - (22,398)
Fair value gain on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss - 101,901 - - - - 101,901
Loss on disposal of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss - (39,346) - - - - (39,346)
Loss on disposal of available-for-sales
financial assets _ - (11,931) - - - - (11,931)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AL SREERAERE
financial assets - (1,309) - - - - (1,309)
Impairment loss on intangible assets spAERBER (5,946) = = = = = (5,946)
Legal and professional fees FRREEER (1,595) = (18) (18) (161) (6,618) (8,410)
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

11.

SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

BE—

11. FHHE(E)
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e BRI

—RAF+-A=+—HLFE
(L‘A;%TE?MT\)

(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) (@) PHEHE -EBEEREEE)
An analysis of the Group’s reportable segment results, assets an REDMPHAEEREDBEE - BEERAE
liabilities by reportable segment is as follows: (continued) DT : (&)
Corporate
Insurance Management
and MPF Solutions and
Securities Money Schemes I.T. Contract
Software Investment Lending Brokerage Services
Business Business Business Business Business Others Consolidated
cEEE
YESS
. RER®REE  AMREGH .
BHEE  EHREAER REXE  AHELER 1% ity FE
2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014
—ZT-{F —ZT-|mF -z-n —T-pmE —ZT-|mF -z—n —Z-|mE
HK$'000 FK$'000 FIK$'000 HK$'000 FK$'000 FIK§'000 HK$'000
FET FET TERT FET TERT FERT FET
Turnover e
Revenue from external customers SREBRA 144,191 - 1,105 76,507 8,422 4,068 234,293
Inter-segment revenue HEEBA = S - - 147 - 147
Reportable segment revenue BRESEBRA 144,191 - 1,106 76,507 8,569 4,068 234,440
Reconciliation: i
Elimination of inter-segment revenue HEHDHBREBA (147)
Revenue KA 234,293
—
Results
Segment results DEbRME 80,938 (20,966) 1,020 12,113 1,791 (11,457) 63,439
Reconciliation: R -
Interest income FISHA 7
Unallocated income AOEBMA
— Rental income 3N 675
— Fair value gain on investment property — REAMELTEENS 1,300
— Fair value gain on performance shares — ®REBRH AT EERR 57,323
— Other income — A A 25
Unallocated expenses RABEHY )
— Loss on disposal of a subsidiary - HE—RMBRRANER (326)
— Corporate expenses — EREY (13,281)
— Impairment loss on property, - V% - BERZERE
plant and equipment ] (7)
Profit from operations eyt 109,155
Finance costs AR K (1,209
Share of profit of an associate FEfE—RIEE A A RLEF 33
Profit before taxation B A& 107,979
Income tax expense iit=iAEha (19,000)
Profit for the year REEHF 88,979
—
Assets -3
Segment assets HEEE 637,403 82,893 21,818 40,710 108,401 9,046 900,271
Reconciliation: [
Unallocated assets AOREE
— Property, plant and equipment — 0% B REE 876
— Investment in an associate R_EB2RRMRE 21,196
— Trade and other receivables — B RAMERTEA 602
— Cash and cash equivalents - ReRREEEED 19,444
Total assets AERE 942,389
—
Liabilities afE
Segment liabilities HHaE 57,475 101 226 36,665 59,330 4,418 168,215
Reconciliation
Unallocated liabilities 3{ EEEF
— Trade and other payables B 5K EMENFE 1,967
— Performance shares = %fﬁﬂﬂ” 14,331
Total liabilities BfEeE 174,513
—
Other segment information: Hib A HER
Additions to property, plant and equipment  REWE « BE Rk - - - ©17) (130) (557) (1,604)
Amortisation of intangible assets BB ERE (12,564) = = = (657) - (13,221)
Depreciation e - (60) - (142) (141) (318) (661)
Development cost capitalised R ABARL (22,063) - - - - - (22,063)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AL ESREERBEER
financial assets - (20,732) - - - (20,732)
Impairment loss on goodwill HRREEE - - - - - (8,211) (8,211)
Impairment loss on intangible assets ERAEREER (4,875) - - - - S (4,875)
Legal and professional fees FREEXER (2,864) 1) (20) (64) (3 (6,220) (8,262)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= IAN
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VSRR BT AT

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE-T-HE+-AS+—HILER
(LAETTHIR)

11. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 11. FHHE(E)
(b) Geographical information (b) HEER
The following table sets out information about the geographical TREVNEBOAEERBINATEHBAR
location of (i) the Group’s revenue from external customers and (i) (\AEBHWE - BERZE REWE &
the Group’s property, plant and equipment, investment property, FEAE BERR—HBREATNKEE ([HE
intangible assets, goodwill and investment in an associate ERBEE])NEER - EPMMEUER
(“specified non-current assets”). The geographical location of BERERBIARNTEROUEET - FHEIE
customers is based on the location at which the services were REEENMENERBBEEEERMENE
provided or the goods delivered. The geographical location of the (NEME - WERERERIEEYME) RESR
specified non-current assets is based on the physical location of ¥BONE(NBEREE  BERR R
the asset, in the case of property, plant and equipment and ERREIMRE)ERE -
investment property and the location of the operation to which
they are allocated, in the case of intangible assets, goodwill and
investment in an associate.
Revenues from Specified
external customers non-current assets
IRABEFBA BEHFRBEE
2015 2014 2015 2014
—ET-1F —E—NF —E-HF T —UF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET TFE T FHET
United States of America E35T 59,916 71,258 - -
Germany e 7,489 5,302 - -
United Kingdom B 11,416 9,969 - -
Hong Kong &E 155,378 91,104 623,446 624,934
Australia SEM 5,691 5,769 - =
Canada neEx 5,292 5,431 - -
Russia R 7& A 36,848 5,318 - -
Japan AR 5,670 5,124 - -
Others (including Mainland China)  E#h (83E B A #b) 37,029 35,018 = 1
324,729 234,293 623,446 624,935
(c) Information about major customers (c) BEFEEFHER
For the year ended 31 December 2015, no individual customer HE-_T—RAF+_A=+—ALEE I&E
contributes over 10% of the total revenue of the Group. B-EFPHNERBBAAEEBKALN10% °
For the year ended 31 December 2014, revenue from one BE_Z—WNE+_A=1+—RHILFE r kH
customer of the Group’s Insurance and MPF Schemes AEBRBRBESHECLCESIB—EE
Brokerage Business segment represents approximately PRI G R BRI A L) 52,634,000 % 7T
HK$52,634,000 of the Group’s total revenue.
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Re MR R

BE-Z-hF+-A=1t—RLFE
(LA TTER)

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

12. FINANCE COSTS 12. BERAK
2015 2014
—E-hfF —MF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Interest on other loans HAbhEHHF R 327 386
Effective interest on convertible notes R ERNERFE = 823
Interest on loan notes ERERHF S 4,990 -
Other interest expense Hfth F Eﬁ-ﬁi 318 -
5,635 1,209
13. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 13. BRELANEF
Profit before taxation has been arrived at after charging/(crediting): BRRALEFE NG (BTA) ¢
2015 2014
—E-RfF —T-mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
(@)  Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration):  (a) BIXA(RIEEZHS) -
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEREMEF 35,302 10,913
Share-based payments (note 39) VAR 17 B BB B 2 A+ (BT 3 39) 2,839 -
Retirement scheme contributions RIKET IR 1,396 333
39,537 11,246
(o)  Others items: (b) HAMIEE -
Amortisation of intangible assets A B 16,913 13,221
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEEN & 1,400 1,300
Commission clawback provision & BB = 4,500
Depreciation e 1,299 661
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AHHEeREEREBEEE"
financial assets* 1,309 20,732
Impairment loss on goodwill* AR EEE = 8,21
Impairment loss on intangible assets* B AERESR" 5,946 4,875
Impairment loss on property, plant and M - BEREEREBE
equipment” - 176
Impairment loss on trade receivables B SRR AR 206 -
Operating lease charges: KEHERRA
minimum lease payments RERE7RE
— hire of office premises — RERDEYME 4,467 1,643
Reversal of commission clawback provision B O EE (1,282) -
& included in other gains and losses 5 T AE M as K51
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e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BHE-T—RAF+-A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTER)
14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 14. FiE%iRAx
(@  Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or loss (8 ERBIERRMFTERIE
represents:
2015 2014
—E-AHEF —T—puF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Current tax B HRIE
— Hong Kong Profits Tax — BENER
Provision for the year ANEZEE 26,819 18,570
(Over)/under-provision in respect of BEFE GBEEE) BHETR
prior year (1,581) 229
— Withholding tax in Japan — HAFEMF 124 124
25,362 18,923
Deferred tax (note 34(a)) IEIEFRIE (Mi3E34(a)) (1,422) 77
23,940 19,000

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5%
of the estimated assessable profit for the year.

Taxation for overseas subsidiaries is charged at the appropriate
current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant countries in which
the Group operates based on existing legislation, interpretation
and practices in respect thereof.

Withholding tax in Japan, regarding the external sales for which
customers are located in Japan, is charged at the appropriate
current rates of taxation ruling in Japan.

EBFIERBE I AEE R b BRI F
TR EA165% T HE ©

SN A A BB IR A R B S E A
MERORAE - RIERIEPIRRRTER
S

AR BAE TP ETTINEE P & B AR
MR RRBARITERNH R
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Re MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BHE-T—RAF+-A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTER)
14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 14. FIS%im=x (&)
(o)  The reconciliation between income tax expense and the product (o) FIEHRAXERBEAINEFRABRRESHZ
of profit before tax multiplied by the applicable tax rates as BEERIAT -
follows:
2015 2014
—E-HF —ZT—puE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Profit before taxation [ 5% BT Y% ) 117,363 107,979

Notional tax expense on profit before taxation, #2754 % 16.5% 5t &8 B B i A

calculated at the rate of 16.5% ZEHBERAY 19,365 17,816
Tax effect of income that is not taxable BARBIRANR G2 (1,357) (9,680)
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible 7~ ] #1375 5 Sz 8B 7% 57 28 5,842 9,146
Tax effect of share of loss/(profit) of JE {1 — R Bt % AREE,CEF)

an associate SaE 737 8 (%)
Tax effect of temporary differences RERE B % CEESpTh S

not recognised 212 (327)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised &) B R ERT B EBNHEZE 1,860 1,698
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not BB RERBIEEE

previously recognised WS E (530) -
(Oven)/under-provision in respect of prior years @1 FE (FBEEEE) BETE (1,581) 229
Withholding tax in Japan B AFEH 124 124
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries MBARTRAMERNFE (3) (1)
Income tax expense Fi8 R 23,940 19,000
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4= A

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE_Z-—RF+_A=1T—HILFE
(AETTIIR)

15. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 15. BEHFMAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one (2014: one) RAZERERFMALTH  HP—R(ZT—WF: —
director whose emolument is disclosed in note 16. The aggregate of the H)RES  HEBNMSE R 16HE - T7 A
emoluments in respect of the other four (2014: four) individuals were as BRTEE(ZE—NF: NEZ)ESFHATOHME
follows: 4aFE -
2015 2014
—E-HEF —E—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Salaries and other emoluments FeREMMS 4,472 2,980
Share-based payment (note 39) AR 15 B EERE A A5 (T 52 39) 710 -
Retirement scheme contributions RRFT B 63 53
5,245 3,033
The emoluments of the four (2014: four) individuals with the highest ME(ZZE—WF : M) GEaFMATHHEN T
emoluments are within the following bands: RTHIEE -
2015 2014
—E—hF —T—mF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A AEL
HK$Nil-HK$1,000,000 =772 1,000,000 T 1 4
HK$1,000,001-HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 A 7T & 1,500,000 7% 7T 2 -
HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 /& 7T = 2,000,000 7 7T 1 -
4 4
No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the highest paid HE-_Z—AFE-_T—NF+-_A=+—HLF
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as B ARETESNEAME FERARESHMALTE
compensation for loss of office during the years ended 31 December AREEFERSENBAEE KA MBI - EARER
2015 and 2014. e o
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Re MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BHE-T—RAF+-A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTER)
16. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 16. EEFEFRERS
(@) Directors’ remuneration (a) E=H
The remuneration of each director was as follows: BEEHMOT -

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

REAREES (FRhF A ARENBAIER) BECADRUNNE

Salaries,
allowances
and Share based Retirement
Directors’ benefits  Discretionary payments scheme 2015
fees in kind bonuses (note 39)  contributions Total
A1) DRGBAERH “E-1f
f£20k BNRE MERA X (REES0)  BARGEMRT At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TART TART TART TART TART TARL
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Kuang Hao Kun Giovanni BRELE
(note (vi) i) - 1,106 - 1,420 18 2,544
Mr. Xue Qiushi BIEEE - 360 - - 18 378
Independent non-executive BUFYTES
directors
Mr. Yip ChiFai, Stevens (note () ~ EF %4 (Hzt() 67 - - - - 67
Ms. Xiao Yiming (note (i) B -1t (FiEE ) 105 - - - - 105
Mr. Lam Kit Sun (note (i) AR (3 i) 3 - - - - 3
Professor Chui Tsan Kit (note (vif]) #2520 (1 vii)) 74 - - - - 74
Professor Lee T.S. (note (ix)) FREHR (M) 38 - = o - 38
315 1,466 - 1,420 36 3,237
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

16. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(continued)

(a)

Directors’ remuneration (continued)

BE-Z-hF+-A=1t—RLFE
(LA TTER)

16. EETFIRER (E)

(@) EEHFMGE

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
REARAES (TRARLAIEANBARER) BHE ASEKMNME

Salaries,
alowances Share based Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary payments scheme 2014
fees in kind bonuses (note 39)  contributions Total
5 BER SAIRtR AR —Z-mE
EEton ENils B xW(ES0) RIAHEER 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThT Thx TET Ta ThT TaT
Executive directors HiTES
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth FEMEE
(note (v)) GE) 240 - - - 2 242
Mr. Kuang Hao Kun Giovanni BRELE
(note (vi) iR = 529 = = 10 539
Mr. Xue Qiushi ENELE = 360 = = 16 376
Independent non-executive BiuksEs
directors
Mr. Yip Chi Fai, Stevens (note () EERLA () 100 - - - - 100
Ms. Xiao Yiming (note (i) B— ﬂ%ﬁi(ﬂﬁu (i) % - - - - %
Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter (note (ii) KB %E (B Gi) 8 - - - - 8
Ms. Chan Hoi Ling (note (v) BelE T (M W) 11 - - - - 11
Mr. Lam Kit Sun {note (vii) PREEH S A (A3 (i) 100 S - - - 100
555 839 - - 28 1,472
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

16. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ remuneration (continued)

Notes:

0] Mr. Yip Chi Fai, Stevens was appointed and resigned as
independent non-executive director of the Company on 2 January
2014 and 1 September 2015 respectively.

(ii) Ms. Xiao Yiming was appointed as independent non-executive
director of the Company on 17 January 2014.

(iii) Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter resigned as independent non-executive
director of the Company on 29 January 2014.

(iv) Ms. Chan Hoi Ling resigned as independent non-executive director
of the Company on 10 February 2014.

(v) Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth retired as executive director of the
Company on 4 June 2014.

(vi) Mr. Kuang Hao Kun Giovanni was appointed as executive director
of the Company on 9 June 2014.

(vii) Mr. Lam Kit Sun resigned as independent non-executive director
of the Company on 23 April 2015.

(vii)  Professor Chui Tsan Kit was appointed as independent non-
executive director of the Company on 23 April 2015.

(ix) Professor Lee T.S. was appointed as independent non-executive
director of the Company on 1 September 2015.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any director as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office during the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014.

No director waived any remuneration during the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014.

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Save for the New Copyright Licence Agreement and the
acquisition of additional 14.677% of the issued share capital of
Boom Max International Limited (“Boom Max”) as mentioned in
note 44(b), no other significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts to which the Company was a party and in which a
director of the Company and other director’s connected party
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Re MR R

HE_Z-—RF+_A=1T—HILFE
(AETTIIR)

16. EETFIRER (E)

(@ EBFHME
R

0} REEAERRR_FT-—HF-AHR=
Z-hFNA-—BEZERRBELREE
MIFHITES -

(i) H—BZtR-_T—NEF-A+LtREEE
RERRBIIFNITES -

(i) RECEER-T—NF-AZ+NAFET
RARBLIERITES -

(iv) RAELXTHR T —NF_A+HRERR
RIBIEITES -

v) EEBEER T -—NFSANBERERR
AIMITES -

(vi) BRELER_TE—NEANBEZEAR
RARMITES -

(vii) MEREER _T—RAFMAZ+=HFE
RARBLIERITES -

wii)  HEREHBER -_E-AFNA-+T=HEZ
ERADBELIFNITES -

(iX) FREHBER_T-—RAFNA—BEZEAR
ARABIIFPTES -

BHE-T—AFR=-ZT—NOF+=-A=+—H
IHFE  AEETEL A EAME FAAES
ERRFEERNBERNEERIENBRZAT - 5
VERBERAHIE -

BHE_Z—AFRER-_ZT—NFE+=-A=+—8H
IEFE - BEEENETANS -

(b) EBRRZ  ZHREPONERER

W BT R 44 (o) FT 32l 357 i 2 2 R 17 5 K MK B Boom
Max International Limited ([Boom Max]) %8 4h
14.677% BEEHITIRAIN  BIEARRESERE
fthEE ZBEANARRREI L BRAFE L
TR AN B (AT R AT SR AR R R (T E A
BARS RHRENTHEEERNEE L ME
HEZS o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

17. DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: HK$NIl).

18. EARNINGS PER SHARE
(@) Basic earnings per share
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit

attributable to owners of the Company and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

HE_Z-—RF+_A=1T—HILFE
(AETTIIR)

17. BRE
EETEEMBE T AF T _A=+—HLFE

B
A
o
dl

R EDRE (= -0
18. ZRAR
@ SBREXEF

SRERRF IRERE LR RRE A
R RE BT E AR T REGHY -

2015 2014
—E—HF —ZT—puE
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Earnings B
Profit attributable to owners of the Company 7<) 8 A FE(E % F
and earnings for the purpose of calculating & FA{Est S @ REREF]
basic earnings per share H &R 60,510 52,737
’000 '000
TR FhR
(Restated)
Number of shares BEE (geE=5))
Weighted average number of ordinary shares F{FstEFREREF]
for the purpose of calculating basic earnings — #9)3& 3 i% AN4E 7 15 B &L
per share 710,660 244,636
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) FREARZF) (L) 8.51 21.56
Note: BiE

The weighted average number of ordinary shares in 2014 has been
retrospectively adjusted for the rights issue which was completed on 16
June 2015.

R-F-HFNEBRONETIRECHR =F
—HFERATRATZRNHBEEWRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Re MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BHE-T—RAF+-A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTER)
18. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 18. SRER (&)
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) BREEZRF
The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the SREERANRIEAEEANTIES AES
profit attributable to owners of the Company and the weighted SR B BT B R A IR T IR Bt o

average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

2015 2014
—E-1F —ET—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Earnings B
Profit attributable to owners of the Company 2 Gl B A (L& T &
and earnings for the purpose of calculating gzt & g g B A B R B F
basic earnings per share 60,510 52,737
Finance cost saving on conversion of E R AR AT AT R IR B
convertible notes outstanding ifi £ b A B AR = 823
Profit attributable to owners of the Company &\ &4 A A (5% &
and earnings for the purpose of calculating PSR EsE B A ) B R
diluted earnings per share 60,510 53,560
2015 2014
—E-1F —ET—F
’000 '000
TR Fi
(Restated)
(g&=5))
Number of shares B R
Weighted average number of ordinary shares F{Est &S EA BT &
for the purpose of calculating basic earnings sz % i I ¥ % &4
per share 710,660 244,636
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares KA TRELEEE ST RO E
arising from:
Convertible notes B E S 687 4,825
Performance shares KIBREHD 11,489 25,270
Weighted average number of ordinary shares  Fa (&t & & J% 8 58 2 1)
for the purpose of calculating diluted i A ke 19 AR B
earnings per share 722,836 274,731
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) SREHERF GBI 8.37 19.50
Note: Bt
The weighted average number of ordinary shares in 2014 has been RZZB-—NENTBERONETHRBEERN-F
retrospectively adjusted for the rights issue which was completed on 16 —HFNATNBERRANEBEBAE -
June 2015.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ire WK R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BHE-T—RAF+-A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTER)
19. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 19. Hfh 2wk
Tax effects relating to each item of other comprehensive income for the HAFEHMEENSEE AENTRIETE
year:
2015 2014
—E-ERfF —E-5F
Amount Tax Amount Amount Tax Amount
before tax  expense netoftax before tax expense  net of tax
BB AT BBz BRI AT Briifa
28 BEEX k-] &8 BEMAX x|

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
TET TER TER TAT TAT TAET

Exchange differences on translation — #r &Nt & A 7
of financial statements of overseas B MEE 4

subsidiaries M H =% 30 - 30 31 = 31
Fair value gain on avallable-for-sale  AJft HE S B ARE

financial assets AFEEKRE 7,782 - 7,782 5,511 = 5511
Fair value loss on available-for-sale Al HE S RIEE

financial assets NEEEEE (1,309) - (1,309) (20,732) = (20,732)
Reclassification adjustment to profit &t it HH & & g & &=

or loss on impairment loss on BEBEREREN

available-for-sale financial assets DA 1,309 - 1,309 20,732 = 20,732

7,812 - 7,812 5,480 - 5,480
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Re MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BHE-T—RAF+-A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTER)
20. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 20. Y% - - BWERRERE
Computer
Leasehold Office Furniture and hardware and
improvements equipment fixtures software Total
HE BAZE BRR EREY
MEEE RE £B RE# @t
HK'000 HK’000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000
FHET FHT FHET T THT
Cost BA
At 1 January 2014 R-Z-mE—-f—A = = = 1,292 1,292
Additions NE 1,022 249 17 316 1,604
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 41(b))  MEEHT B A Bl (FfzE41(0)) 401 98 397 328 1,224
At 31 December 2014 and RZE-NE+-A=+—H
1 January 2015 k=—Z-hE—A—H 1,423 347 414 1,936 4,120
Additions AE 390 131 41 590 1,152
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi —EHE AR
(note 41(a)) (B3 41(@) - 3 = 24 27
Disposals HE 1) (33) () 47) (176)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FHBAR
(note 41(d)) (MzE41(d) (385) (99) (55) (140) (679)
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—RF
+=ZA=+—H 1,337 349 395 2,363 4,444
Accumulated depreciation ZIMERAEE

and impairment

At 1 January 2014 R=ZE-NF—A—H - - - 275 275
Charge for the year AEEXH 240 49 31 341 661
Impairment loss RERE - - = 176 176
At 31 December 2014 and R-E-mE+-A=+—8

1 January 2015 k-Z-h%—-A-A 240 49 31 792 1,112
Charge for the year AEEXH 508 147 189 455 1,299
Written back on disposals HERER (49) 23) @ ®) (84)
Written back on disposal of a HE—RNBARKERD

subsidiary (note 41(c) (MzE41(d) (18) (22) (15) (80) (139)
At 31 December 2015 R-Z-RE+=-A=+—AH 681 151 201 1,159 2,192
Carrying amount BREE
At 31 December 2015 R-B-f&+=-A=+-8 656 198 194 1,204 2,252
At 31 December 2014 RZZE-MF+=A=+—H 1,183 298 383 1,144 3,008
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e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE_Z-—RF+_A=1T—HILFE
(AETTIIR)

21. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 21. BEYXE
2015 2014
—Z—-hfF —E—MmF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBxT FET
At 1 January W—A—8 = 42,000
Addition e 59,081 =
Disposal of a subsidiary (notes 41(c)(i) and (ii)) & — R B A B (B 5 41 () () B (i) (59,081) (43,300)
Fair value gains RNEEBEKER = 1,300
At 31 December R+—A=+—8H - -

During the year ended 31 December 2015, in the opinion of director,
the carrying value of the investment property approximated its fair value
on 29 December 2015 (date of disposal of the subsidiary).

During the year ended 31 December 2014, investment property was
revalued at 30 September 2014 (date of disposal of the subsidiary) on
the direct comparison method by reference to market evidence of

BE_Z-AF+-A=+—HRLFE BEFRA -
REMENREEEREN _T-hF+-A-tAhA
(HEMBARMBE) WATEERE

BE_ZMOF+-_A=+—-RILFE REDER
“E-OFAAZTH(MERBARNAS) BE
T HEEMEMEZ2ERUNZABMZ ZHOTIEHEER

recent transactions for similar properties by an independent professional

B BOREE -

valuer.
22. GOODWILL 22, BHE
HK$'000
FHT
Cost A
At 1 January 2014 RZZE—NFE—HA—H 757,662
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries (note 41(b)) R BB R B A mIRF E A (BitRE41(b)) 33,923
At 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 RZE—NF+=_A=+—HBEk=ZE—HF—HA—H 791,585
Derecognised on disposal of a subsidiary (note 41(d)) HE — R B A B R 4R LERER (MisE 41(d) (8,211)
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE—RE+-_A=+—8 783,374
Accumulated impairment losses EitREEE
At 1 January 2014 R-ZE—NFE—AF—H 257,496
Impairment loss recognised (#) BRI EEE (#) 8,211
At 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 R-E—NE+—-_A=+—HEK-_Z—HF—HA—H 265,707
Written back on disposal of a subsidiary (note 41(d)) i — R B A BB S E (M EE41(d)) (8,211)
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE—RE&E+-A=+—8 257,496
Carrying amount BRMEE
At 31 December 2015 R-Z2-H"FE+=-HA=+—8H 525,878
At 31 December 2014 RZZE—WFE+=A=+—H 525,878
#) Impairment loss recognised on goodwill arising on acquisition of Lujolujo (#) U B Lujolujo Asia Limited ([ Lujolujo ) B 2 4 7
Asia Limited (“Lujolujo”) BH)REEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

22,

GOODWILL (continued)

Goodwill acquired in business combination is allocated, at acquisition,
to the Group’s CGUs that are expected to benefit from that business
combination. Before recognition of impairment losses, the carrying
amount of goodwill had been allocated as follows:

e BRI

BE-Z-hF+-A=1t—RLFE
(LA TTER)

BE (&)

FREBATRBNRER KBRS EEAKEEH
ARBERZEBAHNRSEDL BT - BWRBEEE
Al BESREED ARHT

2015 2014
—E-—FEF — U
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Software Business YT
Apperience Corporation (“Apperience”) Apperience Corporation ([ Apperience |)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred K EWE A R (FEF8[ Apperience £ & |)
to as “Apperience Group”) - 757,662
Boom Max and its subsidiaries Boom Max K& EH Mt &~ 7]
(collectively referred to as (#:78 [Boom Max & ])
“Boom Max Group”) 757,662 -
Insurance and MPF Schemes Brokerage Business Rk K igiga ¢t 2l Wﬁa%ﬁ%
GET Mdream Wealth Management Limited MERSMEEERERA
(“GET Mdream”) (THEE5]) 865 865
Corporate Management Solutions and I.T. TETEBRARLEMNREAD
Contract Services Business PRI 3T5
e-Perfect IT Limited (“e-Perfect IT”) LEREHRAF]
and its subsidiary (collectively referred ([EEF]) REMBEAR
to as “e-Perfect Group”) (G IEEE®]) 3,934 3,934
Wafer Systems (Hong Kong) Limited BERG(BE)BRAR
(“Wafer HK”) (TEEEE]D 20,913 20,913
Online Shopping Business BLEBEMES
Lujolujo Lujolujo = 8,211
783,374 791,585

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the management conducted
a group restructuring exercise on Apperience Group. On 6 July 2015
and 31 July 2015, Apperience, a 50.5% owned subsidiary of the
Company, transferred its 100% equity interests in |0Obit Limited (“IObit”),
Imidea Limited (“Imidea”) and Both Talent International Limited (“Both
Talent”) to its then 100% subsidiary, Boom Max (“Restructuring”).
Consequently, immediate after the Restructuring, Boom Max Group
continue the risk and benefit of Software Business that existed prior to
the Restructuring. The management of the Group reassessed the
composition of Software Business and allocated the goodwill to Boom
Max Group. The management expects the Restructuring will not have
any financial impact on the assets and synergy effect of the Group.

HE-_Z-—RF+-A=+—HLEFE BEEEYH
Apperience SR E#EITREEEHR - RZE—RHFEAN
ARZZE—AF+RA=1+—H KRAI%H50.5% %
% Y KMt B & & Apperience$ E 7 O0bit Limited
UIObitJ) * Imidea Limited ([ Imidea ) & & A BIER G 1R
ArRITERDN2HREEZETHERESG D HE
= APT /8 A B Boom Max ([E#4]) - H& - BpEEH
&  Boom Max BB FESEA N EBE AR
b R Mg o AN BB IR E ST AR A
W5 E S AL E Boom Max 58 - ER BT - =4
& & SR &2 B 0 B B N 13 [R) 0 e A B AE 1A B 75 2

4808

=z o

I
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE_Z-—RF+_A=1T—HILFE
(AETTIIR)

22. GOODWILL (continued) 22, WE(E)
Impairment test for cash-generating units containing BERENREELETWRERR
goodwill
The recoverable amounts of the CGUs have been determined on the ReEHBETHAKESERAMBREReREERE
basis of their VIU using discounted cash flow method. The key FREEET URRERBENEEZMEBIHEAR
assumptions for the discounted cash flow method are those regarding KIBRIRE MREDRFBEENEREEEEMH - K
the discount rates, growth rates and budgeted gross margin and SEFEARBATL RAFTRRE - BRI AT B R
turnover during the period. The Group estimates discount rates using REENBETHNEERHERSERRARETIST
pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time value o BREDNRERSENETERCEMTEHEN
of money and the risks specific to the CGUs. The growth rates are REFHREEREGE - BEENEXREEENE
based on long-term average economic growth rate of the geographical RiBEBEHRMISERESRTHE -
area in which the businesses of the CGUs operate. Budgeted gross
margin and turnover are based on past practices and expectations on
market development.
The Group prepared cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent REBFEORSRETWA RGO HESIENR
financial budgets approved by the directors for the next five years with RAFHBEEARBTHMEAO T MR KT
the residual period using the growth rates as stated below. These rates HozShERWRBEOEEMEHTHRAKRE -
do not exceed the average long-term growth rates for the relevant
markets.
Key assumptions used for VIU calculations for each CGU are as follows: ARGTESReELETERABENTERENOT ¢
Boom Max e-Perfect
2015 Group GET Mdream Group Wafer HK Lujolujo
—E-RE Boom Max £ BEES EZEEE BEER Lujolujo
Business segment Software  Insurance and Corporate Corporate Online
ES S Business MPF Schemes ~ Management ~ Management Shopping
MU ER Brokerage  Solutions and  Solutions and Business
Business  LT.Contract  I.T.Contract  #LE¥W¥#%
REg RogiE Services Services
BEEERES Business Business
EEERR CEETERR
ARREARE ARREMEHK
BRRBELE AHRBES
Gross margin EF & 81.13% 26.82% 46.19% 18.98% N/A
TEA
Growth rate 38 & & 3.22% 3.22% 3.19% 3.02% N/A
TER
Discount rate 8357 %& 16.64% 19.95% 17.96% 16.93% N/A
NER
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

22,

GOODWILL (continued)

e BRI

BE-Z-hF+-A=1t—RLFE
(LA TTER)

22, BWE(E)

Impairment test for cash-generating units containing
goodwill (continued)

EHENREERETHRERNR (8

Apperience GET e-Perfect

2014 Group Mdream Group Wafer HK Lujolujo
—ET—F Apperience £= B HEB 5 LB E BEEE Lujolujo
Business segment Software Insurance and Corporate Corporate Online
¥BnE Business MPF  Management Management Shopping
BT Schemes  Solutions and  Solutions and Business
Brokerage  I.T.Contract  |.T. Contract 48 _LBE¥IE

Business Services Services

R REESR Business Business

AE ESRES ThEEE EEE

R TR ] R RR

BB BB

GRIRBED  SHRBES
Gross margin EF| & 79% 28% 45% 18% 59%
Growth rate # & & 1.92% 3.48% 3.48% 2.97% 3.21%
Discount rate i35 % 16.59% 13.85% 17.18% 14.34% 17.59%

As at 31 December 2014, the goodwill arising from the acquisition of
Lujolujo of approximately HK$8,211,000 was determined by
management to be fully impaired. The net carrying value of the goodwil
of Lujolujo has been deconsolidated on 31 October 2015 for the
deemed disposal of Lujolujo (note 41(d)).

Jr

—MNE+=—A=+—8 ' W Luoluo FTE4XE

EEAB8211,0008 THEEEET A2 ERE -
Luoluo HEMEMFEENR S —RAFT+A=1+—
A3 4R A & Ldolujo i £ 1E 4 & ABRCH &F

41(d)) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE_Z-—RF+_A=1T—HILFE
(AETTIIR)

23. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 23. BEEE
Development
costs on computer
and mobile Customer Computer
phone software relationship software
(note (a)) (note (b)) (note (b)) Total
ERRRE
Y
e %N EFER BBy
(M3 (a) GEIO) (M3 (o) @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET T FET THER
Cost B
At 1 January 2014 RZZE—NE—A—H 66,103 - - 66,103
Additions through internal FRNBHERE

development 22,063 - - 22,063
Acquisition of subsidiaries WeEEHTB AR (M3 41(0)

(note 41(o) = 11,066 2,826 13,802
Exchange adjustments IS 18 - - 18
At 31 December 2014 and RZE-MF+=A=+—H

1 January 2015 kZZ-HF—A—H 88,184 11,066 2,826 102,076
Additions through FRNHBRERE

internal development 22,398 = = 22,398
Exchange adjustments B 5 51 - - 51
At 31 December 2015 R-F-RF+=-A=+—H 110,633 11,066 2,826 124,525
Accumulated R BHERAESSR

amortisation and

impairment losses
At 1 January 2014 R-ZE-mE—-HA—H 9,123 - - 9,123
Amortisation B 12,564 461 196 13,221
Impairment loss REEE 4,875 - - 4,875
Exchange adjustments LS 4 - - 4
At 31 December 2014 RZT-NE+=A=1—H

and 1 January 2015 k=Z-a%—A—-H 26,566 461 196 27,223
Amortisation Bt 15,335 1,107 47 16,913
Impairment loss REEE 5,946 - - 5,946
Exchange adjustments LS 27 - - 27
At 31 December 2015 RZZE-8%+=A=1+-H 47,874 1,568 667 50,109
Carrying amount BREE
At 31 December 2015 R-Z-EF+-A=+-H 62,759 9,498 2,159 74,416
At 31 December 2014 RZZE-NF+=A=1+—H 61,618 10,606 2,630 74,853
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

23. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(@)

The capitalised development costs for the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014 represented the expenditure incurred
for developing computer and mobile phone software.

The average remaining amortisation period of the computer and
mobile phone software is four years (2014: four years).

The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable amount of its
development costs on computer and mobile phone software in
2015, having regard to the market conditions of the Group’s
products. These assets are used in the Group’s Software
Business. The review led to the recognition of an impairment loss
of approximately HK$5,946,000 for three products of computer
and mobile phone software that have been recognised in profit or
loss for the year ended 31 December 2015. The management
reviewed total cash inflows generated to the Group from these
three products for this year and noted nearly no cash inflow was
contributed to the Group by these products. As these three
products were no longer expected to generate any future
economic benefits for the Group, the carrying amounts of these
three intangible assets were fully impaired during the year.

Computer software (the “Software”) and the customer
relationship (the “Customer Relationship”) were acquired through
business combination (note 41(bj(iii)). The Software are used for
the development of tailor-made programs to the Group’s
customers and the Customer Relationship represents certain
contractual relationship with its existing customers at the date of
acquisition of e-Perfect IT in 2014. These assets are used in the
Group’s Corporate Management Solutions and I.T. Contract
Services Business segment. The fair value of the Software and
the Customer Relationship have been assessed by an
independent professional valuer at date of acquisition of e-Perfect
IT.

The recoverable amounts of the Software and the Customer
Relationship are allocated to CGUs of Corporate Management
Solutions and I.T. Contract Services Business of e-Perfect Group
(note 22).

As the economic benefits arising from these intangible assets are
totally integrated with the Corporate Management Solutions and

BE_ZT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

—AF+ZA=+—HIFE
(LA TTER)

23. BEEEE(E)

(@

BE_Z-AFR-_FT-MF+_A=1t—H
Ltifi 2 i“‘ﬁzﬁftﬁ-ﬁé{"fﬁﬁz$?ﬁ BB RRE
BEEUMAELENAX

B R RBEEE T RIS AN E
(ZF—MF - OF) -

RZZT—HF  AEEZERHEMNTAER
B R RBEEE R ER AR AR E S
ZEEERRAEENRMEE - BEEENE
BB KRB E FE R R = R E M ERRE
B8 %75,946,00048 7T - WHREHZE T —AF
TZA=+—ALFENBERTHER EBE
EHAFEZ=ANEMRATERFROR SR
NBFE - WABRZEERET I EATEERT
BESTEA - AR BHZ=RERTHALSE
EEATABELENT  Z=REFVEERN
IREERFRBERE

B HHE(8G D REFBER(EFBER]D
T B 3 16 OF T WS (BT 3E 41 (0)Gil) o i
REATSERFPAFEFTENER  ME
FRAREER T —NFRELEAHERE
BFRUMNETEAENER - ZSEERRASE
EHNCEEERRTRREMA QR

B - EHRBEFARN AT EBECHE L
HEGEMPUKEEE A BT -

HHEREFEEAENAKESHED I RELEE
EhEEEMARTREREMEHRA ORBEES
IR e E BT (FiFE22) -

HRZEEVEEMELKENSRMEERE
RN RRAABANREEBEAES

I.T. Contract Services Business, these carrying amounts have WERAD BESENEEBERETHEEZS
been taken into consideration for the impairment assessment of BRE(E (Mf7E22) -
goodwill allocated to this segment (note 22).
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

24. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

HE_Z-—RF+_A=1T—HILFE
(AETTIIR)

24,

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015 are as follows:

Place of incorporation/

Particulars of issued and
fully paid up share

RHBLRNERE

R-FT—HF+-A=+—8"

BT -

Percentage of ownership
interest/voting power/

AEEMBRRNF

Name of subsidiary registration and operation capital/registered capital profit share Principal activities
SRR BER CRTRAERE/ AR FRE/
HEAREE EELE EREAE SHERHAA EERB
Direct Indirect
HE Gk
Lucky Famous Limited British Virgin Islands (“BVI") 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% - Investment holding
Lucky Famous Limited RERLES((RERLEE)) 1REBER1ET REER
Jade Fore Group Limited BVI 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% - Investment holding
Jade Fore Group Limited RBELEE 1REER1ET REARK
Citi Profit Holdings Limited BvVI 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% - Investment holding
Citi Profit Holdings Limited RBEIES 1IRERRET REAZK
Citi Profit Finance Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 = 100%  Money lending
BERBEERAR B 1TREBRET e
Perfect Growth Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 - 100%  Securities investment
ERERNA 90 1REAR1ET BEARE
Supreme Right Development Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 - 100%  Provision of e-learning
Limited 90 1REBR1ET products
ERERBRAF REBFEBER
Apperience Cayman Islands 20,666,667 ordinary shares S 50.5%  Inactive
Apperience He#s of US$20,667 Tmes
20,666,667 i i@ R
20,667 7T

Imidea Hong Kong 10 ordinary shares of HK$10 = 65.177%  Development and sales
Imidea 0] 10k EBR10%T of software and

provision of toolbar

advertisement

R REERH AR S

TERES
|Obit BVI 1 ordinary share of US$1 - 65.177%  Inactive
[Obit EBELES 1RE@R1ET Emex
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

24,

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

BE_ZT

(LA TTER)

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015 are as follows:

24. RMBLARNKRE (F)

—RE+=—A=+—8"

—HE+-A=+—BHLEE

AEEMBRRNF

(continued) BT : ()
Particulars of issued and Percentage of ownership
Place of incorporation/ fully paid up share interest/voting power/
Name of subsidiary registration and operation capital/registered capital profit share Principal activities
HMEL BER CRITRMERE/ FaRER EAE/
WEAREHE BELE AR SHEERE D ERRE
Direct Indirect
HE Gk
Both Talent Hong Kong 10 ordinary shares of HK$10 S 65.177%  Development and sales
£ B 10k EBR10%T of software and
provision of toolbar
advertisement
BB RS A RIS
TERES
Mission Win Interational Limited ~ BVI 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% - Investment holding
Mission Win International Limited ~ RBE XA S 1REERk1ET RERK
e-Perfect IT Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares of - 100%  Provision of corporate
HiE 5% HK$10,000 management
10,000 A% & /% 10,000 7T solutions and I.T.
contract services
RECEERBATRER
BAREAORS
e-Perfect Information People’s Republic of China Registered capital of S 100%  Provision of corporate
Technology (Shenzhen) hEARAM RMB500,000 management
Company Limited * & A AR 500,0007T solutions and I.T.
EBESRER (ORI BRAR contract services
RECEEBBRRAARR
BARBAORS
Wafer HK Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares of - 100%  Provision of corporate
BEEE 0] HK$10,000 management
10,000 % & /% 10,000 T solutions and I.T.
contract services
REGEERBRAARK
BB A DR
Fast Yield Holdings Limited BVI 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% - Investment holding
RRERERAR HBRZHE 1IRERRA ET REER
GET Mdream Hong Kong 882,352 ordinary shares of = 51%  Provision of insurance
BH2E5 B HK$2,451,790 and MPF schemes

882,362 ik &K 2,451,790 /B T

brokerage services
RERBRRESE
MR
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HE_Z-—RF+_A=1T—HILFE
(AETTIIR)

24. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 24,

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015 are as follows:

R EARNKRE (&)

RZE—RAF+=A=+—8"

(continued) BT - (&)

Particulars of issued and Percentage of ownership

Place of incorporation/ fully paid up share interest/voting power/
Name of subsidiary registration and operation capital/registered capital profit share Principal activities
SRR/ BER CRTRAERE/ AR FRE/
HEAREE EEE R EAE SHERHAA EERB
Direct Indirect
HE G

GET Development Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of S 100%  Inactive
BHERARAR B HK$100 EEEE

100 R & 7@Ak 10078 T
Boom Max BVI 100,000 ordinary shares of S 65.177%  Investment holding
Boom Max EBRLES US$100,000 RERR

100,000 A& & 3% 100,000 7T
Regent Art International Limited ~ Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 S 65.177%  Inactive
ERERERAR B 1REBR1ET EEE%
Profit Winner International BvVI 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% - Inactive

Corporation HBELHS 1RERR1ET TmEE
Profit Winner International
Corporation

GET Securities Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 - 100%  Inactive
BHEFBRAT 90 1IRERRA BT HEex
GEO Finance Limited Hong Kong 500,000 ordinary shares of - 51%  Money lending
BHRFUBAERRA B HK$500,000 e

500,000 & &35 500,000 £ 7T
* This subsidiary is a wholly-owned foreign enterprise established in the * ZMBRRRRPBEKRIONINEBERE -

PRC.
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HE_Z-—RF+_A=1T—HILFE
(AETTIIR)

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

24. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 24. AMIBRATIMNKRE (&)
The following table shows information of subsidiaries that have non- TRETERYASERNS BB AN EERER ([3E
controlling interests (“NCI”) material to the Group. The summarised TR ) B AR ER - MISERBIEE R EM
financial information represents amounts before inter-company HIHAT SRR o
eliminations.
Boom Max Group Apperience Group GET Mdream
Boom Max £ Apperience £ 8 BEES
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
ZE-AF ~“T-mMF ZE-RFf ~T-MF ZT-HF ~—T-MNOF
Principal place of business/ FZ2% %%/ Hong Kong/ N/A N/A  Hong Kong/ Hong Kong/ Hong Kong/
country of incorporation M ER BVI T iEA i A Cayman Hong Kong Hong Kong
B/ Islands E® BE &HEEE
REELES B8,/
FEHS
% of ownership interests/ RIS R T A 34.82% N/A N/A 49.5% 49% 49%
voting rights held by NCI Ve VR =P TEA TiE A
Financial information is AR BEENT
disclosed as follows:
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TET FAT FEx FHET THET FAT
Non-current assets EFENEE 62,759 N/ATEA NATEA 61,619 672 775
Current assets TEEE 44,045 NATEA NATEA 75,991 22,847 39,069
Current liabilities nEaE (38,115) N/ATEA NATEHA (53,069) (19,890) (38,150)
Non-current liabilities FRBaBE (3,625) N/ATEA NATEHR (4,408) - -
Net assets BEFE 100,064 N/ATEA NATER 80,133 3,629 1,694
Accumulated NCI ZitEERER 34,842 NATEA NATER 39,665 1,778 830
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e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BHE-T—RAF+-A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTER)
24. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 24. AMIBRATIMNKRE (&)

From

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended 24.201410
31.12. 2015 31.12.2014 31.12. 2015 31.12. 2014 31.12. 2015 31.12.2014
B2 =E Bz Hz S —T-mF
—E-1% —E-mE —Z-n% —E-mEF —Z-1f mAZAZ
+=A=+-H +=ZA=+—-8B t=A=t-H +=ZA=+—B +=A=+-H —T-mF

LFE IEFE LFE IEFE t&EE +-A=1+—-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TR FHT TET TR TR THER
Revenue WA N/A N/A
137,136 TR TEA 144,191 71,368 76,507
Profit bl N/A N/A
9,269 TEm TiEH 65,053 1,933 9,495
Total comprehensive PENEEE N/A N/A
income 9,269 TiER TiEH 65,037 1,933 9,495
Profit allocated to NCI EARTHERER N/A N/A
938 71 3,228 TEm TiEH 32,194 947 4,740
Dividends paid to NCI BIRAT T3 RE R N/A N/A
B E (22,663) MEA TEA (28,027 - (4,886)
Net cash generated from/  E4E&FE,/(Frf) N/A N/A
(used in) operating activities 154 %% 42,629 TER TEH 98,592 (21,445) 32,365
Net cashused ininvesting ~ REEBFIAELFE N/A N/A
activities (22,391) TEmA TEA (23,063) (224) (9,461)
Net cash generated from/  BH&EEFE,/ (i)
(used in) financing HeEE N/A N/A
activities (30,342) TEm TEA (64,445) = 2,002
Net increase/(decrease) HERBEZEY N/A N/A
in cash and cash equivalents 11,/ (R4) %% (10,104) TiEH TEA 11,084 (21,669) 24,906
25. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 25, R—AEBEQTNRE
2015 2014
—B-HF —E—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Unlisted investment in Hong Kong: REBKIFELTIRE :
Share of net assets PEEEFE 20,900 21,196

152 GET Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2015



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Re MR R
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

25.

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

BE_ZT

—HE+-A=+—BHLEE

(LA TTER)

25. R—EBEQTNEKRE (K)

Details of the Group’s associate at 31 December 2015 are as follows:

REERZ
LUl

—RE+Z A=+ —BHBEATHE

Percentage of
ownership interest/

Place of Issued and paid voting power/
Name incorporation up capital profit sharing Principal activities
FiEtERR
RRIE DIEEF
=1 AR 32 3t B BITRBERAE AR FEEK
Dragon Oriental Investment Limited BVI 100 ordinary shares 49%  Property investment
("Dragon Oriental") of US$100
Dragon Oriental Investment Limited % &z Z# S 100 A% & @Ak 49% MERE
(['Dragon Oriental ]) 100%7T

The principal asset of Dragon Oriental is a property which is currently
leased to and occupied as a clinic on short term lease. The property
located at Shop F, Ground Floor, Yenfu Mansion, Nos. 121-125, 129-
185, 139 and 141, Hip Wo Street and Nos. 92-112 Shui Wo Street,

Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The following table shows information on the associate which is
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity
method. The summarised financial information presented is based on

the HKFRS financial statements of the associate.

Dragon Oriental W EEEEA—EWE - BAILEH
HELRETRIGAE—HZFT - MELREBNED
MHAF121-125 + 129-135 + 139 2 141 557 K Im M7 92—
1125 1C = REM T FSRa -

TRETZBERRNER -
BRAK - BBERBRRBERRNES
QBB HRKRES -

H AR SR A 5
MRS

2015 2014
—E2-HF —F-EF
Principal place of business/country of incorporation £ Z & 3.8 FE M AKSZE K Hong Kong/BVI
B HBRLES
Principal activities TEEH Property investment
MERE
% of ownership interests/voting rights AEBFTSHEREER, RREED
held by the Group 49%/49% 49%/49%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHAT
At 31 December: R+=—A=+—8:
Non-current assets FMEEE 42,700 43,300
Current assets MENEE 673 407
Current liabilities mEAE (721) (470)
Net assets EEHE 42,652 43,257
Group’s share of carrying amount of interests REBES(hHEREERE 20,900 21,196
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e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

25. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

HE_Z-—RF+_A=1T—HILFE
(AETTIIR)

25. R—EBEQTNEKRE (K)

2015 2014
—E-HF —T—mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHAT
Year ended 31 December: BE+-HA=+—HLFE:
Revenue 1 @N 936 900
(Loss)/profit and total comprehensive REE (E18) SRFI R 2 1EE
income for the year (104) 1,550
Group’s share of (loss)/profit REEDE (EEB),HF (51) 33
26. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 26. AHHESREE
2015 2014
—E2-HF —Z—E
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHAT
Listed investments, at fair value BRATEBEFTENHLTRE
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong REE LT RANE 5 120,103 82,876
Unlisted investment funds FEMREES 30,613 11,006
Unlisted equity securities JE_ LR AR S 1,309 -
152,025 93,882
Impairment BME (1,309) (20,732)
150,716 73,150
Analysed as: AMAATIER :
Non-current assets ERENEE 150,716 73,150

The fair values of listed securities are based on current closing prices in
the Stock Exchange. The fair values of the unlisted investment funds
have been determined by reference to the quotation provided by the
administrators of the investment funds at the reporting date. The
directors believe that the estimated fair values provided by the
administrators of the investment funds are reasonable, and that is the
most appropriate value at the end of the reporting period.

ERESFORFEEIREBRARITRTEEE -
FLETREESHWATEEEZZREESERAR
BEAMRERNBENET - E5HE  REERE
BAMRHENGEHATEERSE  NREPRSR
tAEHEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE_ZT

e BRI

—HE+-A=+—BHLEE

(LA TTER)

26. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 26. AHHESREE (F)
(continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2015, the gain on the fair value HE_Z—AF+-A=1T—HILFE REMEE
change in the investments of approximately HK$7,782,000 (2014: WP ERIEE A FEEZE KL 7,782,000 T
HK$5,511,000) were recognised in other comprehensive income and (ZZT—W4F : 5511,00087T) * WRREEHHE
reflected in the investment revaluation reserve. AR o
On 31 October 2015, the completion date of deemed disposal of —AF+A=+—HEKALE Luoluo K5
Lujolujo, the Group classified the fair value of the retained 12.83% B EER) - AREE R Lujolujo FTIR B8 12.83% 1 25 B
interests in Lujolujo as available-for-sale financial assets (note 41(d)). AFEBEIERAHEESRMEE (MiF410) - E
The directors believe that the carrying value of Lujolujo may not be FH81E + Lujolujo K BRI 1B 3¢ & B BF 75tk S 1 A1 iy 7~
recoverable due to the adverse financial performance. The carrying AT E - Lujolujo BRTEI{E4Y 1,309,000 B L EE T AHB
value of Lujolujo of approximately HK$1,309,000 was determined to be Fim@E  MRIEEERHEETRITORFBEY
impaired and the cumulative loss of approximately HK$1,309,000 1,309,000 BT EEF HIEE B ©
accumulated in investment revaluation reserve was reclassified to profit
or loss.
For the year ended 31 December 2014, the fair value loss on available- HE_Z—NEF+-A=1T—HIFE A#HLES
for-sale financial assets comprised fair value loss arisen from BMEEAFEESEBRERDXcomZRER AR
investments in shares of DX.com Holdings Limited (“DX.com”) of ([DX.com]) B —MEEMARNRGBIEENMEER
approximately HK$20,490,000 and another listed company of ifﬁfﬁﬁiﬂa A 7l #920,490,000 7% 7T K £9242,000 #
approximately HK$242,000 which were determined to be impaired and CREERBFUAME  MRNREEHEETR REH
the cumulative loss totalling approximately HK$20,732,000 ,\quE‘ﬁ@:. H#920,732,000 8 TEEF HEE B °
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve was reclassified to
profit or loss.
At 31 December 2015, available-for-sale financial assets with carrying RZTE—AF+ZA=+—H EEELHA
amount of approximately HK$110,375,000 (2014: HK$42,929,000) has 110,375, oooﬁén (ZZ—PO4 : 42,929,000 1) K
been charged in favour of a brokerage firm as collateral for the Group’s AHEESREED KR T —HALRTERTNEER
liabilities in respect of its margin trading account. HRBSBSEFMAIRABRETRR -
Available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in Hong Kong A E SR EENBTIIE -
dollars.
27. INVENTORIES 27. FE&
2015 2014
—E-HF —PE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHAT
Finished goods RIPK Gh 2,009 14,772
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ire WK R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BHE-T—RAF+-A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTER)
28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 28. ESZkHMEWRE
2015 2014
—E-RE —T—HEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THExT FHT
Trade receivables (notes 28(e) and (f)) B 5 R IR IR (P 5% 28(e) & () 79,268 66,306
Allowance for doubtful debts (note 28(b)) RER B (s 28(b) (206) -
79,062 66,306
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERFIE - e REAEKIE 10,000 8,788
Amounts due from brokers JEUR A& 4 FRIE 7,318 3,101
Amounts due from non-controlling interests FEM —FIM B R B IR R A
of a subsidiary (note 28(g)) A (M5 28(g) 217 -
96,597 78,195
Analysed of trade and other receivables as follows: B 5 REMBURESFTHT
2015 2014
“Z-EHfF “T-mF
Non-current Current Total Non-current Current Total
assets assets assets assets assets assets
ErREEE RBEE @t ERBEE MBEE Bt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET THT TET

Trade receivables EHEBER 24,960 54,102 79,062 - 66,306 66,306
Prepayments, deposits and BNFOE - RERHEM
other receivables FEW B - 10,000 10,000 - 8,788 8,788
Amounts due from brokers TR 42 2008 - 7,318 7,318 - 3,101 3,101
Amounts due from non-controlling FE U — PR B A I FEHERR
interests of a subsidiary BERIE - 217 217 - - -
24,960 71,637 96,597 - 78,195 78,195
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(@) Ageing analysis of trade receivables

According to the credit rating of different customers and service
providers, the Group allows credit periods ranged from 0 to 90
days (2014: 0 to 182 days) to its trade customers. Further details

on the Group’s credit policy are set out in note 6(c).

The ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of allowance for

e BRI

BE-Z-hF+-A=1t—RLFE
(LA TTER)

28. E5kHMEWKRIE (&)
(@) EZEWRRVIRRD T
RETRRF RRGHERNEETR K&
BERTEESRFNEERNT00Z0H (=
T—MF :0F182H) - EEAEEEEER
B3 — B RHB R M 6(c) ©

B 5 RUARSK(MBRREEBRRE) RIEE

impairment loss) based on due date, is as follows: HHIERER TN T -
2015 2014
—B-EF —F-mEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Not due SR8 HA 70,025 55,632
Less than 1 month past due prnpz Py AR R FPE! 3,067 2,770
1 to 3 months past due BHI1E3EA 2,693 665

More than 3 months but less than wmEARAIEARBLN12(EA

12 months past due 1,860 7,199
Over 12 months past due A 1218 A 1,417 40
79,062 66,306

BoEIRARAR / F3] 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= IAN
NN

VSRR BT AT

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(b)

()

Impairment of trade receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are recorded
using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that
recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the impairment
loss is written off against trade receivables directly (see note
4(m)).

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews trade
receivables for evidence of impairment on both individual and
collective basis.

HE_Z-—RF+_A=1T—HILFE
(AETTIIR)

28. BEZREMEBYRE(E)
(b) EZEUERMRAEE

BB ZREGRFOREBIRTDEBEMRERE
BRACER - BRIEAEE SRR RIBR AT AEIE T
R EZBERT  BEBERSEENEHEK
BRFR R EE (R 4(m) »

REBREHR  AEERTESERUERED
18R & R ERE -

Reconciliation of allowance for trade receivables B S W R B H LR
2015 2014
—E-—HEF —ZT—EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
At 1 January wn—H—H - -
Allowance for the year REE AT 206 -
At 31 December Rt+—A=+—H 206 =

Trade receivables that are not impaired

As of 31 December 2015, the ageing analysis of the Group’s
trade receivables that are past due but not impaired is as follows:

) REENESEUIRR

RIZ-AF+-A=+t—8 AEE=ZAH
BRRENEZBUCRRNREDTAT

2015 2014

—E—hHF —ZE—mF

HK$’000 HK$'000

THExT FHT

Less than 1 month LR1EA 3,067 2,770
1 to 3 months 1£3@A 2,693 665
More than 3 months but less than 12 months #B:B3EAE LR 12EA 1,860 7,199
Over 12 months BB 12ME A 1,417 40
9,037 10,674

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers and service providers that
have a good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, management believes that no impairment allowance
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable.

ERRERRENERRBEASESEES
RFEENBLEP LRBHEDER - RIE
BELSR  BEBREHARZEEHRIELR
ERE RARGEEERYEEALE @ M
SREBDBAR AR BRI E -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(d)

()

BE_ZT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

—HE+-A=+—BHLEE

(LA TTER)

28. BEZREMEBYRE(E)

Currency denomination of trade receivables (d EBEZEWERMRE®EN
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are REEREZEWRRARE BN T %5
denominated in the following currencies: =1
2015 2014
—E-HF — U
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
HK$ BT 63,912 49,327
Us$ E 14,360 16,258
Japanese yen = 790 659
Renminbi (‘RMB”) AR = 62
79,062 66,306
Loan receivables (e) EWER
As of 31 December 2015, included in the Group’s trade RZZ—AF+ZA=+—H0 ' x5EHNESH
receivables were loans to customers of approximately EREREREIEEERORFPERY
HK$49,356,000 (2014: HK$21,636,000) for the Money Lending 49,356,000 7T (=& — U 4 : 21,636,0008
Business. The detailed analysis of loan receivables is as follows: 7)o EWERFESITT -
Secured Unsecured Total
[=Fii#i IR 47 Hst
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-hHF —mFE —EB-—HF —OF ZB-—HE —TNUF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FAET FET FHET FHET FET
Current B ER 12,684 21,636 1,712 - 24,396 21,636
Non-current FEBNER 24,675 - 285 - 24,960 -
At 31 December 2015 R -Z—H %
+— A B 37,359 21,636 11,997 - 49,356 21,636

As at 31 December 2015, the loan receivables of approximately
HK$22,012,000 were secured by the collaterals. The remaining
balance of approximately HK$15,347,000 was secured by
unconditional and irrecoverable personal guarantees granted by
the borrowers’ directors.

As at 31 December 2014, the secured loans were secured by
unconditional and irrecoverable personal guarantees granted by
the borrowers’ directors.

R-T—AE+-A=+—8 BREZY
22,012,000 7T 7 R 1R @ AR I - BRERA
15,347,000 8L Ty A SR A RIE =5 A MR {6
14 R AT B A A B RV ©

EA—::—EE-T——H:-F—EI - ERBERE
0 R AR E B B BRI R A
1I}\11%‘1%f‘5?ﬁ?ﬁ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AN T =]
Re SRR M AT
For the year ended 31 December 2015 BHE-T—RAF+-A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTER)
28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 28. ESZRHMEWFIE(E)
()  Due from contract customers H EREHNEFRE
As of 31 December 2015, included in the Group’s trade R-Z—FREFE+-_A=+—8 A&E£ENEH
receivables was amounts due from contract customers of EUER R BB EE R R R E BN
approximately HK$221,000 (2014: HK$1,488,000) for Corporate B HRSEBEIA LT P FRIAL 221,000
Management Solutions and I.T. Contract Services Business. JL(ZZ—O4 : 1,488,000/ 70) ° EURA A
Detailed analysis of the amounts due from contract customers is BRRIEFHESTHOT -
as follows:
2015 2014
—ZE—hF —E—MmF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Contract costs incurred plus recognised BEAEGHKRANES EER
profits less recognised losses to date AR E R E R 6,840 7,293
Less: Progress bilings R HEE IR (6,619) (5,805)
221 1,488
Amounts due from customers AEHNIREREFLHKIEAE
for contract work 221 1,488
No advances received in respect of service contracts at 31 R-T—AF+_A=+—BIERREEY
December 2015 (2014: HK$ Nil). IWEREAR (ZF—OF : ) °
(9 Amounts due from non-controlling interests of a (9) FEW—EHEBATFERESNFIE
subsidiary
The amounts due are unsecured, interest free and with no fixed EHREAEER 28 AEETENHAR -

repayment terms.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Re MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BHE-T—RAF+-A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTER)
29. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 29. FEBBEZUATEEIENEREE
PROFIT OR LOSS
2015 2014
—Z—-hfF —T—HEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Equity securities held for trading at fair value, BAFEEAENEELTH
Listed in Hong Kong FEEERAE S 323,082 -
Analysed as: DITRATIER -
Current assets mBEE 323,082 -
The investments represent listed equity securities investments that offer BB EEANEERRHEESEARIMKREWA KA
the Group the opportunity for return through dividend income and fair FEBAENSEADHRN FHREAEZESFRE - Z5KE
value gains. They have no fixed maturity or coupon rate. The fair values WHEETEIEHASEER - FHESHNAFLERIVE
of listed securities are based on market prices at the end of reporting BRAREHARGTESE -
period.
At 31 December 2015, financial assets at fair value through profit or R-_ZE—RFE+_A=1+—H BEEHELHAS
loss investments with carrying amount of approximately 319,418,000 T (=T — U4 : THIT) KB BIBS
HK$319,418,000 (2014: HK$NIl) has been charged in favour of a UAFEEBEIENSHEEDHEF T —BLLTES
brokerage firm as collateral for the Group’s liabilities in respect of its AEERERESEFIEFPAIS L ABHIEIER -
margin trading account.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are denominated in FBEEUATEEBEYIENSREEETIIE -

Hong Kong dollars.

30. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH 30. EEFRITERURRERRAEEEY

EQUIVALENTS

2015 2014
—E-RF —T—mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Cash and bank balances e MIRTTES 214,277 148,906
Pledged bank deposits BRIRIRITIER 2,633 2,431
216,910 151,337
Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based on daily bank BRIFITHIESIEBUABITES TR R AERANZ

deposit rates. B A R BRELH S, ©
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4= A

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

30.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (continued)

At 31 December 2015, the Group’s pledged bank deposits represented
deposits of approximately HK$2,633,000 (2014: HK$1,626,000) which
were pledged to banks to secure banking facilities to the extent of
HK$2,500,000 (2014: HK$1,500,000) granted to the Group. The
deposits included approximately HK$621,000 (2014: HK$622,000) and
HK$2,012,000 (2014: HK$1,004,000) which are denominated in US$
and HK$ respectively. The deposits are interest bearing at fixed rates
from the range of 0.05% to 0.5% (2014: 0.05% to 0.7%) per annum.

At 31 December 2014, the Group also pledged to a bank of
approximately HK$805,000 as guaranteed fund for a VISA/Master Card
merchant account of the Group’s online shopping business to the
extent of HK$805,000 granted to the Group and was denominated in
HK$ at fixed interest rate of 0.2% per annum. Upon the completion of
the disposal of a subsidiary on 31 October 2015 (note 41(d)), the Group
no longer have that facilities.

At 31 December 2015, the Group had available undrawn banking

facilities of approximately HK$2,359,000 (2014: HK$855,000).

The pledged bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents of the
Group are denominated in the following currencies:

HE_Z-—RF+_A=1T—HILFE
(AETTIIR)

30.

EERABRTERURRERASEEY
(&)

RZE—RAF+-A=+—8  NEENCEMPRTT
FRIERE T RITHFHL2,633,00F T(=F
—HF 16260008 L) ERAEEERSE
2,500,000 7T (= ZF —PU4F : 1,500,000% 7 ) $R1TH
BER - FREFH621,0008 (=T — W& :
622,000 JT ) %2,012,000% (= T — [0 F :
1,004,000 7T) 9 BILAZETT KB TTHIE © FRIREE
FMENF0.05EE05E(ZFT—WF : 0.05EZE0.7
E)EtE -

R-ZZE—NF+-A=+—8 ' NEBEINEFFIRTT
#1805,000 7 7T * 1E A7 = B %15 1 805,000 4 7T
AN E A Y ¥ VISA/Master Card B XK IR P
RIRTTIRES - WABTIE - HEEFFE02E
e -RZZE—AFE+A=Z+—AEKEE—RHNEB
NE)EE (fiEE41(d) - AEETHEZERE -

RIZ—AF+-_A=+—8 AXEEEAHAKRE
EUR1TRR & %9 2,359,000 7T (= ZF — U4 : 855,000
FEIL) e

AEENEBMRITFIARR S RELSEMAT
FIEHEDIE

2015 2014

S —F-mE

HK$’000 HK$'000

TH THT

us$ ey 56,620 65,305
RMB AR¥ 634 774
HK$ BT 159,656 85,258
216,910 151,337

As at 31 December 2015, bank balances of the Group denominated in
RMB amounted to approximately HK$597,000 (2014: HK$637,000).
Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.

RZZE—AF+ZA=1+—8  AEEUARKI|E
BIERTT 458440 /5 597,000 7T (ZZ — U4 : 637,000
BIT) o AR KRR INEBIRE P BINEE K
Pl R AEEE - EIE RN EERARTHET -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

31.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Re MR R

HE—Z
(LA TTER)

—HE+-A=+—BHLEE

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 31. EZRHMEMNTRIE
2015 2014
—E-HF — U
HK$’000 HK$'000
THExT FHT
Trade payables E S REMRR 19,201 37,502
Deferred income EERA 1,247 2,049
Deposits received Bz e 72 38,121
Amounts due to non-controlling interests of a FES — M B A R SRR AR 25 B X
subsidiary (note 31(d)) (FFEE31(d)) 1,332 -
Loan notes interest payables EREREEFE 4,990 -
Accrued expenses and other payables (note 31(c))  FE:T & F M E 4th fE A~ 7018 (M £ 31(c)) 26,524 21,393
53,366 99,065
(a) Ageing analysis of trade payables (@) BSENERINIRERDSHT
The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the date of B 5 EMNEFIREBIWEE G, IR B MR
receipt of goods/services, is as follows: ST
2015 2014
—E—HF = — P04
HK$’000 HK$'000
THExT FHT
Less than 3 months LR 3EA 10,338 32,685
More than 3 months but less than 12 months #2383 18 B8R 12 1@ A 8,863 4,817
19,201 37,502

(b)

Currency denomination of trade payables

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are

(b) EBZENRKNEBEL

AEEESRNERNERAEEZATEES

denominated in the following currencies: 1 :
2015 2014
ZE-AHF —MF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET TET
us$ 7T 7,441 8,721
RMB AR = 402
HK$ BT 11,760 28,379
19,201 37,502
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE_Z-—RF+_A=1T—HILFE
(AETTIIR)

31. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 31. ESRHEAMEMSRE(E)
(¢) Commission clawback provision (c) FHEE@HEE
As of 31 December 2015, included in accrued expenses and R-T—RAEFE+-_A=+—8 K"&EEEHE
other payables of the Group was commission clawback provision FA R E At A5 FOE B 3R IR LR B 58 1 & 5t &
on the Insurance and MPF Schemes Brokerage Business of K40 TSR & B f B 4 1,900,000 8 7T (=
approximately HK$1,900,000 (2014: HK$4,500,000). The T — U4 : 4,500,0007%87C) - S EIHEER
commission clawback provision represents expected cash TR ERL MEARSREHBEZHE -
outflows which are estimated with reference to the sales volume, EEABAKFARESHETERARRY
past experience of the levels of clawback, and the directors’ best BRIEMGFTEGETEL - ESSFEEHRR
estimates of the expenditure required to settle the obligations. BE MRS ERBETEE -
The estimation basis is reviewed on an ongoing basis and revised
by the directors where appropriate.
The movements in commission clawback provision are as ReRmBHBEEsmT :
follows:
2015 2014
—Z—hfF —E—MmF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
At 1 January wn—A—A 4,500 =
Provision for the year REZRAE - 4,500
Reversal of provision in prior years BOBEEEREE (1,282) -
Utilisation during the year RNFEEEH (1,318) =
At 31 December R+—-_A=+—H 1,900 4,500
(d) Amounts due to non-controlling interests of a (d) B —EHEA R RERSNFIE
subsidiary
The amounts due are unsecured, interest bearing at 9% per BEEMZEAEEN  REFXRIESEA
annum and with no fixed repayment terms. 4 [ E B AR AR o
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32. CONVERTIBLE NOTES

(@)

BE_ZT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

—AF+ZA=+—HIFE
(LA TTER)

32. ERREE

On 31 March 2013, upon completion of the acquisition of 50.5% @ RZE—=F=ZA=+—8' TRKE
of the issued share capital of Apperience, the Company issued Apperience 50.5% B Z1TIRANME + AR BIAE
zero coupon convertible notes in an aggregate principal amount T BTN 4858 5 392,132,500 ST Z B AT
of HK$392,132,500 to vendors as partial consideration for the BRBRERERBBEEELHRE - VP HRE
acquisition at an initial conversion price of HK$0.108 per BERE R’ 0.108 37T « ATRRZIR A&
conversion share. The terms and conditions of the convertible RREERARRBIHR=-ZE—=4=A
notes are summarised in the Company’s circular dated 23 ZH=H/BERAR - TRRERBESAE
February 2013. The convertible notes contain two components, EERMER - AEHIRETEHNRT
liability and equity components. The fair value of the liability BEH BB LEEAERMGE -
component at issue date was valued by an independent
professional valuer.
The liability of convertible notes was initially stated at fair value MR EREHEEVSRATEESIER  Hi&
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective ANEBRFEERBHR ARG E - EE RN
interest method until distinguished on conversion. The effective TR - AEFD RS ERTNERERN X
interest rate of the liability component on initial recognition is 8% RBE °
per annum.
During the year ended 31 December 2014, taking into account HE-_Z-—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE itk
the effect of the adjustment upon the completion of capital Eéf”*mﬁtﬂ T\ BRAEATTHEFFED
reorganisation on 18 July 2014 (note 36(a)), the Company issued AN E(ME36@) % - ARRRERR
a total of 38,532,464 conversion shares pursuant to the exercise BAITEATE B0 8 AR TE AR R IR ATHT
of the conversion right attached to all the then outstanding BT 1T A $£38,5632,464 % H &Mk + A&
convertible notes in the aggregate principal amount of $ HBEEX 416,646,000 3 7T (M 5E36(c)) °
approximately HK$16,646,000 by noteholders (note 36(c)).
The movements of the convertible notes are as follows: R REEHIT :
Equity Liability
component component Total
RS =Li-viby st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET TAT FAT
At 1 January 2014 R-ZE-—NF—A—H 13,809 12,744 26,553
Effective interest expenses TR Jﬁﬁﬁi - 823 823
Conversion during the year FHRBR (13,809) (13,567) (27,376)
At 31 December 2014, 1 January R-_E—NE+-_A=1+—H
2015 and 31 December 2015 —T-af¥—-A—ABAk
—E-RE+ZA=+—H - - -
165
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

32. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

()

On 31 December 2015, upon completion of the acquisition of
additional 14.677% interest in Boom Max, the Company issued
zero coupon convertible notes in an aggregate principal amount
of HK$75,208,200 to vendors as partial consideration for the
acquisition at an initial conversion price of HK$0.3 per conversion
share. The maturity date of the convertible notes is the date
falling two years after the issue date. Noteholders shall have the
right to convert the convertible notes into ordinary shares at any
time during the conversion period. If any amount due under the
convertible notes is not paid when due, at the Company’s sole
discretion, such amount shall be redeemed by the Company by
issue and delivery by the Company of a promissory note in favour
of the noteholder(s) in the principal amount equal to 100% of
such amount together with interest accrued on the overdue sum
at the rate which is the lower of (i) HIBOR plus 1.5% per annum
and (i) 4% per annum, and will be due to mature on the first
anniversary date of the issue of the promissory note. At any time
prior to the maturity date, at the sole discretion of the Company,
the Company may cancel and redeem such amount outstanding
under the convertible notes at 100% of such outstanding
amount. The terms and conditions of the convertible notes are
summarised in the Company’s announcements dated 13 August
2015 and 16 September 2015 and the Company’s circular dated
23 November 2015.

BE-_T—AF+-A=+—RILFE

(AETTIIR)

32. WREE (R

(0)

R-ZZ—HFE+=A=+—8 %k % Boom
Max 88N 14.677% 1% - AR ARIME 77 #1T
A& #4858 575,208,200 TH T B AT R E
B ERETSNRE VT RBRERERNL
B]AR1H 0.3/ - AIMRERIEB AIEITH
HRFIRMEE B - RIRISA AGER L%
A TR BIE LR AL AR - Wik
AR IR IE T ] A FRIB R B BSR4
FESERARAREENEER - AR
RRIAREFREABH RN RS ERERE
&R 100% KRN Z1E - @R RERESRHE
AEMEEEANFE  FAXROBBBRITRE
P EMEFRA5E K (i) FFR4EHOKESE -
WHHRBEITER SRR M —BFE B I H - 15
Hi B ATAEMEERE - A ARl 2 BIEREIRA
BESFM100% T8 R BB AT R EIRE T
RERSHE - TRREBEOERREHRAER
AAPA—T-—AFNA+=AR=T—FF
NATABNAEUARARRIRBRA=T—A
F+—AZ+=H®HBERA -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

32. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

()

(continued)

The convertible notes contain three components, equity, liability
and derivative components. The fair value of the convertible

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

BE-Z-hF+-A=1t—RLFE
(LA TTER)

32. TERREE(E)
)  (8&)

MRREE S ER AERITET AZER
7 e AIBMBEREBEREITARNAHEEHR A

notes at issue date was valued by an independent professional B BEGEMEENT -
valuer as follows:
Equity Liability Derivative
component component component Total
Bas BEHD IEIARD st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TR TBTT
Issue of convertible notes and BOTARZERR
at 31 December 2015 “E-nE+ZA=1-H 25,555 68,525 (21,564) 72,516
Fair value at 31 December 2015 RZE-RF+ZA=+-H
WRFEE 68,525 (21,564)
The liability component of the convertible notes was initially AR EENERBETH VS IEAFEELE -
stated at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost HEBEUEBRMNSRIZHBEKATE B NHR
using the effective interest method until distinguished on BHFESD - AEIONISERARHERE
conversion. The effective interest rate of the liability component MEEHLITE ©

on initial recognition is 4.7% per annum.

The fair value of the liability component of the convertible notes
at 31 December 2015 to be approximately HK$68,525,000. This
fair value has been calculated by discounting the future cash
flows at market interest rate (level 2 fair value measurements).

R EREaESINR_ZT—ARE+_-A
=+—H e@@$1§fﬁ%@z%68,525,ooo,%n o
AT EEDEBIETMSHREIERTBER
E(FE_HAFEEFR)FEEL -

The derivative component is measured at its fair value at the date STET A RN TR REGHRNA
of issue and at the end of each reporting period. The fair values FEESE - AP EBENEB - ERERN (S
are estimated using the binomial model (level 3 fair value —HAEEBMESE) G -
measurements).
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4= A

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

33.

PERFORMANCE SHARES

Upon completion of the acquisition of 50.5% of the issued share capital
of Apperience on 31 March 2013, the Company agreed to issue
additional ordinary shares of the Company (“Performance Shares”)
based on target profit of Apperience as partial consideration for the
acquisition at a issue price of HK$0.108 per performance share, the
maximum number of which shall be 1,452,342,588 subject to
adjustments. Performance Shares shall be allotted and issued as fully
paid, within one month after audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2014 are available (“Tranche | Performance Shares”).
Performance Shares shall be allotted and issued as fully paid, within
one month after audited financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2015 are available (“Tranche Il Performance Shares”). The details
of the calculation of the Performance Shares are summarised in the
Company’s circular dated 23 February 2013.

On 6 June 2014, the Company issued a total of 715,522,718 Tranche |
Performance Shares (note 36(d)). The fair value of the Performance
Shares of approximately to HK$32,914,000 was credited to share
capital and share premium of the Company at the date of issuance of
shares. The maximum outstanding number of the Tranche Il
Performance Shares and the unissued Tranche | Performance Shares
(“Outstanding Performance Shares”) was 736,819,870. With the
immediate effect of the capital reorganisation taking place on 18 July
2014 (note 36(a)) and at 31 December 2014, the maximum number of
Outstanding Performance Shares to be allotted and issued by the
Company was adjusted to 184,204,967 new shares (subject to further
adjustment), and the issue price at which the Outstanding Performance
Shares to be allotted and issued was adjusted to HK$0.432 per new
share (subject to further adjustment).

On 5 June 2015, the Company issued a total of 16,455,916 Tranche |l
Performance Shares. The fair value of Performance Share was of
approximate HK$13,165,000 and approximately HK$13,000,000 was
credited to share premium account of the Company at the date of
issuance of shares. (note 36(d)).

HE_Z-—RF+_A=1T—HILFE
(AETTIIR)

33.

RERH

RZT—=%F= A =+— B = U8 Apperience 2
FITRR AN50.5% 1% * 2~/ 7] [/ Z AR I& Apperience &)
B BTN ARERR(ERRRG]) - 1EA
WHESEBHIRE  BTERERKERKG0.1087%
JL 2B EIRA1,452,342,588 i (] FHR) - R
BOAEREBEE—_Z—NE=A=+—ALEENEE
B REFRETRE—EANAME AR R B
TUE-HRERG D - RERMHDEEREE=_T—A
FZAZ+—HUEFENEEZUBEREERTRKE
—EARABR A ABEERET(EHREAR
m1) e RERMOFMAAEFENEAARAHAZT
—=FZA=+=BHBEARL -

RZE—NENFEANANA ARQFRB#ETEH
715,522,718 IR E —#L RV D (I 36(d)) - RIBAK
ME R F(EEX32,914,0008 LR HETE A
BARD B RA R ARS8 o 5 B RIBAKD K%
TEHREAROG (HRBITRERGD ) &ZEER
BITHE B736,819,8708% - RAFMHER =T —N
FEA+N\BEEAEKR(HE36E)  MR=ZZE—MN
F+ZA=+—8  ARAHETFRERBITERET
RERMOO &S B FE R 184,204,967 B FT A (AT
FHE—LHR) M FREBERBEITHERBEITRER
RRDHBEITEBAIAEATRINARD 04328 T (AT F
E—LSHAE) -

RZZE—AFANARA AR2FABEETEH
16,455,916 R — LRI\ R/ - RIRBHWIAFEE
#718,165,0007% 7T & %7 13,000,000 7T & 1A B {5 %
TE BEEAKRARRMEER (MFE36() °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

33. PERFORMANCE SHARES (continued)

The fair values of the Performance Shares at 31 December 2014 and
date of issuance of share were valued by an independent professional

e BRI

HE_Z-—RF+_A=1T—HILFE
(AETTIIR)

33. ®RERG (&)

REBMHN - —NOF+-A=+—HRKERHETH
HORAFEBES R BB EXGHEMIESHE

valuer and the directors respectively. 1S o
2015 2014
—E-HE it BES
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Fair value: AFEE :
Balance at 1 January R—A— B84 14,331 104,568
Issued of shares during the year (note 36(d)) FREEITI D (M 5E36(d)) (13,165) (82,914)
Less: fair value gains o AFEBEKRES (1,166) (57,323)
Balance at 31 December R+ZA=+—BN&EH = 14,331
Representing: ROIV-E
Current liabilities mEIAE = 14,331
34. DEFERRED TAX 34. EERIE

(@) Deferred tax liabilities

(a) EEHBEE

Intangible assets

BLEE

HK$'000

FHET

At 1 January 2014 RZZE—NF—A—H 4,222

Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries (note 41(b)) L R BT B8 2~ IR E AR (Pt 41 (D)) 2,293

Charge to profit and loss (note 14(a)) PEZ IR (FIFE14(2) 7
At 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 RZFE—NF+ZA=+—HK

—Z2—hF—HA—AH 6,592

Credit to profit and loss (note 14(a)) st AIBZE (MisE14(a) (1,422)

At 31 December 2015 RZZE—RF+=ZA=+—H 5,170
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ire WK R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BHE-T—RAF+-A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTER)
34. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 34. EERE(HF)
(b) Deferred tax assets (b) EEMEBEEE
The Group has not recognised any deferred tax assets in respect HRAEBAREETERT B2 6EFIHOR - #r &
of tax losses carried forward of approximately HK$47,192,000 FAEEE R IE E 18 40 47,192,00078 T (ZZE —
(2014: HK$50,489,000) due to the unpredictability of the future % : 50,489,000/ 70 ) HERE(TIRER T E FE ©

profit streams.

The unused tax losses will be expired in the following years RPABESEEERNATEE+=_A=+—A1
ending 31 December: IEFFEAER -
2015 2014
—ZE—hfF —E—MmF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
2018 —T-N\E = 19
2019 —T-hF - 2
No expiry date 4= [ B 23 47,192 50,468
47,192 50,489
35. LOAN NOTES 35. EXREE

2015 2014
—E-RF —ZE—mF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt 3 FET FHET
Feb 2015 Notes —T-HAF-_AEE 35(a) 4,500 -
Jun 2015 Notes —E-RFEXNAEE 35(b) 19,000 -
Aug 2015 Notes —T-RF\AERE 35(c) 189,000 -
212,500 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

35. LOAN NOTES (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

6% per annum notes (“Feb 2015 Notes”)

Pursuant to a note placing agreement dated 5 February 2015,
the Group issued 6% unconditional, unsubordinated and
unsecured loan notes in an aggregate principal amount of
HK$4,500,000 to certain subscribers during the period
commencing on the date of this placing agreement and up to
(and including) the date falling on the 15th day of the sixth month
after the date of this placing agreement. The Feb 2015 Notes are
denominated in HK$ and will mature on the second anniversary
of the issue dates of the Feb 2015 Notes.

10% per annum notes (“Jun 2015 Notes”)

Pursuant to a note placing agreement dated 26 June 2015, the
Group issued 10% unconditional, unsubordinated and unsecured
loan notes in an aggregate principal amount of HK$19,000,000
to certain subscribers during the period commencing on the date
of this placing agreement and up to (and including) the date
falling on the 15th day of the sixth month after the date of this
placing agreement. The Jun 2015 Notes are denominated in HK$
and will mature on the second anniversary of the issue dates of
the Jun 2015 Notes.

9% per annum notes (“Aug 2015 Notes”)

Pursuant to a note placing agreement dated 20 August 2015,
the Group issued 9% unconditional, unsubordinated and
unsecured loan notes in an aggregate principal amount of
HK$189,000,000 to certain subscribers during the period
commencing on the date of this placing agreement and up to
(and including) the date falling on the 15th day of the sixth month
after the date of this placing agreement. The Aug 2015 Notes are
denominated in HK$ and will mature on the second anniversary
of the issue dates of the Aug 2015 Notes.

BE_ZT
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e BRI

—AF+ZA=+—HIFE
(LA TTER)

35. ERMEE (&)

@

(b)

()

CEFEER(ZZE—RF-AZEE)
$E%FEIH;@E5:5;*£¢*H£EE@?%B€@E%T’%

AR EREARRER LA SRR
1&%/\IHE@%15E B(e4E%B) L5
AEBRETREARITCELASBREAR
4,500,000 T & 1 - IFBREREERE
fxﬂ‘é o ZE—RFEZARRUETINE - I
R AF-_AZRERTEHE_RAFT
H o

1W0EFREEBE(=ZE—HFRAFEE]D
BEBRA-T—RAF AT ABOREER
Ed - BUEE AR REEE MR EHHE
A% EANMEAMNE1I5BER(B1EZE) I
HE - AEERE TREAZITI0ERS L
%8 /19,000,00078 T G - FFRERE
ERERRE - —T—RFNAZRBEABTT
E WHR - B-—RERNARBETHRAE
FEH|HR o

IEFEER(ZZE—RFENAEE]
BERPA-T—RAFENAZ=TAH E@%‘#EE%
Wi BUEEHERHEEE LR ERHH
HEENEANE15AEA(BEZA Mt,ﬁﬂ
B AEERETRBAZRTOERASBETEA
189,000,000 7 7T 89 £ {514 - FE1&8 (8 I K 7

ENER - —Z-AFN\ARBAETIIE
YR —B-RFN\ARBEETAME _BF
B8 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AN

ANy = /\Z'-ZF% &% E{TJ EI
For the year ended 31 December 2015 BHE-T—RAF+-A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTER)
36. SHARE CAPITAL 36. B
Nominal value Number of
per share shares Amount
SREE RHEE kX
Note HK$ 000 HK$'000
M3 BIT F FET
Authorised: SEE
Ordinary shares TR
At 1 January 2014 R-ZE—NF—A—H 0.10 8,000,000 800,000
Share consolidation SvR=xid 36(a)(i) 0.40 (6,000,000) -
Capital reduction and AR A1 K A& 10 47 48
share subdivision 36(a)(ii) 0.01 78,000,000 -
At 31 December 2014 and R-Z—WNE+-_A=+—H
1 January 2015 ;k=F—ARF—HA—H 0.01 80,000,000 800,000
Share consolidation B1n & 6t 36(b)() 0.10 (72,000,000) -
Capital reduction and AR A & B 17 #7400
share subdivision 36(b)(ii) 0.01 72,000,000 -
At 31 December 2015 R-E—RF+-_A=+—H 0.01 80,000,000 800,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR
Ordinary shares Tk
At 1 January 2014 RZZE—NF—HA—H 0.10 4,925,620 492,562
Performance shares issued BEITRRARG 36(d) 0.10 715,523 71,552
Share consolidation =i 36(a)(i) 0.40 (4,230,857) -
Capital reduction and AR A1 K2 A& 1 45 48
share subdivision 36(a)(ii) 0.01 - (650,011)
New issue of consideration shares #7125 17 (& M 36(e) 0.01 186,047 1,860
Shares issued on conversion SRR I R IR R BT
of convertible notes 36(c) 0.01 38,532 385
Placing of shares Ao & AR 19 36(f) 0.01 319,260 3,193
At 31 December 2014 and R-ZE—WNFE+=-A=+—H
1 January 2015 ;r—ZF—HRF—A—H 0.01 1,954,125 19,541
Share consolidation &Gt 36(b)() 0.10 (1,758,713) -
Capital reduction and A& A B ek Kz A4 v 4
share subdivision 36/(b)(ii) 0.01 - (17,587)
Performance shares issued BEITRERD 36(d) 0.01 16,456 165
Rights issue of shares HAREEITIR D 36(9) 0.01 586,238 5,862
Placing of shares g & AR 7 36(h) 0.01 39,080 391
New issue of consideration shares #7217 BR% (5 36(i) 0.01 146,699 1,467
New issue of consideration shares #2817 B I (D 36() 0.01 250,694 2,507
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE—AFE+-_A=+—H 0.01 1,234,579 12,346

172

GET Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2015



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

36. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(a) Reference is made to the circular of the Company dated 24 June 2014 in
respect of the capital reorganisation (“2014 Capital Reorganisation”).
Unless otherwise specified herein, capitalised terms used in this paragraph
shall have the same meanings as those defined in the circular.

The 2014 Capital Reorganisation was approved by the shareholders of the
Company at the special general meeting of the Company held on 17 July
2014 and became effective on 18 July 2014. The 2014 Capital
Reorganisation involved the followings:

(i) Share consolidation

Pursuant to the share consolidation, every four issued and
unissued existing shares of HK$0.10 each have been consolidated
into one consolidated share of HK$0.40 each (“2014 Consolidated
Share”) and the total number of 2014 Consolidated Shares has
been rounded down to a whole number by cancelling any fraction
in the issued share capital of the Company arising from the share
consolidation.

(ii) Capital reduction and share subdivision

— the issued share capital of the Company has been reduced
through a cancellation of the paid-up capital of the
Company to the extent of HK$0.39 on each of the issued
2014 Consolidated Shares such that the nominal value of
each issued 2014 Consolidated Share has been reduced
from HK$0.40 to HK$0.01 (2014 Capital Reduction”);

— immediately following the 2014 Capital Reduction, each of
the authorised but unissued 2014 Consolidated Shares of
HK$0.40 each was sub-divided into 40 new shares of
HK$0.01 each; and

— the credits arising in the books of the Company from (i) the
cancellation of any fraction in the issued share capital of the
Company arising from the share consolidation; and (i) the
reduction of the paid-up capital of the Company of
approximately HK$550,011,000 has been credited to the
contributed surplus account of the Company within the
meaning of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

Re MR R

BE-_T—AF+-A=+—RULFE

(AETTIIR)

36. WA (&)

By aE

ZRAARNRBPR-T-—NFAA-—THANE
B AAEBRAEE(—T—NFERAEA]) - B
XESEEIN AR ARARERBRAATEERLS
TRRE -

R -NERAEHCRARRE_F-HFLA
TERRITHBREFAGEARRABRLAE - WK
“E-NFEEATNBEXN  —E-WFRASAEY
RAT&IE

(i)

RERMD A6 - AR B FREE0I0ETE
BIRABTRERNSERAMHS—EE
BHO40B LA HBRND( T —HF & H
7)) M_E-OFaHRNOERDEBR
HEBRDAHMEEARREHITRASE
AERBRHTEEREH -

IS S Bl 3 e BB A A4

- AHARRBREHT T -NEFA
PR B BE AR 0.3978 7T - LA
RARAMBEBRITRE - CERER
T=Z—FA G K E B 0.40
BIURZE0OI BT ([ZE—ERA
AR

- SZRE—F—OFERAEIRE - SER
EER0A0BTTAEEEREIT-F
—mEAHROBRFARIORE
A% E{E 0.01 B TTAV RIS © K

- A () AR R B BEITRA D ERD
B O MEENERTEEN © R HE
BARBEFEARMAEARBRE £
i 38 /9 3 BR 49 550,011,000 7 7T B %
AXRAMNESBHBE(EER
—NAN—FRFERFE) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

36. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b) Reference is made to the circular of the Company dated 26 February 2015
in respect of the capital reorganisation (“2015 Capital Reorganisation”).
Unless otherwise specified herein, capitalised terms used in this paragraph

shall have the same meanings as those defined in the circular.

The 2015 Capital Reorganisation was approved by the shareholders of the
Company at the special general meeting of the Company held on 23
March 2015 and became effective on 24 March 2015. The 2015 Capital

Reorganisation involved the followings:

(i) Share consolidation

Pursuant to the share consolidation, every ten issued and unissued
existing shares of HK$0.01 each have been consolidated into one
consolidated share of HK$0.10 each (“2015 Consolidated Share”)
and the total number of 2015 Consolidated Share has been
rounded down to a whole number by cancelling any fraction in the
issued share capital of the Company arising from the share

consolidation.

(ii) Capital reduction and share subdivision

— the issued share capital of the Company has been reduced
through a cancellation of the paid-up capital of the
Company to the extent of HK$0.09 on each of the issued
2015 Consolidated Share such that the nominal value of
each issued 2015 Consolidated Share has been reduced
from HK$0.10 to HK$0.01 (2015 Capital Reduction”);

— immediately following the 2015 Capital Reduction, each of
the authorised but unissued 2015 Consolidated Share of
HK$0.10 each was sub-divided into 10 new shares of

HK$0.01 each; and

— the credits arising in the books of the Company from (j) the
cancellation of any fraction in the issued share capital of the
Company arising from the share consolidation; and (i) the
capital reduction of the paid-up capital of the Company of
approximately HK$17,587,000 has been credited to the
contributed surplus account of the Company within the
meaning of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

Immediately after the 2015 Capital Reorganisation becoming effective on
24 March 2015, the authorised share capital of the Company was
HK$800,000,000 divided into 80,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each, of
which 195,412,487 shares were in issue and the aggregate nominal value

of the issued share capital was HK$1,954,000.

BE-_T—AF+-A=+—RILFE

(AETTIIR)

36. WA (&)

Wi (

®)

&)

ZRAARRBPRR-ZF-—AF-_A-TRANB
B REEBRAEE (T —AFRAEE] - B
XESAEIN  ABRAMARAREBRMAEERS
GEISDE

—E-RFERABHENAQGE-ZT—AF=A
ZH=HBITHRFEEIASEARAARBRELE - I
RZZ—AF=A=-+WAEN - —T—HFRAE
WEHRIATEE «

RIER DS B AR B FREEO.01EITH
EETRABTREROE TRAMHE K
E{E010ETAMBRN ([ZF—RAFAHK
7)) M_F-AFAHRNEBRCEBRR
RN A FFRAEEARBTE BHITRARE
AIEEFROMES REL -

(i) e A B3 R Bt A v 4

- HEARREREFT_E—HEFA
AR DR B HE A 0.09787T + FLAHI
BARRMBEEHITRA - SEREH
T-ZE—RFEMHRMHEERO.10
BITHZE00I BT ([ ZE—AFRA
B 5

- ZhE—F-RERAEIREK - BEK
EEARCIOETHEEERET-F
—hAFEEHBRHERFARIORE
AXE{E0.01 BTTA AN © R

= () EHAR A B BEITRAS EBRD
EHMEENEATERG  Ri)H
BARRBEHGEAMERRARE &
IR B RR#) 17,587,000 8 T E BA
ARAAMEZBABER(ERER
—NAN—FBREXRE) °

BT RAFERAEAR T -AF=A=1+mA
kg - AR A RIEE AN £ 800,000,000 7T+ 9 A
80,000,000,000 % & AR EI{E0.01 BT By Bk 15 - H R
195,412,487RE#1T MEBRITRAEELER
1,954,000 7T ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

36. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(©

Reference is made to the Company’s circular dated 23 February 2013 and
the Company’s announcements dated 5 December 2012, 12 March 2013,
1 April 2013, 2 April 2013, 26 August 2013, 2 September 2013, 25
November 2013, 10 December 2013, 23 December 2013 and 30
September 2014 in relation to the acquisition of Apperience Group and
the issue of the conversion shares during the years ended 31 December
2013 and 2014.

With the immediate effect of the 2014 Capital Reorganisation (note 36(a)),
pursuant to the terms and conditions of the convertible notes, the
conversion price of the convertible notes was adjusted from HK$0.108 to
HK$0.432 per conversion share (subject to further adjustment) and the
remaining number of shares of the Company which to be allotted and
issued upon exercise of the conversion rights was adjusted to 38,532,464
new shares (subject to further adjustment). On 6 October 2014, the
Company issued a total of 38,532,464 conversion shares to the remaining
noteholder at the conversion price of HK$0.432 per conversion share.

Reference is made to the circular of the Company dated 23 February 2013
and the Company’s announcements dated 19 May 2014, 20 May 2014,
21 May 2014 and 28 May 2015 in relation to the acquisition of Apperience
Group and the issue of Tranche | and Tranche Il Performance Shares.
Capitalised terms used in this paragraph shall have the same meaning as
defined in the circular. In accordance with the Acquisition Agreement, an
aggregate of 715,522,718 Tranche | Performance Shares (note 33) have
been allotted and issued, credited as fully paid, by the Company to the
Vendors on 6 June 2014.

On 5 June 2015, the Company allotted and issued 16,455,916 Tranche ||
Performance Shares (note 33), credited as fully paid, to the Vendors to
settle the remaining part of the contingent consideration for the acquisition
of Apperience.

On 10 June 2014, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with EPRO Systems Limited for the acquisition of e-Perfect Group at a
consideration of HK$48,000,000. On 31 July 2014, completion of the
acquisition of e-Perfect Group took place and pursuant to the sale and
purchase agreement, the Company issued 186,046,500 ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each to the then ultimate holding company of e-Perfect IT,
DX.com, as a settlement of the consideration for the acquisition of
e-Perfect IT. The fair value of 186,046,500 new shares was approximately
HK$29,395,000, based on the market price (HK$0.158 per consideration
share) at 31 July 2014.
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HE_Z-—RF+_A=1T—HILFE
(AETTIIR)

36. B (4)

iEE « (48)

© HRMANRBRAE—=F-_A-+=BHBX
UERAATBPAE-_E——4+-_fAR - —ZT—=
F=A+=8H T—=FMNA—H —_FE—=FN
AZB ZZ—=F/\AZ+R B -ZZ—=F1A
ZH-ZE—=F+—AZ+HA ZT—=F+=
A+B - ZZE—=F+-A-+=AR-Z—MNFA

A=+B82R%E - NAHA B Apperience B A K&
HE-ZT—=GR-_T-—NF+-A=+—HILFE
BITSARRRLD -

BEE =T — IO E R A=A (7 36(a)) BB £k + 1R
ET?@HXK#E’M‘%?A&1'*1¢ AR ER N A IRED
SR E R 0.108 B T AT A 0.432 %8 7T (7] FiE
— PR MAREREITERS TRERERETHR
AR TR BB RIFH%E 5 38,532,464 AR 37 A% 7 (7]
FiE—FRE)  c RZT—MFEF+ANRB - AR
)‘%‘LT‘*‘F&HQRT’*H&%O432/’§Eﬁﬁ%T%T§T¢ﬁ/\?§
174 $£38,532,464 I 5 A% 1D

ZRBARR AR T = - AT =A8BEX
AR TE B2 —mOFERA+TAR - —F—M
FRA=-tHE - :gfﬂlﬁﬁﬁer*EI&f?*ﬁ

FRHAZFTNBHRE - NE A B Apperience &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EUN

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

36. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(®

On 6 October 2014, the Company entered into a conditional placing
agreement with a placing agent in respect of the placement of
319,260,000 ordinary shares at HK$0.01 each of the Company to not less
than six placees, who and whose ultimate beneficial owners shall be
independent third parties independent of the Company and its subsidiaries
and not connected nor acting in concert with any of the connected
persons of the Company and its subsidiaries or any of their respective
associates, on a best effort basis, at a placing price of HK$0.121 per
share. The placing of the shares was completed on 17 October 2014. The
net proceeds from the placing (after deduction of commission and other
expenses of the placing) were approximately HK$37,469,000 and
approximately HK$34,276,000 was credited to the Company’s share
premium account.

On 24 February 2015, the Board proposed a rights issue on the basis of
three rights shares for every one share (“Rights Issue”) held on 21 May
2015 (“Record Date”) at the subscription price of HK$0.35 per rights
share. The Rights Issue was approved by the shareholders at the special
general meeting of the Company held on 11 May 2015.

Upon the completion of the Rights Issue on 16 June 2015, 586,237,461
ordinary shares of the Company were issued at the price of HK$0.35
each. The net proceeds arising from the Rights Issue approximate to
HK$196,547,000. Details of the Rights Issue are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 24 February 2015, 20 Mach 2015, 10 April 2015,
11 May 2015, 12 May 2015 and 15 June 2015, the Company’s circular
dated 22 April 2015 and the Company’s prospectus dated 22 May 2015.

On 22 June 2015, the Company entered into a conditional placing
agreement with a placing agent in respect of the placement of 39,080,000
ordinary shares at a placing price of HK$0.49 per share. The placement of
shares was completed on 8 July 2015. The net proceeds from the placing
(after deduction of commission and other expenses of the placing) were
approximately HK$17,999,000 and approximately HK$17,608,000 was
credited to the Company’s share premium account.

On 31 July 2015, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement
to acquire 27,298,000 issued ordinary shares of China Parenting Network
Holdings Limited at the consideration of HK$60,000,000. Upon the
completion of the acquisition took place on 7 October 2015, the Company
issued 146,699,266 new shares of HK$0.409 each to the vendor as
settlement of the consideration for the acquisition. The fair value of
146,699,266 new shares was approximate to HK$52,812,000, based on
the closing price (HK$0.36 per new share) at 7 October 2015, and
approximately HK$51,345,000 was credited to the Company’s share
premium account.

BE-_T—AF+-A=+—RILFE

(AETTIIR)

36. WA (&)

BE : (

®

#)

R-F—ME+AXRA  AARREERBITLEEK
HECE RS - AREBIBEMEE R DR REEEA
(EREBERER ARBILNARR R EM B QR
BYFE=R > BWEERQBREME QB EAEH
BATHEESBNOEABHEA LB EFEE - 7F3F
B E—WITEIM A L) AL & 319,260,000 A% & A &
HOOTELHMARAEER  EEEBAREMR0.121E
e BERNER-_F-—HNF+A+LARRK - BEE
FRAGEFRFR(CHREEERENAS REMBHF
%) #1/737,469,0007 7T + 1M1 434,276,000 7T B #
ARRB R EER -

RZZF-—AF-_A-+HA EXQEHEELRE
BERHBRRM0.35BTETHE  EERR-F
—RFRA-+—R(ZHAH]) SHFE-—RRNHE
BZREBRERD (TH#HED - HRERARBTE-F
—HFAA T RRETHEREANASEERILAE -

HER-_E—RENATAATHKE  ARAFREHT
586,237,461 RA R B L AR - EESR0ISE T °
HAR P15 TR B F B L) 5 196,547,000 78 7T © AR R
HNARABPA-T—RAF_A=-+HA - =%
—A¥=A=+H ZE—RFEMA+HE - —ZT—F
FHA+T—HB - ZE-RAFRAAT-BAR-Z—AHF
NATHAMAL  ARFRBRHA-T—HENA
—t—AMBRRAARA AT —AFRHA
Zt+ZBERERER -

RoZE-—AFXA-+-H AAFREREREETT
BIRHFEEHZE  NAEBIRESEER0.495 TR
39,080,000 R Ei@Mk - MERMNER T —AF+
ANBRMK - BEEEAESRAEFE(CHRESSE
BRREEREMBEY) 4 517,999,000/ 7T+ M4
17,608,000 BT E B AR R AR & B R ©

RZZF—AFtA=1+—0 AEEFIVEEHH
LAZ X 8 60,000,000 7 7T Y il B B SR AR AR TR IR A IR
AR)27,298,000 RE HITEBR - WIBFER=F
—EFTAtBEERE KARBDREF BT
146,699,266 i & A% H B 0.409 7 7T H9 ¥ ik (7 - LA (S
MUESEENRE - R —RAF+AEHHKH
B (R 0.36 8 7T) 5t & - 146,699,266 AT AX
HEATFEEL A52,812,0008 7T + M#I51,345,000
BITBEBARA RN ®ER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Re MR R

BE-Z-hF+-A=1t—RLFE
(LA TTER)

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

36. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 36. KA (&)

Notes: (continued)

(i) On 13 August 2015 and 16 September 2015, the Group entered into a
conditional sale and purchase agreement and supplemental agreement for
the purchase of an aggregate of additional 14.677% of the issued share
capital of Boom Max (“Acquisition of Boom Max”) at a consideration of
HK$180,416,000. On 31 December 2015, completion of the Acquisition
of Boom Max took place and pursuant to the sale and purchase
agreement, the Company issued 250,693,999 consideration shares of
HK$0.3 each to the vendors, as settlement of part of the consideration for
the Acquisition of Boom Max. The fair value of 250,693,999 consideration
shares was approximately HK$53,147,000, based on the closing price
(HK$0.21 per consideration share) at 31 December 2015, and
approximately HK$50,640,000 was credited to the Company’s share
premium account.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at
meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard
to the Company’s residual assets.

The Group’s primarily objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it
can continue to provide returns for the shareholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between higher shareholder returns that
might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes judgement
as to the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group and the Company monitor its capital structure on the basis
of a debt-to-equity ratio. For this purpose, adjusted net debts is defined
as total debts (which includes trade and other payables, amount due to
a subsidiary, convertible notes and performance shares, which is
applicable). Equity comprises share capital and reserves.

faE s ()

[0) RZZ—AFNA+=ZBR=ZZF—RAFAA+HE
AEBFVEBRUHERGRRETHE  AREHEK
8% Boom MaxE8 M & 2£14.677% & % 17 B A ([ U B8
Boom Max]) * {8 % 180,416,000/% 7T ° 48 Boom
MaxRZZE—HE+ZA=+—HB5%K ' REESH
# 0 ANARIBME A 1T 250,693,999 i% FAXEIE 0.3
BT RERG - LAE R 4 Boom Max 89 #8 9 £
B -BZR-ZZ—RAF+-_A=+—AnKkmEER
RE/RH 0218 7T) 5t & - 250,693,999 R K (& Ik 17
#) A T (B 1E %) /53,147,000 7T K& #50,640,000 7%
T BEBARRBRGEEE

EERSEARREBRAEEIRAEE - HENRA
RAREG LIRBR-FERFZRR - FETARELRR
ARBEE TS E A RS -

AEREBEATEEERBAEEANFEL L
N BB ERER BRI E A MRGEBIARRA
IBRXAEGRLE - (L aE SR RARR IR B -

AEBEGREMRN REEEEARRE  UHFR

BREFUKFAI SRR B SR DR RIS T E
SRS R AR R AR IR 2 PR 4 - I B4R IR
HHEEH AR RE L HIE -

AEBRARAIRAEH R R SEEEREER
o Bt KPBEBKFERAEREBRE(RE
BHREMBENTIE - BN KB ARRE - ik
BEFRERRREND WER)) - HEBERARRHE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE_Z-—RF+_A=1T—HILFE
(AETTIIR)

36. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 36. WA (4E)
During 2015, the Group’s strategy was to maintain a debt-to-equity RIZE—HF  AEEHEBRNREAERBEYER
ratio at not more than 45% (2014: 45%). In order to maintain or adjust LEERTHEBASYK (Z T —MF : 45%) KK T o AR
the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to BRAEZLLER  AEEAERARRRMNOKRES
shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to shareholders, raise B BITHRG ARRBEER  ERMETRE
new debt financing or sell assets to reduce debts. L E B EURLE ©
The Group The Company
AEE NN
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-RF —ZT-mF —E-HF —T—F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FHET THET FHET
Debts (v 375,333 167,921 290,284 18,561
Equity s 1,015,953 726,352 1,014,144 674,527
Debt-to-equity ratio BEYERLE 37% 23% 29% 3%
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally AR REMB AR ESZINR N E AR E TR
imposed capital requirements. R o
The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for the Group to W—INBESHRERARBEABEL25% AR
maintain its listing on the GEM of the Stock Exchange it has to have a IR 2 LA KR BE XA IR A LT - AEEE
public float of at least 25% of the shares. The Group receives a report ENBEERGBEEREREERMGESTE LR
from the share registrars weekly on substantial share interests showing FARBRENRE  RERNFA—EETEH25%
the non-public float and it demonstrates continuing compliance with the REHRE - R_T—RHAF+_A=+—80" &
25% limit throughout the year. As at 31 December 2015, approximately 77.85%(—Z—PU4F : 96.46% )N EARA LTS -
77.85% (2014: 96.46%) of the shares were in public hands.
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Re MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE_Z-—RF+_A=1T—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTER)
37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 37. RRQBUBEMRRRRFHEES
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(@) Statement of financial position of the Company (@ ZA2IFHARE
2015 2014
—E-HF —T—EF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THExT FHT
Non-current assets FkRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB MR 453 548
Investments in subsidiaries B RA R R E - -
453 548
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments and deposits B FERES 334 331
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG E ] 1,161,199 673,183
Derivative financial instruments TEEMIA 21,564 -
Cash and cash equivalents L NIBSZEY 120,878 19,026
1,303,975 692,540
Current liabilities REAE
Accrued expenses and other payables & & 3 & H ith fE (- 518 9,259 1,802
Amount due to a subsidiary FEfS— M8 A RIFRIAE - 2,428
Performance shares 321 ) = 14,331
9,259 18,561
Net current assets REEERE 1,294,716 673,979
Total assets less current liabilities ZEEAERAEBAEER 1,295,169 674,527
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Loan notes BERER 212,500 -
Convertible notes ARRER 68,525 -
281,025 -
NET ASSETS EEFE 1,014,144 674,527
Capital and reserves EAXRRHE
Share capital (&N 12,346 19,541
Reserves 1 37(b) 1,001,798 654,986
TOTAL EQUITY HRES 1,014,144 674,527
Approved by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2016 and are WEESeN T —ANE=- A -+ AIESRIUTE
signed on its behalf by: ERERE
RE N
Kuang Hao Kun Giovanni Xue Qiushi
B EIE BNE
Director &% Director %
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ire WK R

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

HE_Z-—RF+_A=1T—HILFE
(AETTIIR)

37. AATRHBRRAKRREEEE (K)

(continued)
(b) Reserve movements of the Company (b) ADAEMEEES
Share  Convertible
Share Share  Contributed option  note equity  Accumulated
capital premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
TARE
A& R EE ERRY BRERE BEREGE B8] @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR ThT FiEr FEx ThT FiET FBx
At 1 January 2014 RZZ-ME—A-AH 492,562 46,682 411,238 310 13,809 (418,915) 545,686
Performance shares issued BETRERD (H3E36(d)

(note 36(d) 71,552 (38,638) = = S = 32,914
Share option lapsed (note 39) BIRE XA (M3 30) S S = (310 - 310 -
Share consolidated and capital R4 B R AE

reduction (note 36(a)i) (W3 361 (550,011) - 550,011 - - - =
Shares issued for acquisition o YiBEMB A A1 17/

subsioliaries (note 36(e)) (F3E36(6) 1,860 2753 = = = = 29,395
Share issued on conversion of AR RRERFETRG

convertiole notes (note 36(c))  (Hfi¥361c)) 385 26,991 = = (13,809) = 13,567
Placing of shares (note 361(f) RLE AR (i 36(0) 3,198 34,276 = = = = 37,469
Profit and total comprehensive ~ AFEEFIR2EMELE

income for the year = = = = = 15,496 15,496
At 31 December 2014 and RZE-mE+=A=+-A

1 January 2015 k=Z-15-A-H 19,641 96,346 961,249 - - (408,109 674,527
Share consolidation and capital R4 B REAARELR

reduction (note 36(0)i) (P& 36(0)(i) (17,587) - 17,587 - - - -
Performance shares issued BETRARD (M 36()

(note 36(d) 165 13,000 = = 5 = 13,165
Rights issue of shares (note 36(g)) 2 17i 17 (Fit3E 36(0)) 5,862 190,685 - - - - 196,547
Recognition of share based BRI BEBAZH

payments (note 39) (MizEa9) S - - 2,839 - - 2,839
Equity component of convertible TR EEER TS

notes (note 32(b)) (3£32(0)) S - - - 25,555 - 25,555
Placing of shares (note 36(1)) RLERI (M3 36() 391 17,608 - - - = 17,999
Issuance of consideration BIRERR (M 36()

shares (note 36(j) 1,467 51,345 - - - - 52,812
Shares issued for purchase of PR EREREIRG

non-controling interests (Bivzx 36())

(note 36()) 2,507 50,640 = = = = 53,147
Loss and total comprehensive AERRFRZANGET

income for the year - - - - - (22,447 (22,447)
At 31 December 2015 R-Z-RF+-A=1-H 12,346 420,124 978,836 2,839 25,555 (425,556) 1,014,144
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

38. RESERVES

(a)

(b)

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements therein are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and consolidated statement of
changes in equity.

Nature and purpose of reserves

()

(i)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in the share premium account of the
Company are distributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company provided that immediately following the date
on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed on 19 December
2013, the change of the domicile of the Company from the
Cayman lIslands to Bermuda was approved by the
shareholders. The change of domicile of the Company
was subsequently completed on 9 January 2014. Under
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the funds in the
share premium account of the Company may be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the
difference between the nominal value of share capital of
the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the reorganisation
scheme (the “Group Reorganisation”) to rationalise the
structure of the Group in preparation for the public listing
of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange set out
in the Company’s prospectus dated 18 December 2001,
over the nominal value of the shares of the Company
issued in exchange thereof.

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
excess of the fair value of the subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to the Group Reorganisation over the nominal
value of the shares of the Company issued in exchange
thereof.

BE_ZT

e BRI

—AF+ZA=+—HIFE
(LA TTER)

38. f#fE
(@ *&E
FEERFEREZHEN G BRI EME
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() RipHE
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H%ﬁﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁﬂﬁ’]ﬁf—l DIk TARAIE
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BRECERRAE - AAREBMER
WZZE—ME—-AhBEK - REBH
E-NAN—FREE ARAKRGEE
BRAT AR AL T 7K ©

AEENEHBREREARTASNA
—ETF4 - A+T\BNBRERRR
#H - REBARRRMDIRBRA LT
BEAEERBENEANE((REE
1) P R I A B e A T E AR
RABRBMBEITORMDEEREHE

ARBNEHESRIERIEEEEHMK
BHEARNAFEEBALAR AR
BmMETHRNEENERE -

BoEIRARAR / F3] 2015

181



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ire WK R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BHE-T—RAF+-A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTER)

38. RESERVES (continued) 38. ffE (&)
(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued) (b) RBEHEERBENE)
(i) Contributed surplus (continued) (i)  EHEER(E)
Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman BIEFEFSAREUSEIAR) - RAF
Islands, the contributed surplus account of the Company HEMBRIET DR T AR RERR
is distributable to the equity shareholders of the Company BHOEREBEHIRSORNIREER
provided that immediately following the distribution or RATEERNEEBEEBEETE
payment of dividend, the Company is able to pay its debts B EA(EIE -
as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
After the change of domicile, under the Companies Act B REARE-NAN—FQF
1981 of Bermuda, contributed surplus account is available E& BERRBEATHIIRTFRE - A
for distribution to shareholders. However, the Company CREBEENUTIER  RIAQRTEE
cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution EJESZEJEHH&‘% FREEHBHBFELD
out of contributed surplus if: ik
—  the Company is, or would after the payment be, — AARBRREIRMNEGEEE
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or BHIMEE 3
—  the realisable value of the Company’s assets would — ARARBEMEBRERTRM
thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities BEEIONHEBEREBEEHITR
and its issued share capital and share premium A KRR m B AR 42 AN o
account.
(i) Share option reserve (i)  FERRKERE
The share option reserve comprises the portion of the BRERBLENASEZABERRZD
grant date fair value of unexercised share options granted RIRITEBRENELEABATEEE
to a consultant of the Group that has been recognised in FRBEI T4 TE M ES KRG AR
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for share R B R SR A B & ST BUR R B 2B
options granted to directors and consultants in note 4(s). e
(iv)  Convertible note equity reserve ()  AIRREE#ERFE

The convertible note equity reserve represents the equity
component (conversion right) of the notes issued (note
32).

R E RN ER DR ITRIENE
-E 2 (i) (HE32) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

38.

39.

RESERVES (continued)
(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(v)  Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of available-for-sale
financial assets held at the end of the reporting period and
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy in
note 4(l).

(vi)  Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve of the Group comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations. The reserve is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy set out
in note 4(d).

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme (“the Share Option Scheme”)
is to enable the Company to grant options to either directors or
employees of the Group in order to recognise and motivate their
contribution, to provide incentives and to help the Group in retaining its
existing employees and recruiting additional employees by providing
them with a direct economic interest in attaining the long term business
objectives of the Group. The Share Option Scheme was approved by
shareholders in an extraordinary meeting on 24 December 2007.

The Company by ordinary resolution in general meeting may at any time
terminate the operation of the Share Option Scheme and in such event
no further Options will be offered but in all other respects the provisions
of the Share Option Scheme shall remain in force to the extent
necessary to give effect to the exercise of any options granted prior to
such termination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AN 2 =]
Re SRR M AT
For the year ended 31 December 2015 BHE-T—RAF+-A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTER)
39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 39. LURMAAERNIMS(E)
(@ The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows: (@) BWHERRGHWOT :
Contractual
Date of Number of Vesting life of Exercise
grant instruments conditions options Price
B RE
=R THEEH FERG X TEE
'000 HK$
Tt AT
Options granted to a consultant 19 May 2011 6,200* 0 year 3 years 0.116
1) — % i R RA R R B AR —=——®ARA+AIA 6,200* 0% 3F 0.116
Options granted to a director
of the Company 2 July 2015 6,155 0 year 3 years 0.551
MAQAT —BESRHERE —T-AFtAZH 6,155 0F 3F 0.551
Options granted to two directors
of subsidiaries of the Company 2 July 2015 6,155 0 year 3 years 0.551
MARBMEBARIMEBES R HERE —E-RFtHAZH 6,155 0%F 3 0.551
# After share consolidation became effective on 18 July 2011, the ' EHEHR—_F-——F LA+ NBERE
number of share options was reduced to 6,200,000. Each option R HE 2 B R = 6,200,00017 © &0 B RCAE R
entitled the holder to subscribe for one ordinary share in the THBAENRE - RA AR B -
Company.
(b) Details of the movement of share options outstanding (b) ERITEBRESEFELOT :

are as follows:

2015 2014
—ZE—hfF —ET—mF
Weighted Weighted

average Number of average Number of

exercise price options exercise price options

InREFES B g fE e

TEE 2R 11e(E #HE

HK$ ’000 HK$ ‘000

BT T 13 T T
Outstanding at the FHERITE

beginning of the year N/A T iE A - 0.116 6,200

Granted during the year FRFEH 0.551 12,310 N/ATiE =

Lapsed during the year FRKB N/ATREA - 0.116 (6,200)
Outstanding at the end FREARITHE

of the year 12,310 N/ATRER =
Exercisable at the end FRAI T

of the year - N/ANiE A =
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

()

Fair value of share options and assumptions

At 31 December 2015, the outstanding share options have a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 3 years. The
estimated fair values of the options granted on 2 July 2015 are
approximately HK$2,839,000 in aggregate. All share options
granted before 2014 were lapsed on 20 May 2014. No share
option was grant during the year ended 31 December 2014.

The fair value of share options granted on 2 July 2015 was
calculated based on the Binomial Model. The input into this
model is as follows:

BE_ZT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

—AF+ZA=+—HIFE
(LA TTER)

39. UROB/ERNRSZ M (&)

(c)

BREATEERRER

RZZ—RAF+ZA=+—8H  dRITEER
ERMEFEBTANBERSF - R-E—H
FLAZAARLBRENGTAFEEAHR
#) /2,839,000 T - FIER T —F Z Al
RHMBRER _Z-—NFRA-THERK -
BE-Z-MFE+-A=+—RILFEALHE
B (R RAE -

RoZ—FE+ A= RS RAEA T
BRHER - ERERHE - ZEANEABRE
T

Date of grant on 2 July 2015
RHEHM-Z-AFtA=H

Fair value at measurement date FTEHENATEE
Share price R& (B

Exercise price TEE

Expected volatility TEHR R 1R

Option life BB HR
Expected dividends FEHAAR B

Risk-free interest rate R =

The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining life of the
share options), adjusted for any expected changes to future
volatility based on publicly available information. Expected
dividends are based on historical dividends of the Company.
Changes in the subjective input assumptions could materially
affect the fair value estimate.

The eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include any
employee of the Group including any executive and any non-
executive directors of the Group.

The grant of share options should be accepted within a period of
7 days from the date upon which an offer of the grant of an
option is made to a participant, at a consideration of HK$1, being
payable by the grantee upon the acceptance of grant.

The options may be exercised in whole or in part at any time
during the period to be determined and identified by the Board,
but in any event such exercise period shall not exceed a period
of ten years commencing on the date of grant of the relevant
option, subject to the early termination of the Share Option
Scheme.

HK$0.231
0.231% 7T
HK$0.475
0.475%8 7T
HK$0.551
0.5517%7T
97.52%
97.52%
3.03 years
3.034
0%

0%
0.63%
0.63%

TEHIR IR LA 2R IR 2 - IR BRI ANt 1S
HTFHEFAE  URFRMEEMERNTREA
BRI BB - TRERSAARRFE
SERERE - TEHARBRREEATHLT
EBEGETEREATE -

BEET BN A A2 RE B RAEEEME
g8 BRAKEEARITREMERITES -

RHMBRRENM2EATREERERZ A
EE7ARER RKE/1EIL  AHXEA
REREHEZ AT -

SRR R N E R S A K| BRI RE RS 2 AR s
BATTEE - EEBNAEBITEH SRR
HARRARE AR ME B BAR S+ 4R 5 - MR AR AT B
AHRATALLE ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

(c)

Fair value of share options and assumptions
(continued)

The exercise price of the share options was determinable by the
Board at its absolute discretion, but was not able to be less than
the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the date of grant,
which must be a business day; (i) the average closing price of
the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant; and (iii) the average closing price of the shares as stated
in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for the ten
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iv)
the nominal value of the share on the date of grant.

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the maximum number of
shares in the Company which may be issued upon exercise of all
options may be granted under the Scheme when aggregated
with any other share option scheme of the Company must not
exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the date of adoption of
the Scheme or the date on which such limit is refreshed by the
shareholders of the Company (“Refreshed 10% Limit”).

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company at any time shall not exceed 30% of
the shares in issue from time to time.

No option may be granted to any person if the total number of
shares of the Company already issued and issuable to him under
all the options granted to him in any 12 month period up to and
including the date of grant exceeding 1% of total number of
shares in issue as at the date of grant. Any further grant of
options in excess of this 1% limit shall be subject to the issue of
a circular by the Company and the approval of the shareholders
in general meeting. Any grant of option to substantial
shareholders or independent non-executive directors or their
respective associates which would result in the total number of
shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted and to be granted in any 12-month period in excess of
0.1% of the Company’s issued share capital and having an
aggregate value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be approved in
advance by the Company’s shareholders in general meeting.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period
of 10 years commencing on its adoption date.

BE-_T—AF+-A=+—RILFE

(AETTIIR)

39.

RGO HBERNR S N (F)
(c) BREXFEERERE)

BRENTEEIHESSBYRISET
THRERTERE  (BRORELBHCE
REER)EBRZ AT HRERMFIKTE i)
PR EER L AR DA % B AR e
BRERMHFHRTE : (i) iR BER
H B EIATHEE X R R X e A RERMD
FHWTHE K v) R RS BB EE -

BIEEARE S - Bt EIE TR RENE
BIRAEEITEM A TRITNAARARNES
B - ERAR R A EAmEREEIR LR
BiERETE  TERBRATE G
REBEEARRREENE B EHTRM10%
(TEEFH10% LR ]) »

BERLMER - BITERE B RARRE
] E At F A =+ I TR B I R TRV PR 149
ARITEBBMAE - M 7] FEITHORO R ERERE
BTNSBBR TR BITRMO M 30% -

WMREEREBBR(BEZA) LEM12(EA
M RERTFENATOMEEREDLER
A FEITHARBRG BERBNEL BHE
BITRODBE1% - AR SmERALTRLRE
B&AE o i — SR ILBIBZ 1% R E R AR
FFARRT B RRERRRRGHE © i
AR T EERRKBI I TESERBEES
BRI B ATHERE  SEBRER12
18 A B B B R B A B IR TR E
BT RGBEITTRRMBEBBEA AR B EITR
Z80.1% K48 (E83H 5,000,000 7T » B4 EE
ANRBRRRIREAG F LA

RSt I N BB B B S 10 AA K
KA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

40.

41.

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
(Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The
MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the scheme at
5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$25,000 before 1 June 2014 and HK$30,000
commencing from 1 June 2014. Contributions to the scheme vest
immediately.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are members of
the state-sponsored retirement benefit scheme organised by the
relevant local government authority in the PRC. The subsidiaries are
required to contribute, based on a certain percentage of the basic
salary of its employees, to the retirement benefit scheme and have no
further obligations for the actual payment of pensions or post-retirement
benefits beyond the annual contributions. The state-sponsored
retirement benefit scheme represents for the entire pension obligations
payable to retired employees.

The Group does not have any other pension schemes for its employees
in respect of its subsidiaries outside Hong Kong and the PRC. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 in
respect of the retirement of its employees.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

(@ Acquisition of GEO Finance Limited (“GEO Finance”)

On 12 March 2015, Fast Yield Holdings Limited (“Fast Yield”), a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and four vendors of
GEO Finance, entered into a sale and purchase agreement in
relation to the acquisition of 51% of the issued share capital of
GEO Finance by Fast Yield. The acquisition took place on 12
March 2015 at a consideration of approximately HK$255,000.
GEO Finance is principally engaged in money lending business.

Re MR R

HE_Z-—RF+_A=1T—HILFE
(AETTIIR)

40.

41.

RERFRAGE

NEBMBEEE AP F485Z 05 EATEEEE
Bl - ARBEEERBEROIIEENEE  [BERGIMERTE
et Bl ([8EEEE]) - BBESHE—EHBELE
SEABENREHRFEMREE - REBARESETE - &
FRHEESZAMEIZIES BRAKRAR 5% HEK -
W& AARBWRAR LR A250008T (=T —MEN
A—HA) k30,0008 T(BE-E—MFEA—H
) o MR BIATIELRENS R B -

AEE BB AR ES T BB R BT
PRHEFTR B R A BRI R BIFOEK 8 - TR RIZA
RRARENFEIZEESNEAHFENETAESLH
K BBARRARENERNRSIRRRBRIFEF
EHFAIIEMEF - BRERAKEF T EIFE
FARAEEXNN2EEREAE -

AEEWEASEREERF BB ARNESR
RILEFEMBEAREEE - ARREERE - A%H
RE-F-AFR-TNF+-_A=+—BAUERE
EERAMAEEFMEARRARE -

RERERBRMEE

(@ WRESRFUBERQXAATEBZRA
1% 1)

MR-ZZE—RFE=ZA+=-B A2R2EWBERQ
ARIRIER AR A B (MRHR]) 8% 53R 5 ot
BONEEFTCEBRR - NAEHEHRR
KWBESRARESI1%EHITHRA - WHES
BERZZT-—AF=A+=-B#ET REHA
255,000 - BEHR AN BEFENEEESE
f%o
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

B H5 R R BT

HE_Z-—RF+_A=1T—HILFE
(AETTIIR)

41. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF . FERESRERMTEE)
CASH FLOWS (continued)
(@) Acquisition of GEO Finance Limited (“GEO Finance”) (@ WHEEZRLIVEERARTEZIREL
(continued) B 1) (%)
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of GEO RUEE B AT S 5 R 7 B S ) el iR E B
Finance acquired as at the date of acquisition are as follows: RBENATEENT :
HK$'000
FET
Net assets acquired: Fri g &5 1E -
Property, plant and equipment (note 20) M - BB R (M3 20) 27
Trade and other receivables B 5 R EMEWRIE 3,141
Cash and cash equivalents B RBeEED 534
Trade and other payables B 5 M E BN RIA (3,104)
Current tax liabilities EHTEAE (29)
Net assets BEFE 569
Non-controlling interests FEFERR I (279)
Gain on bargain purchase (note 10) ZERE R (BHFE10) (35)
Total consideration BB 255
Satisfied by: A5 ERN -
Cash Re 255
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: W ELERIRESRAERE
Cash consideration paid EANEERE (259)
Cash and cash equivalents ReERRECEEY 534
279
The fair value of trade and other receivables acquired was FEE S REMERRENRTEEBENR
approximately HK$3,141,000. The gross amount of these 3,141,000 T - ZERUWRBRBLEDN A
receivables was approximately HK$3,141,000. None of these 3,141,000/ 7T - EZZEWZKIBD HEN
receivables had been impaired and expected to be uncollectible. FEEAN AT Y[ -
GEO Finance contributed approximately HK$2,814,000 and RUWEBRRERENR  DHRAUEELE
HK$544,000 to the Group’s revenue and the Group’s profit for B 5 RIE B A 492,814,000 7 7T K AN & %
the year respectively between the date of acquisition and the end #544,000 7T °
of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

41. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(@

(b)

Acquisition of GEO Finance Limited (“GEO Finance”)
(continued)

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January 2015, total
Group turnover for the year ended 31 December 2015 would
have been approximately HK$324,932,000, and profit for the
year ended 31 December 2015 would have been approximately
HK$93,483,000. The proforma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of the turnover
and results of operations of the Group that actually would have
been achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1 January
2015, nor is intended to be a projection of future results.

Acquisition of subsidiaries

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group obtained
control of GET Mdream, Lujolujo, e-Perfect Group and Wafer HK.
Details of the acquisitions are as follows:

(i) Acquisition of GET Mdream

On 28 March 2014, Fast Yield and an independent third
party entered into a memorandum of understanding in
relation to the acquisition by Fast Yield of the entire equity
interest in GET Mdream. The acquisition took place on 2
April 2014 at a consideration of approximately
HK$1,033,000.

GET Mdream is principally engaged in Insurance and MPF
Schemes Brokerage Business in Hong Kong and is a
member of the Professional Insurance Brokers
Association.

(ii) Acquisition of Lujolujo

On 8 April 2014, Lucky Famous Limited (“Lucky Famous”),
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
subscription agreement with Mr. Mok Kwan Yat and Mr.
Cheng Wai Cheung, Herman, the vendors of Lujolujo, and
Lujolujo pursuant to which Lucky Famous has conditionally
agreed to subscribe for, and Lujolujo has conditionally
agreed to issue new shares (“Subscription Shares”) at the
subscription price of HK$14,000,000. The Subscription
Shares represent 77% of the share capital of Lujolujo (as
enlarged by the issue of the Subscription Shares) upon
completion which took place on 23 April 2014.

Lujolujo is principally engaged in online shopping business
under the name of “Funshare.com”.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Re MR R

HE_Z-—RF+_A=1T—HILFE
(AETTIIR)

4. RERETRERME (H)

(@ WREZRHTUBERAIAITEBZRA
B35 1) (%)

Mk EEER —E-AF - AN A&
Bz —T-AF+-_A=t+—HILFEA%L
%284 5324,932,0008 L MEBE_T— %
F+-_A=Z+—BLEEEFEANNUND A
93,483,000 7T - {BEE EREMKFARR - K
VAEMKEEER -_Z—RF— - BTRE
AEEERMEEEERCEEENEZ 5
TEEARREEZRTER -

(b) WHEKHELF

HE-_Z-—NFE+_A=+—RILtEE K&
BERBEEE 5 - Luolujo + BB K& %
BEBREGIE - WHEFBOT :

)  EHEZE

RIZZE—MFE=A=1+N\A ' BkRE—
EBUE =PRI R RESN - BB
BRRNEHEE 52 IRE - WER
—E-NEWNA-ZHRK REHNA
1,033,000 7T o

BE2ESTIENTBNERRIBES
FIEIRLER  YATEHFERBRLL

HEes

(i) He5E Lujolujo

R-ZZT—MEMANR - ARE2EH
B A &Lucky Famous Limited ([ Lucky
Famous]) &2 Lujolujo (VB H E & ek 4+
Ko B 4 % 5% A LA K Lujolujo 71 3 53 B 15
#% 0 Utk 0 Lucky Famous & & 1 B &
R M Lujolujo B iR 14 [ B 1T ¥ AR 1D
(TREERD 1) - R/ 14,000,000 7
TLeRZTE—MNFNA=Z+=HA%MK
1& - REBIMD 1548 E 2 Lujolujo £ 3 17
REBRODIEARHIRAT7% °

Lujolujo = Z LA [Funshare.com] % # #&
EH RIS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ire WK R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BHE-T—RAF+-A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTER)

41. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 4. ZEHRERERME (A
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued) (b) UWEEMIE LT ()
(i) Acquisition of e-Perfect Group (i) B EREEE
On 10 June 2014, Mission Win International Limited RZZE—MFERATRH - ARE2EH
(“Mission Win”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the J& 2 @] Mission Win International Limited
Company, entered into a sale and purchase agreement ([Mission Win]) £2 DX.com (B& A L55 :
with EPRO Systems Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of 8086) 2 A B AR ZBERXRER AR
DX.com (stock code: 8086) for the acquisition by Mission I B E W - WA A B Mission Win
Win of 100% equity interest in e-Perfect IT at a U s 18 2 EBARRE - 1R {8 45 48,000,000
consideration of HK$48,000,000 which was settled by BT 18 LA 186,046,500 f% AR A A i
186,046,500 of the Company’s ordinary shares R (TRBRRM ) Z AT -

(“Consideration Shares”).

On 31 July 2014, the date of completion of the acquisition, REEBER AT —NFLA=+—
pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement, the A BEEEWHZE ' A28 M[DX.com
Company issued 186,046,500 consideration shares of #17186,046,500 IR B AR E{E 0.01 8 T
HK$0.01 each to DX.com. The fair value of the HRERD - REBRHHAFEENR
consideration shares was approximately HK$29,395,000, 29,395,000 7T - B EIIIRER =
based on the bid price (HK$0.158 per consideration share) T—NFEA=+—HMNEAB(ER
at 31 July 2014. REMRD0.158 B TT)5TH ©
e-Perfect Group is principally engaged in Corporate LEEEFTENSOEETERATER
Management Solutions and I.T. Contract Services BB A RIS
Business.

(iv)  Acquisition of Wafer HK )  WRER B
On 31 October 2014, e-Perfect IT entered into a sale and RZZE—ME+A=+—H  ZEHEE
purchase agreement with Wafer Systems Limited for the BERBERARGEE RS -
acquisition by e-Perfect IT of 100% equity interest in Wafer BEBRERERELTRE REAR
HK at a consideration of HK$18,000,000. Completion of 18,000,000 7 - MR BEHEBR T
acquisition of Wafer HK took place on 31 December 2014, —mFE+=A=1+—H56K - WERE
total consideration for acquisition of Water HK is EEMEMREA18,018,0008 7T °

HK$18,018,000.

Wafer HK is principally engaged in Corporate Management BBEEBSITERSOEETERATRRK
Solutions and I.T. Contract Services Business. BRI AN RIGET o
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

41.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS (continued)

BE_ZT

e BRI

—HE+-A=+—BHLEE

(LA TTER)

4. RERETRERME (H)

(b) Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued) (b) UWEEMIE LT ()
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of GET RS B BT 2 S 5 - Luolujo ~ L iE
Mdream, Lujolujo, e-Perfect Group and Wafer HK acquired as at B R ED BRI A RS &E%E’U/Aﬂ?%‘i
the dates of acquisitions are as follows: (ERUNNE
GET e-Perfect Wafer
Mdream Lujolujo Group HK Total
BEES Lujolujo EEEE HEEE st
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET
Net assets/(liabilities) acquired: Pk EE,/(BE)FE
Property, plant and equipment W - BB KRR (i 20)

(note 20) - 222 709 293 1,224
Intangible assets (note 23) EREE (FI3E23) S S 13,892 S 13,892
Inventories & - 51 39 14,667 14,757
Trade and other receivables &5 M H eI T8 10 13,545 3,203 15,319 32,077
Pledged bank deposits BIEFRITER - 804 - - 804
Bank and cash balances RITRIRE B 165 2,172 12,517 19,867 34,721
Trade and other payables B 5 R H b A ) (9,276) (2,835)  (63,041) (65,159
Current tax assets EEBELE - - 229 - 229
Deferred tax liabilities (note 34(a)) ERERIEE & (P 34(a)) - - (2,293) - (2,293)

168 7,518 25,461 (2,895) 30,252
Non-controlling interests IirE R - (1,729) - - (1,729)
Goodwill (note 22) R (E22) 865 8,211 3,934 20,913 33,923
1,033 14,000 29,395 18,018 62,446
Satisfied by: PATSIA S E
Cash Re 1,033 14,000 - 18,018 33,051
Consideration shares (note 36(e)) RERD (B3 36(e) - - 29,395 - 29,395
1,033 14000 29,395 18018 62,446
Net cash (outflow)/inflow arising WEEAHNES (RE), /A

on acquisitions: HEE
Cash consideration paid EfEERE (1,033) (14,000) - (18,018) (33,051)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired ~ FTUiBEIR € MIE € EEY 165 2,172 12,517 19,867 34,721

868)  (11,828) 12517 1,849 1,670
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

41. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued)

Intangible assets of e-Perfect Group represented customer
relationship and computer software identified in the business
combination. The Group engaged an independent professional
valuer to perform fair value assessments on these intangible
assets as at the date of acquisition in accordance with HKFRS 3
“Business Combination”.

The fair value of the trade and other receivables acquired was
approximately HK$32,077,000. The gross amount of these
receivables was approximately HK$32,077,000. None of these
receivables had been impaired and expected to be uncollectible.

The goodwill arising on the acquisitions of GET Mdream, Lujolujo,
e-Perfect Group and Wafer HK were attributable to the
anticipated profitability of the distribution of the Group’s products
in the new markets and the anticipated future operating synergies
from the combinations.

Revenue and profit between the dates of acquisitions and 31
December 2014 contributed by these subsidiaries acquired
during the year ended 31 December 2014 to the Group are
summarised as follows:

HE_Z-—RF+_A=1T—HILFE
(AETTIIR)

FEREREBRME (H)

(b)

WM B~ E (&)

TEEENBTEEREBAIPMENE
FRAREKEMN - AEECRE-—2BULE
EHEMBREEEVBEREEREIN [ X5
Bt FHEZERVEAERKBERAHNA
FEE-

T E 5 R EMERRIBENAFEENA
32,077,000 L ZEREBHKIBLEO A
32,077,000 7 © 7% %5 FE W IE I SR (B ) 58
Hi SRR m) o

W28 5 - Lujolujo ~ HIESE KA #EE
BRELABEREENTS D HAEEERDN
Rt BFIEN RR A A HERARRELEHR

REEESHE—T—NF+-_A=+—HILH
M BE-T—NF+-_A=+—BLEFER
WHEZSWE AR AREE BB MU R T
BER AN

Revenue Profit/(loss)

Wz B (E8E)

HK$’000 HK$'000

FAT FET

GET Mdream HER 5 76,507 9,501
Lujolujo Lujolujo 3,568 (3,043)
e-Perfect Group TrEEE 8,422 1,487
Wafer HK BEBERS - -
88,497 7,945
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

41.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b)

Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued)

If the acquisitions had been completed on 1 January 2014, the
new subsidiaries acquired during the year ended 31 December
2014 would have contributed to the Group’s revenue and profit
for the year ended 31 December 2014 as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

BE-Z-hF+-A=1t—RLFE
(LA TTER)

4. RERETRERME (H)

(b) WEEKBAR (&)

HEEER -T—NE—A—BxK  AlEE
“E-NE+Z A=+ B IS ERTREE I
BRARENEBE T -NF+-_A=+—H1It
FERAEEEROMSEREFIAT

Revenue Profit/(loss)
Wz B (E8E)
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FAT FET
GET Mdream B2E5 76,533 9,514
Lujolujo Lujolujo 8,336 (4,947)
e-Perfect Group TaE L [E 21,167 5,760
Wafer HK BEBEE 68,067 5,136
174,103 15,463

The proforma information mentioned above are for illustrative
purposes only and are not necessarily indications of the turnover
and results of operations of the Group that would have been
achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1 January
2014, nor is intended to be a projection of future results.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January 2014, total
Group turnover for the year ended 31 December 2014 would
have been approximately HK$319,899,000, and profit for the
year ended 31 December 2014 would have been approximately
HK$96,497,000. The proforma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of the turnover
and results of operations of the Group that actually would have
been achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1 January
2014, nor is intended to be a projection of future results.

biiteE ERHEHFHAAE - RO B MHAEER
—E-ME-A-AERBAREEERNE
PR RN EARE T TRERNRREER
TEAR

MR =B —mE— A — B AEEE
EoT-WEt- A=t B EEELEE
#]74319,899,000/8 T * ME = =T — W F
+= A=+— 81 E R FIRI4 5 96,497,000
BT BEERHERHEME - KU BMKE
RoT—me—F—ARRBAEBERHE
BRI RGBS EANIEE TN R
ETE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ire WK R

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

41. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 41.

CASH FLOWS (continued)

(c) Disposals of subsidiaries

()

BE-_T—AF+-A=+—RILFE

(AETTIIR)

FEREREBRME (H)

() HEMBELH

Disposal of entire interest in Bonus First Group Limited () HEFTTEBEERAF ([FT]) B2E8
(“Bonus First”) by
On 29 December 2015, the Group disposed of its entire RZZE—AF+ZA=+NIA £5H
equity interest in Bonus First, a wholly owned subsidiary of EEERFT(REEMATEELE
the Group before the disposal, for a cash consideration of MERARHEHRE ReRER
HK$62,000,000. 62,000,000 T °
Details of assets and liabilities of Bonus First at date of MTREERBMEERABENFBN
disposal were as follows: T

HK$'000

FHT

Investment property (note 21) wAEMZE (MEE21) 59,081
Other receivables HAb IR 178
Accrued expenses and other payables FEAT B AR N H At FE S F0IB (175)
Current tax liabilities EHTEAE (38)
Net assets disposed of Rl &EBEFE 59,046
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — R E 2 AR des
Consideration RIE 62,000
Net assets disposed of FThEgERE (569,046)
Gain on disposal * o s 2,954
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEMEERSRAFE
Cash consideration received BB RE 62,000

losses”.

The gain on disposal is included in “other gains and

& ekt A [ E it RS IR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

41. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 41.

CASH FLOWS (continued)

(c) Disposals of subsidiaries (continued)

(i)

e BRI

BE_Z-AFT-_A=+t—BLFE

(LA TTER)

FEREREBRME (H)

() HEKBAR &)

Disposal of 51% equity interest in Dragon Oriental (i) & Dragon Oriental £751% A& 1
On 30 September 2014, the Group disposed of 51% of its RZZE—MFNLA=1TH  AEELE
equity interest in Dragon Oriental, a wholly owned E 74 Dragon Oriental (7 ) & A A A &
subsidiary of the Group before the disposal, for a cash E2EAHBAR)MS1%KE  Ba
consideration of HK$21,700,000. After the completion of & /21,700,000 7T - & T IE -
the disposal, Dragon Oriental became an associate of the Dragon Oriental 5 £ 7 5= B Bk & 2 7] (Ff
Group (note 25). FE25) °
Details of assets and liabilities of Dragon Oriental at date of Dragon Oriental R EBHIEE KA E
disposal were as follows: HFHBET
HK$'000
FET
Investment property (note 21) wEYE (MiE21) 43,300
Cash and cash equivalent BeRBEEED 153
Accrued expenses and other payables FEAT B AR N H At FE S F0IB (188)
Current tax liabilities EHTEAE (76)
43,189
% of interest disposed FriEf=a ot 51%
Net assets disposed of Fri&EEEFE 22,026

Loss on disposal of a subsidiary
Consideration

Fair value of retained non-controlling interest

Less: Carrying value of net assets

Loss on disposal*

Net cash inflow arising on disposal:
Cash consideration received
Cash and cash equivalents disposal of

*

losses”.

HE— M E A BMEIE

RE 21,700
EREDIFERERN N TEE 21,163
42,863
B BEFENREE (43,189)
HEEsE (326)
HEMEERSRAFEE
BERRERE 21,700
FHERE KRS EEY (153)
21,547

The loss on disposals are included in “other gains and

: HEBERA [H et REE] -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ire WK R

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE_Z-—RF+_A=1T—HILFE
(AETTIIR)

41. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 4. ZEHRERERME (A
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(d) Deemed disposal of partial interest in Lujolujo (d) #HEAHE Lujolujosfo XS

On 31 October 2015, Lujolujo entered into a subscription
agreement with a third party in relation to the subscription by the
third party of 50,000 new shares allotted by Lujolujo at an
aggregate consideration of HK$8,500,000. After the completion
of the allotment and subscription on 31 October 2015, the
Group’s shareholding in Lujolujo was diluted from 77% to
12.83%. Accordingly, Lujolujo became an investment of the
Group without control and was classified as available-for-sale
financial assets (note 26).

RZE—HAF+A=+—H " LuoluofE—%
E=FAINRERZE RBAERAE=FRE
Lujolujo 7 Bt 3% 50,0008 #T Ik 19 - KB A
8,500,000 - R—ZT—RHE+H=+—8
TR B RRER - NEER Lujolujo K IR 1
BEH77%#EZE12.83% ° Bt » Lujolujo X A
REEBEITHERE  UHOBERTHEESR
& (M55 26) o

HK$'000

FHT

Property , plant and equipment (note 20) Y - BB KR (MEE20) 544
Inventories FE 140
Trade and other receivables B 5 R EMEWRIE 1,661
Pledged bank deposits EEIPRITER 806
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBEEED 253
Accrued expenses and other payables e B A R EL h FE A5 5R0B (4,753)
Carrying amount of net liabilities disposed of FrEaEFEnEEE (1,349)
Non-controlling interest derecognised BRI A i 310
Net liabilities disposed of P& a & s (1,039

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

HE - E A R e i

Fair value of 12.83% interest retained ERE 12.83% R AT EE 1,309
Net liabilities derecognised BRIEERAEFE 1,039
Gain on deemed disposal* WA A& s 2,348
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEMEARSREIFE

Cash and cash equivalents disposal of FIHERERRESED (253)
* The gain on deemed disposal is included in “other gains and * WAR AT EWREET A [EmsRER] -

losses”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

41. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(e)

U]

BE_ZT

e BRI

—AF+ZA=+—HIFE
(LA TTER)

4. RERETRERME (H)

Deemed disposal of partial interest in GET Mdream () WEALEWEEZMoER (UW|AE
without loss of control ZEHIRE)
On 7 July 2014, Fast Yield entered into a subscription agreement R-FT-OFLA+A - RRERATNAR
with Prosperous Glory Asia Limited (‘Prosperous Glory”) (note AV ([BEF 1) (i 44(a) (i) 7T 2R hedk -
44(a)(ii)) in relation to Prosperous Glory’s subscription of 432,352 TR RBZE 5 A B3 432,352 3
new shares allotted by GET Mdream at an aggregate 17 - # 1B /52,002,000 =T — M
consideration of HK$2,002,000. After the completion of the FEALATREERREER  ARERBE
allotment and subscription on 7 July 2014, the Group’s BHHBRIED B 100% #HE51% °
shareholding in GET Mdream was diluted from 100% to 51%.

HK$'000

FHET

Carrying amount of net liabilities disposed of FritEaEFEMRmE (976)
Consideration received from non-controlling interests (PR i MR ER R B 2,002
Gain on disposal recognised directly in equity HEEREDEINHHE K 1,026
Major non-cash transaction H FEIEELXSH

On 31 July 2015, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to acquire 27,298,000 issued ordinary shares of
China Parenting Network Holdings Limited at the consideration
of HK$60,000,000. At the date of the completion on 7 October
2015, the consideration was fully satisfied by the Company’s
newly issued shares (note 36(j)).

Acquisition of Boom Max was completed on 31 December 2015
at a consideration of HK$180,416,000, which was satisfied by
cash settlement of HK$30,000,000, the issue of Company’s
convertible notes at nominal value of approximately
HK$75,208,000 (note 32(b)) and issue of the Company’s shares
at nominal value of approximately HK$75,208,000 (note 36()).

RZT—AFtA=+—A AEBEVESE
W% SRR {B60,000,0008 TR EFEE
TR AR AT 27,208,000 B 81T
B WEEER -_Z—RAFTALHE=K
MARETHE BN R RIFTEITAR G B EE A (K
FE36()) °

Boom Max BN —T—HF+_A=+—H
e - KB 5 180,416,0008 7T * IR & F
30,000,000 7T + % 17 H {E 475,208,000 %
TTRIARD B AT R AR 4% (BT sE32(b)) KB 1T HE
B49 75,208,000 7 7L 89 A8 22 FIRR 17 (P 5% 36())
XAt o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ire WK R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BHE-T—RAF+-A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTER)
42. COMMITMENTS 42, EiE
(@)  Capital commitments at the end of the reporting period are as @  RIREBRNEARENAT
follows:
2015 2014
—ZE—hF —E—MmF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Contracted but not provided for: EEHEMNEES: I
— development costs for intangible assets — B EEMNRERA 26,586 21,715
(b) At 31 December 2015, the total future minimum lease payments ) RKR-ZE—AF+-—A=+—8 BRETITHE
of the Group under non-cancellable operating leases are payable KERE  AEBERUTFE R HEM KK
as follows: SEMASMR@EHOT :
2015 2014
—E-HF —Z—E
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHAT
Within one year —F R 4,118 3,835
After one year but within five years —FRERFA 1,952 4,277
6,070 8,112
Operating lease payments represent rental payable by the Group Prd

EHENFEARBRERIEMELRR
REENNES - HERRFHLRHME
—E-OF - ME)HE  HERNEEHNRE

for its office premises and office equipment. Leases are
negotiated for an average term of 2 years (2014: 2 years) and

it

—~

rental is fixed over the lease terms and do not include contingent FATRBERAES -
rentals.
43. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 43. FHAREE
As at 31 December 2015, the Group did not have any significant RZE—RAF+A=+—0 FAEBEVELFAEX
contingent liabilities (2014: Nil). FRBECT—MF | o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Re MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BHE-T—RAF+-A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTER)
44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 4. BEBEIRS

(@) During the year, the Group entered into the following related (@ FA AEEFTZATHEBEIRS

party transactions:

2015 2014
—E-HEF —T—HEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Management fee paid to Verde Apparel ENEEREERATNERE
Limited (note 44(a)(i) (5T 44(2)00) = 28
Rental expenses paid to Verde Garment ENEERXERARNHEEMAS
Manufacturing Limited (note 44(a)() (Bt &E44(a)0) = 96
Issued and allotted the subscription shares of a8 5 21T & At 2% — &1t B A =)
a subsidiary to Prosperous Glory AR BB A (P 7 44(a)(i))
(note 44 (a)(ii) - 2,002

BoEIRARAR / F3] 2015 e



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@) (continued)

0] Lujolujo entered into a sub-tenancy agreement with Verde
Garment Manufacturing Limited on 8 April 2014 and
entered into a management services agreement with
Verde Apparel Limited on 1 January 2014. Upon the
completion of the subscription of 77% of the enlarged
issued share capital of Lujolujo on 23 April 2014, Lujolujo
has become a subsidiary of the Company. After
completion of the Subscription, Mr. Mok Kwan Yat owned
11.5% equity interest of Lujolujo and was a director of
Lujolujo until his resignation from the position on 8 August
2014. As Verde Apparel Limited and Verde Garment
Manufacturing Limited are subsidiaries of Verde Holdings
Limited which is held as to 33% by Mr. Mok Kwan Yat, the
above transactions had constituted related party
transactions until his resignation as director of Lujolujo on

8 August 2014.

(ii) As mentioned in note 41(e), on 7 July 2014, the Group
entered into a subscription agreement with Prosperous
Glory in relation to Prosperous Glory’s subscription of 49%
of the enlarged share capital of GET Mdream at an
aggregate consideration of approximately HK$2,002,000.
The completion of the subscription took place immediately
after the signing of the subscription agreement. As Mr.
Poon Chun Yin, a common director of GET Mdream and
Prosperous Glory, has beneficial interest in Prosperous
Glory, the above transaction had constituted related party

transaction.

HE_Z-—RF+_A=1T—HILFE
(AETTIIR)

4. BBMEXS (&)
(@ (&)

0] Lujolujo A =F — P4 M A )\ B B1445F
BRERAF ISR BELEN_-Z
—OF—A—HRLFREAR ARG
VEBRHHE N =T —WFMA
T+ =BEARE Luolujo EEARE
BITRAT7% % » Lujoluo B R BA A
BB AR - TRRBRIEE EER
% £ #E B Lujolujo K9 11.5% Rk # - I &
FLUoloWESE - EEER-FT—/N
FNANBBEERB AL - HREER
HERRAAREERUKRERDRAESR
BRAEEMBENRYERMNETEES
RARIMNBAR - Ll 5E#KE
ARG BEEENR-ZZ—NFENAN
AET Luoluo EEHIE AL -

(il WA 41 il - RZF—F+
AtHB  AEBEEEIIRERZ -
NABBSRARBHZE 5 EEAR
AR49% - A E 42,002,000 T
REBFECRERZIRBHEET
B c ARNERERERBETHESS
REENES TARBAREERE
o PR BB TRS -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

()

A copyright licence agreement (“Copyright Licence Agreement”)
vvas entered into between Apperience as licensee and X #5822

BRMAR NG ("HKEEE") as licensor on 18 February
2013 pursuant to vvhlch A #B B2 £ granted to Apperience an
exclusive licence to use the copyright of “Advanced SystemCare”
registered in the name of X #F 8 £ at nil consideration for a
period from the date of the Copyright Licence Agreement to (i)
the date on which the relevant copyright is transferred from % £B
B and registered in the name of Apperience in the PRC; and (i)
the date on which the copyright of “Advanced SystemCare” has
been registered in the name of Apperience in the United States
(whichever is the earlier). On 1 July 2014, the Copyright Licence
Agreement was terminated.

A new copyright licence agreement (“New Copyright Licence
Agreement”) was entered into among Both Talent as licensee, X
#BE 2 as licensor, and Apperience as of 1 July 2014 pursuant
to which FXEBE £ granted to Both Talent an exclusive licence to
use the copyright of “Advanced SystemCare” registered in the
name of A #FELE in the PRC for a period from the date of the
New Copyright Licence Agreement to the later of (i) the
completion of registration of the assignment of the copyright to
Both Talent in the PRC; and (i) the completion of registration of
the copyright of “Advanced SystemCare” in the name of Both
Talent in the United States.

Mr. Xue Qiushi (“Mr. Xue”), an executive Director of the Company,
has 35% equity interest in A #PEEE .

On 13 August 2015, the Company, the vendors and the
warrantors entered into a conditional sale and purchase
agreement (as varied and supplemented by a supplemental
agreement dated 16 September 2015) in relation to the
acquisition of additional 14.677% of the issued share capital of
Boom Max. Ace Source International Limited (“Ace Source”), one
of the vendors, is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Xue. Ace
Source received consideration of (i) HK$10,000,000 in cash; (i)
HK$43,816,465 of the Convertible Notes; and (iii) 146,054,883 of
the consideration shares. Details are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 13 August, 16 September 2015, 16
October 2015, 6 November 2015, 15 December 2015 and 31
December 2015, and the Company’s circular dated 23
November 2015.

Transactions with key management personnel

All key management personnel are directors of the Company and
their remuneration are disclosed in note 16.

BE_ZT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

—AF+ZA=+—HIFE
(LA TTER)

4. BBERZ (&)

(b)

(c)

R-—ZE—=F_-HF+/\B  Apperience ({E5&
FA) BREREEEREMAR AR ([
BE])(EATMA) TSR BR 1% ([hRiE
MEER 1R ]) - UL - A EBER 2 [\ Apperience 1%
HEBRER  RPEEEFRAUAKBRELRK
= i &9 [ Advanced SystemCare ] x4 © B fix
TG RR kB EIRRE () ER R R A PR R 8
& Apperience & N RIEFBEAEZFFME
B i)y = B LA Apperience® # = f
[Advanced SystemCare | hiiE & H (AR F &
ABE)AIE - RZT—WE+LA—H - iRiERE
BipED EKIE -

N-Z—FLA—B  ERUEAEEA)
R EB R 2 (1E B EE R A ) B Apperience 5] 3 3T
WA bR FR tp i ([ FTARAERE R 1 |) - BRI - AR
HRECDEERBEBRER - APBEFEHAN
EPEREZ M EY [ Advanced SystemCare )
Wt - B ¥ThRAERR B R B B = () R P 5T
SR T = RAME ¢ & (i) RER A
Z[[ %5 M Advanced SystemCare | (JA

BESE (TEEE])
BRREDRE35% iR HE o

RERBHITESE

R-ZE—RENA+=0  &QF - B RE
1R A Bt U B Boom Max B 2 17 I 7 &) %8 &b
14.677% BT L E GG EE R (KBEHA
ZE-HAFNAT+"BENERHBEHE
7% ) o HEf — & F 5 Ace Source International
Limited ([Ace Source]) HEESC A2 E B i
A ° Ace Source B 41L& (i) IR € 10,000,000 7
JC i (i) 43,816,4657% 7T ] 2 IR T & (i)
146,054,883 IR EAR D - FHIBENARQRA
MAE-T-—RAFNA+=H - LA+RE =
TE-—RE+A+AE  —E—A"AE+—ARX
H ZT—hAF+-A+HABR=-FT—HF
+ZA=+—HHRE LURARRBHE=
T-AF+—AZ+=AMANR-

HIZEBAESHNRS

FEXEERAEBHAEARRES -
B FE16 4R R ©

ek
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AN
NN

VSRR BT AT

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

45. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Other than those disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the following significant events took place subsequent to
the end of the reporting period.

(a)

Capital reorganisation and change in board lot size

On 29 February 2016, the Board proposed to implement the
capital reorganisation which involves the following:

U

(i)

(i

every five issued and unissued existing shares of HK$0.01
each of the Company (“Shares”) will be consolidated into
one consolidated share of HK$0.05 each of the Company
(“2016 Consolidated Shares”) (“2016 Share
Consolidation”) and where applicable, the total number of
the 2016 Consolidated Shares in the issued share capital
of the Company immediately following the 2016 Share
Consolidation will be rounded down to a whole number by
cancelling any fraction in the issued share capital of the
Company which arises from the 2016 Share
Consolidation;

the issued share capital of the Company will be reduced
through a cancellation of the paid-up capital of the
Company to the extent of HK$0.04 on each of the issued
2016 Consolidated Shares such that the nominal value of
each issued 2016 Consolidated Share will be reduced
from HK$0.05 to HK$0.01 (“2016 Capital Reduction”);

immediately following the 2016 Capital Reduction, each of
the authorised but unissued 2016 Consolidated Shares of
HK$0.05 each will be sub-divided into five new shares of
HK$0.01 each;

the credits arising in the books of the Company from the
cancellation of any fraction in the issued share capital of
the Company which arises from the 2016 Share
Consolidation and the 2016 Capital Reduction of
approximately HK$9,876,633 will be credited to the
contributed surplus account of the Company within the
meaning of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda; and

upon the capital reorganisation becoming effective, the
board lot size for trading of the new shares will be

changed from 5,000 to 6,000.

The capital reorganisation of the Company and change in board
lot size are subject to, among other things, approval of the
shareholders of the Company (“Shareholder”) as a special
resolution. Details of the capital reorganisation and change of
board lot size are disclosed in the Company’s announcement
dated 29 February 2016.

HE_Z-—RF+_A=1T—HILFE
(AETTIIR)

45. BEMKREBE

RERGABHRELBEIBBEN  NBEMR
BREUTEAEL -

(@) RABARERBFEHEM

RZB-—RF-_AZTNA  EFZSEZHET
IAEHAE - BB RIATRIER

() RARIBREREREMECOIBTHE
BITRABITHRBRG (TRH D IEE6
A REECSBTHA KRG (=
T—REEHRM]) [ZZ—RERH
S0t M(ER)REBE_ZE—~F
B & AR ARIBEITRAFH=F
—ANFEMROEBERGBRTHA T
—RNERDEHIIEEARARCEITR
RPEAEHERG MES BEH

(i) FEBEARRBREFIT_ZTNFAH
IRV EZE A 0.04 8 7T - FEUAHIRA
RAWBHITRA  SEREHT-F
—REA GO HEEH0.058 T
Z001 BT ZE—RERFHIRD

iy EBE_FE-AFRAHRE  BEER
0.05BTLHEEBREIT _T—XREFA
B BRI A A AR & IR EE0.01
PETTEEARG

vy EFHEAQREBITRAPE-T—X
FRD A G EERNTRTHRG &
ZE-ARFRAHRMEAARRE £
IR /9 #E BE 49 9,876,633 78 JT i B A
ARNEHBBRE(EER —AWN—F
BREARE) &

v  RRAEEENE  BEEHRMHNET
FEE B/ 5,0000%F 24 A6,0000% °

ARRBRAEERENEFEEBMAR (K
hEE) AR RBR (THER ) A RRZE S
& FAEE - RASERFNEFESTE
UHFERARABRAE-ZT—R"F_A
ZTABRAERE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

45. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(continued)

(b)

Acquisition of a subsidiary

On 11 March 2016, a subsidiary of the Company entered into a
conditional sale and purchase agreement with a vendor to
acquire 100% of the issued share capital of Million Worldwide
Investment Limited (“Million Worldwide”) and its subsidiary and a
sale loan in the amount of approximately HK$26,899,000 owned
by Million Worldwide to the vendor at a consideration of
HK$20,000,000. The principal activity of Million Worldwide is
investment holding. The principal asset of its subsidiary is an
investment property in Hong Kong for leasing purposes.

The above acquisition was completed on 21 March 2016. Details
of the acquisition have been set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 11 March 2016 and 21 March 2016.

BE_ZT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

—AF+ZA=+—HIFE
(LA TTER)

45. IMEHAREE (HF)

(b)

WiE — M E A E

RZZE—RF=A+—H K27 —RKEA
AEBESITVAKEEERZ WA BHUE
Million Worldwide Investment Limited ([ Million
Worldwide|) R KMt @B R R 2 HEHITRA R
Million Worldwide #5 /R & 75 £ 1 #] 26,899,000
TR E B - X8 /20,000,000 7T °
Million Worldwide #) = Z %75 AR &5k - &
WEARMNEEEEARBSERERENE

PHRER T -RNF=A-t+—HBREK - K
BRBCHEIINARA AR T —RF=A
T-ARZE-REF=ZAZtT—HNOHRE -
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL INFORMATION
hFEPHHE

The following is a summary of the published results and of the assets and MU TAREEHE_ZT——F  _T——_F . _T—=F -

liabilities of the Group for the five years ended 31 December 2011, 2012, —ZE—NER-_ZET—AF+-A=+—HILRABEFENHNET
2013, 2014 and 2015. BEBUREERBEHRE -
RESULTS ]

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1t—HLEE
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-FHE —T-mE —T-=F —T-—F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

THET FHIT FAxT FAT FAxT
Turnover e 324,729 234,293 92,105 4,137 3,636
Profit/(Loss) from operations R (ER) 123,049 109,155 (161,776) (24,931) (4,300)
Finance costs BhA A (5,635) (1,209 (14,602 (1,048) (120)
Share of (Loss)/Profit on an associate &1 —EEE < A 7
(F518) %7 (51) 33 = - _
Profit/(Loss) before taxation B R AR A, (E518) 117,363 107,979 (176,378) (25,979) (4,420)
Income tax 5%t (23,940) (19,000) (6,798) (859) (217)
Profit/(Loss) after taxation from REABELEEYR
continuing operations BB BER(ER) 93,423 88,979 (183,176) (26,338) (4,637)
Loss after taxation from RER ISR
discontinued operation REiE BB - - - (288) (1,509)
Profit/(Loss) for the year REERR(BE) 93,423 88,979 (183,176) (26,626) (6,146)
Profit/(Loss) attributable to BUF A+ FEAEEF(B518)
— Owners of the Company — RATEEA 60,510 52,737 (207,410) (26,626) (6,146)
— Non-controlling interests — FFERER 32,913 36,242 24,234 = -
93,423 88,979 (183,176) (26,626) (6,146)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—8
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
=E—HF —T—mFE —ZT—= —T—=—F =ZT——F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT FH&T FHTT FT
Total assets BEHBE 1,434,324 942,389 750,754 160,974 161,647
Total liabilities aERs (380,503) (174,513) (161,500) (22,894) (8,257)
Non-controlling interests SRR (37,868) (41,524) (35,498) - -
Total equity attributable to AAEHER AL
owners of the Company AR 1,015,953 726,352 553,756 138,080 158,390
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